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Deem Roll-Tech Limited  
[CIN: L27109GJ2003PLC042325] 

Registered Office: Survey No. 110/1, P-1, 110/2, Ganeshpura, Taluka: Kadi, District: Mahesana, Gujarat, India, 

382729. 

Corporate Office: C-3/301, Anushruti Apartment, Opp New York Tower, Nr. Jain Mandir, S.G., Highway, Ahmedabad, 
Gujarat, India, 380054.  Email: cs@deemrolls.com  Website: www.deemroll.com 

 

Notice is hereby given that 21st Annual General Meeting of the members of Deem Roll-Tech Limited will be held on 

Thursday, 19th September, 2024 at 11.30 a.m. through Video Conferencing/ Other Audio Visual Means 
[VC/OAVM] facility at the Deemed Venue i.e. at the Registered Office of the company at Survey No. 110/1, P-1,110/2, 

Ganeshpura, Tal: Kalol, Dist. Mehsana, Gujarat State-382715 to transact the following businesses: 

 

Ordinary Business 
[1] To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year 2023-24 ended 31st March, 

2024 along-with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon. 

[2] To appoint Mr. Jaydev Ramesh Betai [DIN: 08218474] as Non-Executive Director who retires by rotation and being 

eligible offers himself for re-appointment. 
 

Special Business  

[3] Reappointment of Mr. Jyoti Prasad Bhattacharya [DIN: 00340485] as Managing Director & CEO  

The members are requested to consider and pass the following resolutions, with or without modifications, as special 
resolutions.     

“Resolved that in accordance with the provisions of Section 196, Section 197,Section 198  and Section 203 and other 

applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 [the Act] read with Schedule-V to the Act , as amended, and 

the Companies [Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel] Rules, 2014 , as amended, the applicable  
provisions of the Articles of Association of the company, the recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee and resolutions of the Board of Directors, consent of the  members  of the company be and is hereby 

accorded for the re-appointment of Mr. Jyoti Prasad Bhattacharya [DIN:00340485], as Managing Director & CEO of the 

company for a period of 5 [Five] Years from 1st October, 2024 to 30th September, 2029 at the remuneration and other 
perquisites and on the terms and conditions of appointment as set out in the explanatory statement under Section 102 

of the Act, as amended and under the Regulation 36 [3] of the SEBI [Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements] 

Regulations, 2015, as amended, annexed  to this notice dated 9th August, 2024 for convening  the  twenty-first annual 

general meeting.  
Resolved further that for the purpose of giving effect to the aforesaid resolution, the Board of Directors be and are 

hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds and things as it may in its absolute discretion deem necessary, proper or 

desirable and to settle any question, difficulty or doubt that may arise in that regard.” 

[4] Increase in the remuneration of Mr. Dev Bhattacharya, Whole-Time Director [DIN: 09842191]  
To consider and if through fit to pass with or without modifications the following resolutions as special resolutions. 

“Resolved that in accordance with the provisions of Section 196, Section 197 and Section 203 and other applicable 

provisions, if any, read with Schedule-V of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended, the Companies [Appointment & 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel] Rules, 2014 , as amended , the applicable provisions of the Articles of 
Association of the company and the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approval by 

the Board of Directors of the company, the consent  of the members be and is hereby accorded to the increase w.e.f. 

1st August, 2024 , in the remuneration of Mr. Dev bhattacharya , Whole-Time Director [DIN:09842191], to 

Rs.2,00,000/-  [Rupees Two  Lakhs only] per month [inclusive of salary, dearness allowance, commission and other 
allowances] 

Resolved further that as per the resolution of the Board of Directors, the other terms and conditions of appointment 

of Mr. Dev Bhattacharya, Whole-Time Director shall be as set out in the explanatory statement under Section 102 of the 

Act, as amended, annexed to this notice dated 9th August, 2024 for convening the twenty-first annual general meeting.  
Resolved further that for the purpose of giving effect to the aforesaid resolution, the Board of Directors of the 

company be and are hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds and things as it may in its absolute discretion deem 

necessary, proper or desirable and to settle any question, difficulty or doubt that may arise in that regard.”  

[5] Approval of the transactions with Related Party  
The members are requested to consider and pass with or without modifications, the following resolutions as ordinary 

resolutions. 

 “Resolved that pursuant to the provisions of Section 2 [76] , Section 188 and other applicable provisions, if any, of 

the  Companies Act, 2013 [the Act], as amended, read with Rule 15 of the Companies [Meetings of Board and its 
Powers] Rules, 2014, as amended, the  applicable provisions, if any,  of the SEBI [Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements], 2015 as amended, the company’s Policy on Materiality of Related Party Transactions and on Dealing 

with Related Pary Transactions and the recommendations of the Audit Committee and  resolutions of the Board of 

Directors , the consent of the members be and is hereby accorded for continuing the arrangements for entering into 
transaction[s] with Diacut Machining, a Related Party within the meaning of Section 2[76] of the Act, for assigning of 

work of pass cutting of the rolls and procurement of rolls scrap , on the terms and conditions described in detail in the 

explanatory statement under Section 102 of the Act, as amended,  attached to this notice dated  9th August, 2024 for 

convening the twenty-first  annual general meeting, up to a maximum aggregate amount  of Rs.6.50 crores for the 
financial year 2024-25 ending 31st March, 2025.   

mailto:cs@deemrolls.com
http://www.deemroll.com/


 

6 
 

               

Resolved further that the Board of Directors shall ensure that transaction[s] entered into with Diacut Machining shall 
be in accordance with the terms and conditions described in the explanatory statement as mentioned above and shall 

be at arm’s length and in the ordinary course of business as also in the interest of the company. 

Resolved further that for the purpose of giving effect to the aforesaid resolutions, the Board of Directors of the 

company be and are hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds and things as it may in its absolute discretion deem 
necessary, proper or desirable and to settle any question, difficulty or doubt that may arise in that regard.”  

 

[6] Ratification of the remuneration payable to Cost Auditor appointed by the Board of Directors for the 

Financial Year 2024-25 ended 31st March, 2025  
The members are requested to consider and to pass with or without modifications the following resolution as ordinary 

resolution. 

“Resolved that pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and other applicable provisions, if any,  of the Companies 

Act,2013 read with Rule 14 of the Companies [Audit and Auditors] Rules, 2014, as amended till date, the remuneration 
of Rs.80,000/- + GST +  Misc. Expenses payable  to M/s Mitesh I Prajapati & Associates, Cost Accountants [Firm 

Registration No.101450]  who have been appointed by the Board of Directors for conducting the cost audit of the 

company for the Financial Year 2024-25 ended 31st March, 2025, be and is hereby ratified.”    

 
                                                                       

Date: 09th August, 2024 

Place: Ahmedabad 

By order of the Board of Directors    

 

  
Registered Office 

Survey No. 110/1, P-1,110/2,  

Ganeshpura, Tal: Kalol, Dist. Mehsana,  

Gujarat State -382715 

sd/- 

Alka Kumari 

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 

[ACS No.: 31249] 
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Notes: 

 

[1] In compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 [the Act]  and Securities and Exchange 

Board of India [Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements] 2015, as amended [the SEBI LODR], General Circular 

Nos.14/2020 and 17/2020 dated April 8, 2020 and April 13, 2020 respectively, General Circular No. 22/2020 dated June 

15,2020, General Circular No. 33/2020 dated September 28, 2020, General Circular No. 39/ 2020 dated December 31, 

2020, General Circular No. 10/2021 dated June 23, 2021, General Circular No. 20/2021 dated December 8, 2021, and 

General Circular No. 3/2022   dated May 5, 2022, respectively, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs [collectively 

referred to as ‘the MCA Circulars’] and Circular Nos. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated May 12, 2020, 

SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated January 15, 2021 and  SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2022/62 dated May 13, 

2022 issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India [collectively referred to as  ‘ the SEBI Circulars’] and in 

compliance with the provisions of the Act and the SEBI LODR , the 21st Annual General Meeting [the AGM/this AGM] of 

the Company is being conducted through VC/OAVM facility, which does not require physical presence of the members 

at a common venue in accordance with the Act, the MCA Circulars, the SEBI LODR and the SEBI Circulars. The deemed 

venue for the AGM will be the Registered Office of the Company – Survey No. 110/1, P-1, 110/2, Ganeshpura, Taluka: 

Kadi: District:  Mahesana, Gujarat, India, 382729. 

[2] As per the provisions of Clause 3. A. II. of the General Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020, the Special 

Business as appearing in Item No. 3, 4, 5 and 6 of the Notice, is considered to be unavoidable by the Board of Directors 

and hence, forming part of this Notice. 

[3] The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Act setting out material facts concerning the business 

under Item No. 3, 4, 5 and 6 of the Notice is annexed hereto. The relevant details, pursuant to Regulation 36[3] of the 

SEBI [Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements] Regulations, 2015, as amended [the SEBI Listing Regulations], 

in respect of the Director seeking reappointment at this AGM is annexed. 

[4] Since this AGM is being held through VC / OAVM pursuant to the MCA Circulars, physical attendance of members 

has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the members will not be available for 

this AGM. Hence, proxy form, attendance slip and route map are not annexed to this Notice. However, Institutional 

Investors and Corporate Members are entitled to appoint authorised representatives to attend this AGM through VC / 

OAVM to participate thereat, and cast their votes through e-voting. 

[5] The members may join the AGM in the VC / OAVM mode 15 Minutes [Fifteen Minutes] before the scheduled time of 

the commencement of the AGM by following the procedure mentioned in this Notice. The helpline number regarding 

any query / assistance for participation in the AGM through VC/OAVM is 022-23058542/43. 

[6] The attendance of the members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of reckoning 

the quorum under Section 103 of the Act. 

[7] In line with the General Circular Nos. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020 and No. 02/2021 dated January 13, 2021, and 

the relevant circulars issued by SEBI, the Notice of this AGM along-with the 21st Annual Report for the Financial Year 

2023-24 is being sent only through electronic mode to those members whose e-mail addresses are registered with the 

Company/ Depositories/ RTA. For the physical copy of 21st Annual Report, the members may send requests to the 

Company’s dedicated investor email-id: cs@deemrolls.com. The Notice of this AGM and Annual Report for Financial 

Year 2023-24 is also available on the Company’s website - www.deemrolls.com, and on the website of the Stock 

Exchange, i.e. NSE Limited at www.nseindia.com. 

[8] The members desirous of seeking information regarding accounts of the Company are requested to send their 

queries to cs@deemrolls.com on or before September 05, 2024. 

[9] The Company has fixed Thursday, 12th September, 2024 as the ‘Record Date’ for determining entitlement of 

members for e-voting facility for the Financial Year 2023-24 for the AGM.  

http://www.nseindia.com/
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[10] The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under Section 170 of 

the Act, the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which the Directors are interested maintained under Section 189 

of the Act and all other documents referred to in the Notice will be available for inspection in electronic mode. 

[11] As stated above the members can join the AGM through VC/OAVM mode 15 [Fifteen] minutes before and after the 

scheduled time of the commencement of the AGM by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of 

participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available for 1,000 members on first come first served basis. 

This will not include large shareholders [shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding], Promoters, Institutional 

Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM 

without restriction on account of first come first served basis. 

Process and manner for members opting for voting through electronic means: 

[I] Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies 

[Management and Administration] Rules, 2014, as amended and Regulation 44 of SEBI [Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements] Regulations 2015, as amended, and the Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs 

dated 8th April, 2020, 13th April, 2020, 5th May, 2020, 13th January, 2021, 14th December, 2021 and 5th May 2022, 

the Company is providing facility of remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the 

AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with Bigshare Services Private Limited for 

facilitating voting through electronic means. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-voting as well as 

e-voting system on the date of the AGM will be provided by Bigshare. 

[II] Those Members whose names are recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of Beneficial Owners 

maintained by the Depositories as on the cut-off date i.e., Monday, 12th September, 2024, shall be entitled to avail the 

facility of remote e-voting as well as venue voting system on the date of the AGM. Any recipient of the Notice, who has 

no voting rights as on the Cut-off date, shall treat this Notice as intimation only. 

[III] A person who has acquired the shares and has become a member of the Company after the dispatch of the notice 

of the AGM and prior to the Cut-off date i.e., Thursday, 12th September, 2024, shall be entitled to exercise his/her vote 

either electronically i.e., remote e-voting or venue voting system on the date of the AGM by following the procedure 

mentioned in this part. 

[IV] The remote e-voting will commence on Monday, 16th September, 2024 at 9.00 a.m. and will end on Wednesday, 

18th September, 2024 at 5.00 p.m. During this period, the Members of the Company holding shares either in physical 

form or in demat form as on the Cut-off date i.e., Thursday, 12th September, 2024 may cast their vote electronically. 

The Members will not be able to cast their vote electronically beyond the date and time mentioned above and the 

remote e-voting module shall be disabled for voting by Bigshare thereafter. 

[V] Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the Member, he/she shall not be allowed to change it subsequently or cast 

the vote again. 

[VI] The voting rights of the Members shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the 

Company as on the cut-off date i.e. Thursday, 12th September, 2024. 

The Company has appointed CS Dhyanam Vyas, Practicing Company Secretary [Associate Membership No. 52500 and 

Certificate of Practice No. 21815], to act as the Scrutinizer for conducting the remote e-voting process as well as the 

venue voting system on the date of the AGM, in a fair and transparent manner. 

 

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered: 

Please update your e-mail id and mobile no. with your respective Depository Participant (DP). 

THE INTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER: 

[i] The voting period begins Monday, 16th September, 2024 at 9.00 a.m. and will end on Wednesday, 18th September, 

2024 at 5.00 p.m. During this period shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in 
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dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of date i.e., Thursday, 12th September, 2024 may cast their 

vote electronically. Bigshare shall disable the e-voting module for voting thereafter. 

[ii] Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the meeting venue. 

[iii] Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under Regulation 44 

of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed 

entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility to its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’ resolutions. 

However, it has been observed that the participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/retail shareholders is 

at a negligible level. 

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed entities in India. This 

necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user IDs and passwords by the shareholders.  

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has been decided to 

enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login credential, through their demat 

accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat account holders would be able to cast 

their vote without having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication but also 

enhancing ease and convenience of participating in e-voting process. 

In terms of SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting 

facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote 

through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to 

update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 

Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Individual 

shareholders holding securities in Demat mode is given below: 

Type of 

shareholders 

     Login Method 

Individual 

Shareholders 

holding securities 

in Demat mode 

with CDSL 

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing user id 

and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any further 

authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi/Easiest is 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/home/login or visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com 

and click on login icon & New System Myeasi Tab and then use your existing my easi 

username & password. 

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option for 

eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as per the information provided by 

company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of 

BIGSHARE the e-Voting service provider and you will be re-directed to i-Vote website for 

casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period. Additionally, there is also links provided 

to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers i.e. BIGSHARE, so that the user can 

visit the e-Voting service providers’ website directly. 

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/Registration/EasiRegistration  

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account 

Number and PAN No. from a link https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/EvotingLogin The 

system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded 

in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting 

option where the evoting is in progress, and also able to directly access the system of all e-

Voting Service Providers. Click on BIGSHARE and you will be re-directed to i-Vote website 

for casting your vote during the remote e-voting period. 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/home/login
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/Registration/EasiRegistration
https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/EvotingLogin
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Individual 

Shareholders 

holding securities 

in demat mode 

with NSDL 

 

1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services website of 

NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either 

on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is launched, 

click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. 

A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and Password. After 

successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to e-

Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on 

company name or e-Voting service provider name BIGSHARE and you will be re-directed 

to i-Vote website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining 

virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

 

2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or click   at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

 

3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the 

home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available 

under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your 

User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP 

and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will 

be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on 

company name or e-Voting service provider name BIGSHARE and you will be redirected 

to i-Vote website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining 

virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

 

Individual 

Shareholders 

(holding securities 

in demat mode) 

login through their 

Depository 

Participants 

 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your 

Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.  After Successful 

login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be 

redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can 

see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will 

be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-

Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

  

 

 

 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget 

Password option available at abovementioned website. 

 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to 

login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in 

Demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk 

by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor contact at 

022- 23058738 and 22-23058542-43. 

 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in 

Demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk 

by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 

1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30  

https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
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1. Login method for e-Voting for shareholder other than individual shareholders holding shares in 

Demat mode & physical mode is given below: 

 

 You are requested to launch the URL on internet browser: https://ivote.bigshareonline.com  

 

 Click on “LOGIN” button under the ‘INVESTOR LOGIN’ section to Login on E-Voting Platform.                              

 

 Please enter you ‘USER ID’ (User id description is given below) and ‘PASSWORD’ which is shared separately 

on you register email id. 

o Shareholders holding shares in CDSL demat account should enter 16 Digit Beneficiary ID as user id. 

o Shareholders holding shares in NSDL demat account should enter 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 

Digit Client ID as user id. 

o Shareholders holding shares in physical form should enter Event No + Folio Number registered with the 

Company as user id. 

 

Note If you have not received any user id or password please email from your registered email id or contact 

i-vote helpdesk team. (Email id and contact number are mentioned in helpdesk section). 

 

 Click on I AM NOT A ROBOT (CAPTCHA) option and login.  

 

NOTE: If Shareholders are holding shares in demat form and have registered on to e-Voting system of 

https://ivote.bigshareonline.com  and/or voted on an earlier event of any company then they can use their 

existing user id and password to login. 

 

 If you have forgotten the password: Click on ‘LOGIN’ under ‘INVESTOR LOGIN’ tab and then Click on 

‘Forgot your password’ 

 

 Enter “User ID” and “Registered email ID” Click on I AM NOT A ROBOT (CAPTCHA) option and click on 

‘Reset’. 

(In case a shareholder is having valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her registered e-mail 

address). 

 

Voting method for shareholders on i-Vote E-voting portal: 

 

 After successful login, Bigshare E-voting system page will appear. 

 Click on “VIEW EVENT DETAILS (CURRENT)” under ‘EVENTS’ option on investor portal. 

 Select event for which you are desire to vote under the dropdown option. 

 Click on “VOTE NOW” option which is appearing on the right hand side top corner of the page. 

 Cast your vote by selecting an appropriate option “IN FAVOUR”, “NOT IN FAVOUR” or “ABSTAIN” and 

click on “SUBMIT VOTE”. A confirmation box will be displayed. Click “OK” to confirm, else “CANCEL” to 

modify. Once you confirm, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.  

 Once you confirm the vote you will receive confirmation message on display screen and also you will receive 

an email on your registered email id. During the voting period, members can login any number of times till 

they have voted on the resolution(s). Once vote on a resolution is casted, it cannot be changed 

subsequently. 

 Shareholder can “CHANGE PASSWORD” or “VIEW/UPDATE PROFILE” under “PROFILE” option on 

investor portal. 

 

2. Custodian registration process for i-Vote E-Voting Website: 

 

 You are requested to launch the URL on internet browser: https://ivote.bigshareonline.com  

 Click on “REGISTER” under “CUSTODIAN LOGIN”, to register yourself on Bigshare i-Vote e-Voting 

Platform. 

 Enter all required details and submit. 

 After Successful registration, message will be displayed with “User id and password will be sent via 

email on your registered email id”. 

NOTE: If Custodian have registered on to e-Voting system of https://ivote.bigshareonline.com  and/or 

voted on an earlier event of any company then they can use their existing user id and password to login. 

https://ivote.bigshareonline.com/
https://ivote.bigshareonline.com/
https://ivote.bigshareonline.com/
https://ivote.bigshareonline.com/
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 If you have forgotten the password: Click on ‘LOGIN’ under ‘CUSTODIAN LOGIN’ tab and further Click on 

‘Forgot your password? 

 Enter “User ID” and “Registered email ID” Click on I AM NOT A ROBOT (CAPTCHA) option and click on 

‘RESET. 

(In case a custodian is having valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her registered e-mail 

address). 

 

Voting method for Custodian on i-Vote E-voting portal: 

 

 After successful login, Bigshare E-voting system page will appear. 

 

Investor Mapping: 

 

 First you need to map the investor with your user ID under “DOCUMENTS” option on custodian portal. 

o Click on “DOCUMENT TYPE” dropdown option and select document type power of attorney (POA). 

o Click on upload document “CHOOSE FILE” and upload power of attorney (POA) or board resolution for 

respective investor and click on “UPLOAD”. 

Note: The power of attorney (POA) or board resolution has to be named as the “InvestorID.pdf” 

(Mention Demat account number as Investor ID.) 

o Your investor is now mapped and you can check the file status on display.  

                Investor vote File Upload: 

 To cast your vote select “VOTE FILE UPLOAD” option from left hand side menu on custodian portal. 

 Select the Event under dropdown option. 

 Download sample voting file and enter relevant details as required and upload the same file under 

upload document option by clicking on “UPLOAD”. Confirmation message will be displayed on the 

screen and also you can check the file status on display (Once vote on a resolution is casted, it cannot 

be changed subsequently).  

 Custodian can “CHANGE PASSWORD” or “VIEW/UPDATE PROFILE” under “PROFILE” option on 

custodian portal. 

 

Helpdesk for queries regarding e-voting: 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Shareholder‘s other than individual 

shareholders holding shares in Demat mode 

& Physical mode. 

In case shareholders/ investor have any queries regarding E-

voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (‘FAQs’) 

and i-Vote e-Voting module available at 

https://ivote.bigshareonline.com, under download section or you 

can email us to ivote@bigshareonline.com or call us at: 1800 22 

54 22. 

 

3. Procedure for joining the AGM/EGM through VC/ OAVM: 

For shareholder other than individual shareholders holding shares in Demat mode & physical mode is 

given below: 

 The Members may attend the AGM through VC/ OAVM at https://ivote.bigshareonline.com under Investor login 

by using the e-voting credentials (i.e., User ID and Password). 

 After successful login, Bigshare E-voting system page will appear. 

 Click on “VIEW EVENT DETAILS (CURRENT)” under ‘EVENTS’ option on investor portal. 

 Select event for which you are desire to attend the AGM/EGM under the dropdown option. 

 For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed beside of “VIDEO CONFERENCE 

LINK” option. 
 Members attending the AGM/EGM through VC/ OAVM will be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum 

under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

        The instructions for Members for e-voting on the day of the AGM/EGM are as under:- 

 

 The Members can join the AGM/EGM in the VC/ OAVM mode 15 minutes before the scheduled time of the 
commencement of the meeting. The procedure for e-voting on the day of the AGM/EGM is same as the 

instructions mentioned above for remote e-voting.  

https://ivote.bigshareonline.com/
mailto:ivote.bigshareonline.com
https://ivote.bigshareonline.com/
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 Only those members/shareholders, who will be present in the AGM/EGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not 

casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, 

shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the AGM/EGM. 

 

 Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the EGM. However, they will not be 

eligible to vote at the AGM/EGM. 

 

 

Helpdesk for queries regarding virtual meeting: 

 

In case shareholders/ investor have any queries regarding virtual meeting, you may refer the Frequently 

Asked Questions (‘FAQs’) available at https://ivote.bigshareonline.com, under download section or you can 

email us to ivote@bigshareonline.com or call us at: 1800 22 54 22. 

 

12. The results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s website  

www.deemroll.com and on the website of Bigshare i.e. https://ivote.bigshareonline.com within three days of the 

passing of the Resolutions at the 28th Annual General Meeting of the Company and shall also be communicated to the 

Stock Exchange where the shares of the Company are listed. 
 

 

Date: 09th August, 2024 

Place: Ahmedabad 

By order of the Board of Directors    

 
  

Registered Office 

Survey No. 110/1, P-1,110/2,  

Ganeshpura, Tal: Kalol, Dist. Mehsana,  
Gujarat State -382715 

sd/- 

Alka Kumari 

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 
[ACS No.: 31249] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://ivote.bigshareonline.com/
mailto:ivote.bigshareonline.com
https://ivote.bigshareonline.com/
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Annexure to Notice  

Statement under Secretarial Standard 2 on General Meetings [the SS-2] issued by the Institute of 

Company Secretaries of India and the SEBI [Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements] 
Regulations, 2015, as amended, for the Item No.2 Ordinary Business  

 

Item No.2: Appointment Mr. Jaydev Ramesh Betai [DIN: 08218474] as Non-Executive Director who 

retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for appointment Information of Mr. Jaydev Ramesh 
Betai retiring by rotation but seeking re-election  

 

Name  Jaydev Ramesh Betai  

Director Identification Number   08218474 

Date of Birth and Age  21st March,1952 - 72 years  

Status  Non-Executive Director  

Date of first appointment and reappointment etc.  

Mr. Betai was appointed as Non-Executive Director retiring by 

rotation by the members of the company at the 15th Annual 

General Meeting held on 29th September, 2018. Mr. Betai was 

reappointed as Non-Executive Director retiring by rotation by 
the members of the company at the 18th Annual General 

Meeting held on 30th September, 2021.  

 

Qualifications 

Mr. Betai is M. Com, LL. B [Special], Diploma in taxation Laws 
and Practice, Diploma in Labour Laws and Practice, Fellow 

Member of the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, 

Practicing Company Secretary    

Experience in specific professional areas 

Mr. Betai has total about 32 years of experience of working 
with various corporates in public and private sectors and 

handling of assignments of corporate and other laws, 

litigations, human resources and resources mobilization etc. 

Since November,2011, working as Practicing Company 
Secretary and is based at Ahmedabad.  

Number of equity shares held in the company Nil  

Number of equity shares held in other companies  Nil  

List of other companies in which directorships held  Nil 

List of companies in which directorships were held 
during last 3 Years   

Nil  

Chairman/Member of the Committees of Board in 

other companies 
Nil 

Chairman/Member of the Committees of Board of 

the company 

[1] Audit Committee 
[2] Nomination and Remuneration Committee  

[3] IPO Committee 

Relationships between Directors inter se Nil 

[a] Meetings of the Board of Directors and the 

Committees held during the Financial Year 2023-24 
ended 31/03/2024 and attended by Mr. Betai  

[b] Meetings of the members of the company held 

during the year ended 31/03/2024 and attended 

by Mr. Betai 

Mr. Betai was appointed as Chairman of the Board of Directors 

at the Board Meeting held on 14th July,2024.  
[a] [i] 15 Meetings of the Board of Directors Meetings were 

held and 10 Meetings were attended by Mr. Betai 

[ii] 7 Meetings of the Audit Committee were held and all 

Meetings were attended by Mr. Betai 
[iii] 4 Meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee were held and all Meetings were attended by Mr. 

Betai  

[iv] 8 Meetings of the IPO Committee were held and all 
Meetings were attended by Mr. Betai 

[b] 20th Annual General Meeting held during Financial Year 

2022-23 was not attended by Mr. Betai. Mr. Betai had 

attended Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on 24th 
July,2024 as Chairman. The Extra-Ordinary Meetings held on 

17th April, 2023, 9th May, 2023, 30th June,2023, and 25th 

January, 2024 were not attended by Mr.  Betai  

Details of remuneration sought to be paid  
Sitting fees for attending Board Meetings and Committee 
Meetings, where he is a Member. 

Mr.  Jaydev Ramesh Betai is not disqualified for reappointment under Section 164 and Section 165 of the Companies 

Act, 2013. Mr. Betai has signified his consented for reappointment as Non-Executive Director liable to retire by rotation 

as per his letter dated 25th July, 2024. 

 
 

 

 



 

15 
 

               

Annexure to Notice  
 

The statement stating out the material facts pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act,2013 and the 

information required as per Regulation 36 [3] of the SEBI [Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements] Regulations, 2015 [the SEBI LODR], as amended and Secretarial Standard 2 on the 
General Meeting issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India    

 

Item No.3. Reappointment of Mr. Jyoti Prasad Bhattacharya [DIN: 00340485] as the Managing Director & 

CEO of the company 
Mr. Jyoti Prasad Bhattacharya is Promoter and Managing Director & CEO of the company. Mr. Bhattacharya has been 

Director of the company since incorporation.   

Mr. Bhattacharya was appointed as Managing Director & CEO of the company for 5 years w.e.f. 1st October, 2009, by 

the members of the company at the extra-ordinary general meeting held on 1st October, 2009. The members of the 
company had at the eleventh annual general meeting held on 30th September, 2014 accorded their approval for 

reappointment of Mr. Bhattacharya as Managing Director & CEO for a further period of 5 years w.e.f. 1st October, 2014 

upto 30th September, 2019. Again, the members had at the sixteenth annual general meeting held on 10 th September, 

2019 accorded their approval by special resolution for the reappointment of Mr. Bhattacharya as the Managing Director 
& CEO for a further period of 5 years w.e.f. 1st October, 2019 to 30th September, 2024. It is informed that the members 

had at the twentieth annual general meeting held on 22nd June, 2023, accorded their approval by special resolution for 

increase of the remuneration of Mr. Bhattacharya to Rs.20, 00,000/- per month w.e.f.1st May, 2023 and on other the 

terms and conditions approved by the members at the nineteenth annual general meeting held 30th September, 2022. 
The members are informed that the present term of appointment of Mr. Bhattacharya as Managing Director & CEO will 

end on 30th September, 2024. The members are informed that Mr. Bhattacharya has as per his letter dated 29 th July, 

2024, expressed his willingness for reappointment as Managing Director & CEO of the company and has certified that 

he is eligible for the reappointment under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.  
The Members are informed that the appointment and reappointment of managerial personnel [managing director, 

whole-time director or manager] and remuneration payable to them are governed by Section 196, Section 197 and 

Section 203 and Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 [the Act] and the Companies [Appointment & Remuneration of 

Managerial Personnel] Rules, 2014 [the Rules]. The Article 181 of the Articles of Association of the company provide for 
the appointment of the managerial personnel.  

The members are informed that in accordance with the provisions of Section 196, Section 197 and Section 203 and 

other applicable provisions, if any, read with Schedule-V of the Act and the Rules and the applicable provisions of the 

Articles of Association of the company and considering the recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee the Board of Directors have at the Meeting No. 2  /2024-25 held on 9th , August, 2024,  subject to the 

approval of the members by special resolution at the twenty-first annual general meeting, resolved for reappointment of 

Mr. Jyoti Prasad Bhattacharya as Managing Director & CEO for 5 Year w.e.f. 1st October, 2024 to 30th September, 2029 

upon the remuneration, perquisites and terms and conditions of appointment  as set-out below:  
[1] Remuneration and Perquisites     

[a] Total remuneration payable to Mr. Bhattacharya as Managing Director & CEO will be Rs.20,00,000/- per month 

[inclusive of salary, dearness allowance, commission and other allowances].    

[b] Mr. Bhattacharya will be eligible to the following perquisites in addition to the remuneration: 
[i] gratuity payable at the rate not exceeding half a month’s basic salary for each completed year of service  

[ii] leave as per the rules of the company and  

[iii] encashment of leave at the end of the tenure.  

[iv] use the company’s car- all the expenses for the maintenance of and running of the same including salary of the 
driver to be borne by the company. 

[c] Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein contained, wherein in any financial year during the tenure of the 

Managing Director & CEO, the company has no profits or the profits are inadequate, the company shall subject to the 

provisions of Section 196 and Section 197 read with Schedule V and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act and 
the Rules shall pay salary and other allowances and perquisites as specified herein. 

[2] Remuneration to be paid as per Section 196 and Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act 

Wherein in any financial year during the tenure of the Managing Director & CEO, the company has no profits or the 

profits are inadequate, the company shall subject to the provisions of Section 196 and Section 197 read with Schedule V 
and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act and the Rules shall pay salary and other allowances and perquisites 

as specified herein. 

[3] Board’s powers to reduce the remuneration  

When in any financial year, there are no profits or the same are not considered adequate by the Board, the Board is 
empowered to decide not to pay any remuneration or to reduce the remuneration mentioned above to any amount they 

consider reasonable in the circumstances of the case. The Board’s powers in this behalf are absolute and if so, exercised 

by the by the Board before the end of the financial year or before the accounts are passed by the Annual General 

Meeting will override the provisions of remuneration set out above and no remuneration or the reduced remuneration as 
the case may be, will accrue and become payable to the Managing Director & CEO.  

[4] Sitting fees    

The Managing Director & CEO shall not be entitled to sitting fees for attending the meeting of the Board of Directors or 

the Committees thereof. 
[5] Reimbursement  

The Managing Director & CEO shall be entitled to the reimbursement of all expenses including local and outside 

travelling, entertainment and other out-of pocket expenses incurred in connection with the business of the company.  
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[6] Not exclusive   
The Board of Directors shall be at liberty from time to time to appoint any other person or persons to be the Managing 

Director & CEO.   

[7] Retirement, Resignation and termination 

[a] The Managing Director & CEO shall not be liable to retire by rotation.  
[b] The Managing Director & CEO shall be free to resign his office by giving 3 [Three] calendar months’ notice in writing 

to the company. The company shall also be free to terminate the services of the Managing Director & CEO by giving 3 

[Three] calendar months’ notice. 

[8] Compensation  
If at any time the office of the Managing Director & CEO is determinate before the expiry of his term of office, the 

Managing Director & CEO shall be entitled to compensation for loss of office in accordance with and subject to the 

restriction laid down in Section 196 and Section 197 and Schedule V of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.  

The information of Mr. Jyoti Prasad Bhattacharya and the company as required under Section 197 and Schedule V of the 
Act and the Rules as also SEBI LODR are as under: 

[a] Information about Mr. Jyoti Prasad Bhattacharya 

Mr. Jyoti Prasad Bhattacharya is aged about 65 years and is B.E [Electrical] and Diploma in Business Management. Mr. 

Bhattacharya holds over 30 years of experience in the field of steel industry particularly in rolls manufacturing, casting, 
forged casting etc.    

Mr. Bhattacharya is Promoter of the company and has been its Director from the incorporation of the company and the 

Managing Director & CEO w.e.f. 1st October, 2009.     

As on 31st March, 2024 and on the date of this notice Mr. Jyoti Prasad Bhattacharya is holding in his name 53,16,102 
equity shares of Rs.10/- each of the company representing 63.76 % of the paid-up equity share capital. As on the date 

of this notice the relatives of Mr. Bhattacharya are holding 3,48,150 equity shares of Rs.10/- each of the company 

representing 4.09 % of the paid-up equity share capital. Thus, Mr. Bhattacharya and his relatives are holding total 

67.85 % of the paid-up share capital of the company.  
Mr. Bhattacharya’s Son Mr. Dev Jyotiprasad Bhattacharya is Whole-Time Director of the company w.e.f. 25th April,2023. 

No other Director on the Board of Directors and no Key Managerial Personnel is relative of Mr. Bhattacharya.  

Mr. Bhattacharya is not Director in any other company. Also, during last 3 years Mr. Bhattacharya was not Director in 

any other company.   
During the financial year 2023-24, Mr. Bhattacharya has attended the meetings of the Board of Directors, Committees 

of the Board of Directors and the meetings of the Members as under. 

Sr. 

No.  

Board of Directors/Board 

Committees / Members of the 

company  

Meetings held during the Financial 

Year 2023-24  

Meetings attended by Mr. 

Bhattacharya 

1 Board of Directors  15 15 

2 CSR Committee  2 2 

2 IPO Committee  8 8 

4 Members Meetings [i] 20th Annual General Meetings [ii] 

5 Extra Ordinary General Meetings 

[i] 20th Annual General Meeting 

and [ii] 5 Extra Ordinary General 
Meetings 

 

[b] Company  

Deem Roll-Tech Limited [the company] [CIN: U27109GJ2003PLC042325] was incorporated as private limited company on 
01/05/2003 under the Companies Act, 1956.The company was converted into public limited company on 12/02/2008. The 

registered office of the company is situated at Survey No. 110/1, P-1, 110/2, Ganeshpura-Dhanali Road, Village: 

Ganeshpura, Tal: Kadi, Dist: Mehsana- 382729, Gujarat. The corporate office of the company is situated at C-3/301, 

Anushruti, Opp. New-York Tower, Near Thaltej Cross Roads, S.G. Highway, Ahmedabad-380051, Gujarat. 
[c] Products and Production Facilities 

[1] The company is one of the leading manufacturers of steel rolls, which constitute the building blocks of the iron and 

steel rolling mill industry. The rolls production was started in 2005.  

[2] The company currently has 3 manufacturing Units as below.  
[a] Unit 1- Plot No.1006 /1007, GIDC Chhatral, Ta: Kalol, Dist: Gandhinagar [Gujarat]  

[b] Unit 2- Survey No. 110/1 , P-1,110/2, Ganeshpura, Tal: Kalol, Dist. Mehsana [Gujarat] 

[c] Unit 3- P.O. Sinhet, P.S. Danpur, Dist: Hooghly [West Bengal]  

[3] The present manufacturing capacity of the above Units is 6,600 MT finished steel rolls per year. With many reputed 
rolling mills in India and abroad as company’s customers, it strives to provide the best quality processes in the industry as 

a result of which our rolls are one of the finest available. 

[d] Financial Performance 

The details of financial performance of the company for the years ended 31st March, 2023 and 31st March, 2022 are as 
under.  

              Amount [Rs.]  

Particulars   31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 

Paid up Equity Capital 1,38,32,400 1,38,32,400 

Total Income 104,51,65,183 92,09,03,234 

Profit Before Interest, Depreciation and Tax 13,28,02,202 9,71,22,290 

Profit After Interest, Depreciation and Tax  7,07,94,259 5,94,50,853 

Balance of Term Loans and Working Capital from Banks 19,98,82,458 15,53,03,966 

Reserves and Surplus [Including Revaluation Reserve of Rs. 10,49,57,364]  47,83,78,685 42,14,88,023 
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The capacity utilization of 84.13% and 92.54% have been achieved for the years ended 31 st March, 2022 and 31st March, 

2023.   

The Effective Capital on 31/03/2022 is Rs. 36,31,79,123/- and 31st March, 2023 is Rs. 40,71,16,905/-under Section 196 

and Section 197 and Schedule V [Part II Explanation I] of the Companies Act, 2013. 
It is stated that the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024 are placed for approval and 

adoption by the members at Item No.1 in the notice convening this twenty-first annual general meeting. The financial 

performance of the company for the year ended 31st March, 2024 is as under.  

                                                                                                                                 Amount [Rs.] 

Particulars   31st March, 2024 

Paid up Equity Capital  8,33,72,720/- 

Total Income 1,01,43,35,936 

Profit Before Interest, Depreciation and Tax 14,27,93,096 

Profit After Interest, Depreciation and Tax  7,81,24,879 

Balance of Term Loans and Working Capital from Banks 21,77,93,022 

Reserves and Surplus [Including Revaluation Reserve of Rs. 10,49,57,364]  75,92,28,335 

 

The capacity utilization of 94% has been achieved for the year ended 31st March, 2024.  

The Effective Capital on 31/03/2024 is Rs. 76,06,40,767/- under Section 196 and Section 197 and Schedule V [Part II 

Explanation I] of the Companies Act, 2013.  
[e] Expansion Project  

The expansion project for manufacturing of flat product rolls is under implementation at Unit 2, Ganeshpura, Tal: Kalol, 

Dist. Mehsana [Gujarat].  

[f] Bonus Issue  
During the Financial Year 2023-24, 44,54,032 equity shares of Rs.10/- each were issued and allotted as bonus shares to 

those members, whose names were appearing in the register of members on the record date i.e. 4 th July, 2023, in the 

ration of 322:100 [i.e. 322 fully paid bonus equity shares for 100 equity shares held] by capitalizing Rs. 4,45,40,320/- 

from the balance of the share premium account.  
[g] Private Placement 

During the Financial Year 2023-24, in January, 2024 the Board had, after approval by special resolutions by the members 

at the extra-ordinary general meeting, issued and allotted 2,32,000 equity shares of Rs.10/- at the premium of Rs.119/- 

per equity share i.e. at the issue price of Rs.129/- per equity share on preferential basis by private placement.    
[h] Initial public offering of the equity shares 

The initial public offering [the issue] of the equity shares of the company offering 22,68,000 equity shares of Rs.10/- each 

at the issue price of Rs.129/- per equity share [i.e. at the premium of Rs.119/- per equity share], aggregating to 

Rs.2925.72 lakhs was opened for 3 days from 20th February,2024. The objects of the issue were funding capital 
expenditure towards project for expansion of the existing manufacturing facility at the Ganeshpura Unit, funding of the 

additional working capital requirements and general corporate purposes.  The issue had received overwhelming response 

from the investors and was oversubscribed 256.55 times.  

[i] Paid up Share Capital 
As on 31st March, 2024 and on the date of this notice, the paid-up share capital has been Rs. 8,33,72,720/- divided into 

divided into 83,37,272 equity shares of Rs.10/- each.   

[j] Listing on National Stock Exchange of India EMERGE Platform  

Post the initial public offering, total 83,37,273 equity shares of the company were listed on the National Stock Exchange 
of India EMERGE Platform [NSE EMERGE] w.e.f. 27th February, 2024. The Stock Code is: DEEM and the ISIN is 

INE586O01011.  

[k] Foreign Direct Investment and Foreign Collaboration Agreement 

There is no foreign direct investment in the company and the company has not entered into any foreign collaboration 
agreement.   

[l] Subsidiaries, Joint Venture and Associate Companies  

The company does not have any subsidiary company, joint venture or associate company.  

Now the approval of the members by special resolutions is requested for the reappointment of Mr. Jyoti Prasad 
Bhattacharya as the Managing Director & CEO for 5 Years w.e.f. 1st October, 2024 to 30th September, 2029 upon the 

remuneration, perquisites and terms and conditions of appointment as set out above. 

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel [including their relatives] except Mr. Bhattacharya himself and Mr. 

Dev Jyotiprasad Bhattacharya, Whole-Time Director who is Son of Mr. Jyoti Prasad Bhattacharya and their relatives, are 
interested in the resolution.  

Your Directors recommend passing of the resolutions as special resolutions. 

 

Item No.4. Increase in the remuneration of Mr. Dev Bhattacharya [DIN: 09842191], Whole-Time Director  

The members are apprised that the Board of Directors have at their meeting held on 9th August,2024,  in accordance with 

the provisions of Section 196, Section 197 and Section 203 and other applicable provisions, if any, read with Schedule-V 

of the Companies Act, 2013, the Companies [Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel] Rules, 2014 
[including the amendments made therein from time to time], the applicable provisions of the Articles of Association of the 

company and the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and subject to the approval of the 

members by special resolutions, appointed Mr. Dev Bhattacharya as the Additional Director and Whole-Time Director for 5 

years w.e.f. 25th April,2023 on the remuneration and the terms and conditions of appointment as below. 
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[1] Remuneration shall be Rs.1,00,000/- per month [inclusive of salary, dearness allowance, commission and other 
allowances].    

[2] The Whole-Time Director shall be entitled to use the company’s car, all the expenses for the maintenance of and 

running of the same including salary of the driver to be borne by the company. 

[3] The Whole-Time Director shall be entitled to participate in provident fund, gratuity fund or such other schemes for the 
employees, which the company may establish from time to time 

[4] The Whole-Time Director shall not be entitled to sitting fees for attending the meeting of the Board of Directors or the 

Committees thereof. 

[5] The Whole-Time Director shall be entitled to the reimbursement of all expenses including local and outside travelling, 
entertainment and other out-of pocket expenses incurred in connection with the business of the company. [6] The Board 

of Directors shall be at liberty from time to time to appoint any other person or persons to be the whole-Time Director.    

[7] The Whole-Time Director shall not be liable to retire by rotation.  

[8] The Whole-Time Director shall be free to resign his office by giving 3 [Three] calendar months’ notice in writing to the 
company. The company shall also be free to terminate the services of the Whole-Time Director by giving 3 [Three] 

calendar months’ notice. 

[9] If at any time the office of the Whole-Time Director is determinate before the expiry of his term of office, the Whole-

Time Director shall be entitled to compensation for loss of office in accordance with and subject to the restriction laid 
down in Section 196 and Section 197 and Schedule V of the Act and the Rules. 

The information of Mr. Dev Bhattacharya and the company as required under Section 197 and Schedule V of the Act and 

the Rules are as under: 

[a] Mr. Dev Bhattacharya 
Mr. Dev Bhattacharya, aged 35 years is BSc and Certificate- YEP [Young Entrepreneurs Programme] IIMA. Mr. 

Bhattacharya has developed skills in production planning, IT development and management, corelating data analysis and 

strategy, QMS development, R&D and multi-lingual relationship [Russian, Japanese, Ukraine and German] and technical 

process improvements.   
Mr. Bhattacharya is Partner in Diacut Machining since 2017, which is engaged in job works of pass cutting and finish 

machining for clients and procurement of raw materials, rolling mill parts and accessories for rolling mills. Also Mr. 

Bhattacharya is Promoter - Director and Member of Diacut Rolls Private Limited incorporated on 29th December,2022. Mr. 

Jyoti Prasad Bhattacharya, Father of Mr. Dev Bhattacharya is Managing Director & CEO of the company. No other Director 
on the Board of Directors and no Key Managerial Personnel is relative of Mr. Bhattacharya. As on 31st March, 2024 and on 

the date of this notice Mr. Dev Bhattacharya is holding in his name 69,630 equity shares of Rs.10/- each of the company 

representing 0.84 % of the paid-up equity share capital. As on 31st March,2024 and on the date of this notice the 

relatives of Mr. Bhattacharya are holding total 55,24,992 equity shares of Rs.10/- each of the company representing 
66.28 % of the paid-up equity share capital. Thus, as on 31st March,2024 and on the date of this notice Mr. Bhattacharya 

and his relatives are holding total 67.85 % of the paid-up share capital of the company.  

During the financial year 2023-24, Mr. Dev Bhattacharya has attended the meetings of the Board of Directors, 

Committees of the Board of Directors and the meetings of the Members as under. 

Sr. 

No.  

Board of Directors/Board 

Committees / Members of the 

company  

Meetings held during the Financial 

Year 2023-24  

Meetings attended by Mr. 

Bhattacharya 

1 Board of Directors  15 [Entitled to attend 14]  14 

2 IPO Committee  8 8 

4 Members Meetings [i] 20th Annual General Meetings [ii] 

5 Extra Ordinary General Meetings 

[i] 20th Annual General Meeting 

and [ii] 5 Extra Ordinary General 

Meetings 

[b] Company  

Deem Roll-Tech Limited [the company] [CIN: U27109GJ2003PLC042325] was incorporated as private limited company on 
01/05/2003 under the Companies Act, 1956.The company was converted into public limited company on 12/02/2008. The 

registered office of the company is situated at Survey No. 110/1, P-1, 110/2, Ganeshpura-Dhanali Road, Village: 

Ganeshpura, Tal: Kadi, Dist: Mehsana- 382729, Gujarat. The corporate office of the company is situated at C-3/301, 

Anushruti, Opp. New-York Tower, Near Thaltej Cross Roads, S.G. Highway, Ahmedabad-380051, Gujarat. 
[c] Products and Production Facilities 

[1] The company is one of the leading manufacturers of steel and alloy rolls in India, which constitute the building blocks 

of the iron and steel rolling mill industry. The rolls production was started in 2005.  

[2] The company currently has 3 manufacturing Units as below.  
[a] Unit 1- Plot No.1006 /1007, GIDC Chhatral, Ta: Kalol, Dist: Gandhinagar [Gujarat]  

[b] Unit 2- Survey No. 110/1, P-1,110/2, Ganeshpura, Tal: Kalol, Dist. Mehsana [Gujarat] 

[c] Unit 3- P.O. Sinhet, P.S. Danpur, Dist: Hooghly [West Bengal]  

[3] The present manufacturing capacity of the above Units is 6,600 MT finished steel rolls per year. With many reputed 
rolling mills in India and abroad as company’s customers, it strives to provide the best quality processes in the industry as  

a result of which our rolls are one of the finest available. 

[d] Financial Performance 
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The details of financial performance of the company for the years ended 31st March, 2023 and 31st March, 2022 are as 
under.  

              Amount [Rs.]  

Particulars   31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 

Paid up Equity Capital 1,38,32,400 1,38,32,400 

Total Income 104,51,65,183 92,09,03,234 

Profit Before Interest, Depreciation and Tax 13,28,02,202 9,71,22,290 

Profit After Interest, Depreciation and Tax  7,07,94,259 5,94,50,853 

Balance of Term Loans and Working Capital from Banks 19,98,82,458 15,53,03,966 

Reserves and Surplus [Including Revaluation Reserve of Rs. 10,49,57,364]  47,83,78,685 42,14,88,023 

 

The capacity utilization of 84.13% and 92.54% have been achieved for the years ended 31 st March, 2022 and 31st March, 
2023.   

The Effective Capital on 31/03/2022 is Rs. 36,31,79,123/- and 31st March, 2023 is Rs. 40,71,16,905/-under Section 196 

and Section 197 and Schedule V [Part II Explanation I] of the Companies Act, 2013. 

It is stated that the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024 are placed for approval and 
adoption by the members at Item No.1 in the notice convening this twenty-first annual general meeting. The financial 

performance of the company for the year ended 31st March, 2024 is as under.  

                                                                                                                       Amount [Rs.] 

Particulars   31st March, 2024 

Paid up Equity Capital  8,33,72,720/- 

Total Income 1,01,43,35,936 

Profit Before Interest, Depreciation and Tax 14,27,93,096 

Profit After Interest, Depreciation and Tax  7,81,24,879 

Balance of Term Loans and Working Capital from Banks 21,77,93,022 

Reserves and Surplus [Including Revaluation Reserve of Rs. 10,49,57,364]  75,92,28,335 

 

The capacity utilization of 94% has been achieved for the year ended 31st March, 2024.  

The Effective Capital on 31/03/2024 is Rs. 76,06,40,767/- under Section 196 and Section 197 and Schedule V [Part II 
Explanation I] of the Companies Act, 2013.  

[e] Expansion Project  

The expansion project for manufacturing of flat product rolls is under implementation at Unit 2, Ganeshpura, Tal: Kalol, 

Dist. Mehsana [Gujarat].  
[f] Bonus Issue  

During the Financial Year 2023-24, 44,54,032 equity shares of Rs.10/- each were issued and allotted as bonus shares to 

those members, whose names were appearing in the register of members on the record date i.e. 4 th July, 2023, in the 

ration of 322:100 [i.e. 322 fully paid bonus equity shares for 100 equity shares held] by capitalizing Rs. 4,45,40,320/- 
from the balance of the share premium account.  

[g] Private Placement 

During the Financial Year 2023-24, in January, 2024 the Board had, after approval by special resolutions by the members 

at the extra-ordinary general meeting, issued and allotted 2,32,000 equity shares of Rs.10/- at the premium of Rs.119/- 
per equity share i.e. at the issue price of Rs.129/- per equity share on preferential basis by private placement.    

[h] Initial public offering of the equity shares 

The initial public offering [the issue] of the equity shares of the company offering 22,68,000 equity shares of Rs.10/- each 

at the issue price of Rs.129/- per equity share [i.e. at the premium of Rs.119/- per equity share], aggregating to 
Rs.2925.72 lakhs was opened for 3 days from 20th February,2024. The objects of the issue were funding capital 

expenditure towards project for expansion of the existing manufacturing facility at the Ganeshpura Unit, funding of the 

additional working capital requirements and general corporate purposes.  The issue had received overwhelming response 

from the investors and was oversubscribed 256.55 times.  
[i] Paid up Share Capital 

As on 31st March, 2024 and on the date of this notice, the paid-up share capital has been Rs. 8,33,72,720/- divided into 

divided into 83,37,272 equity shares of Rs.10/- each.   

[j] Listing on National Stock Exchange of India EMERGE Platform  
Post the initial public offering, total 83,37,273 equity shares of the company were listed on the National Stock Exchange 

of India EMERGE Platform [NSE EMERGE] w.e.f. 27th February, 2024. The Stock Code is: DEEM and the ISIN is 

INE586O01011.  

[k] Foreign Direct Investment and Foreign Collaboration Agreement 
There is no foreign direct investment in the company and the company has not entered into any foreign collaboration 

agreement.   

[l] Subsidiaries, Joint Venture and Associate Companies  

The company does not have any subsidiary company, joint venture or associate company.  
Now the approval of the members by special resolutions is requested for increase in the remuneration to Rs.2,00,000/- 

per month w.e.f. 1st August, 2024 of Mr. Dev Jyotiprasad Bhattacharya and other terms and conditions of appointment as 

set out above. 

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel [including their relatives] except Mr. Dev Jyotiprasad Bhattacharya 
and Mr. Jyoti Prasad Bhattacharya, Managing Director & CEO and   their relatives are interested in the resolutions.  
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Your Directors recommend passing of the resolutions as special resolutions. 

 

Item No.5. Approval of transactions with related party  

It is informed that Diacut Machining [Diacut], is a Partnership Firm, owned by Mr. Dev Bhattacharya and Mrs. Manjushree 
Bhattacharya, Son and Daughter-in-Law of Mr. Jyoti Prasad Bhattacharya, Managing Director & CEO.  

Mr. Dev Bhattacharya is the Whole-Time Director of the company. Mr. Dev Bhattacharya and his Wife Mrs. Manjushree 

Bhattacharya each are holding 69,630 equity shares in the company.  

It is further informed that Diacut is a CNC Machine Shop, located at Kadi, is having adequate infrastructure, machinery 
and trained manpower for carrying out jobs of pass cutting of rolls and has expertise for procurement of raw materials 

required for production of steel rolls. It is also informed that Diacut is a Related Party within the meaning of Section 2[76] 

of the Companies Act,2013 [the Act].  

It is informed that the Board had at the Meeting No.15/2023-24 held on 21st March,2024 , , as recommended by the Audit 
Committee and as per Section 188 of the Act  and Rule 15 of the Companies [Meetings of Board and its Powers] Rules, 

2014 [the Rules] as amended and applicable provisions of the SEBI [Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements], 

2015 as amended and the Policy on Materiality of Related Party Transactions and on Dealing with Related Pary 

Transactions, subject to the approval by the members for continuing the arrangements at the twenty-first annual general 
meeting by ordinary resolution, for continuing the arrangements for entering  into transactions with Diacut for job works 

of pass cutting of rolls and procurement of  rolls scrap for the Financial Year 2024-25 ending 31st March,2025  on the 

following terms and conditions.   

Job works of pass cutting of rolls 
[a] At the time of assigning the job works, it will be ensured that [a] the in-house facility is not available and the job work 

charges payable to Diacut and other terms and conditions for the job work are in tune with the prevailing market rates 

and conditions etc. and [b] the job works are completed by Diacut as per the set quality standards and delivery time as 

also as per other terms and conditions stipulated.  
Procurement of rolls scrap 

[a] When the orders for procurement of raw materials will be placed with Diacut, it will be ensured that [a] the rates 

offered by Diacut and the delivery period and all other terms and conditions etc. are comparable with the prevailing 

market trends and [b] the quality of raw materials supplied are as stipulated and the delivery schedule and other terms 
and conditions are adhered to.  

Total Limit  

The total value of all the transactions with Diacut [ both job works and procurement of raw materials] for the financial 

year 2024-25 i.e., from 1st April,2024 to 31st March, 2025 will not exceed Rs. 6.50 crores.  
Quarterly Reports 

The quarterly reports of transactions with Diacut shall be placed before the Audit Committee.  

It is stated that with the above-said terms and conditions, the transactions with Diacut will be in the ordinary course of 

business, at arm’s length basis and in the interest of the company. 
It is stated that pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act read with Rule 

15 Rules, as amended till date, the members are requested to accord their approval to the resolutions by ordinary 

resolution.    

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the company or their relatives, except Mr. Jyoti Prasad Bhattacharya 
and Mr. Dev Bhattacharya, are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution. 

 

Item No.6. Ratification of the remuneration payable to Cost Auditor appointed by the Board of Directors for 

the Financial Year 2024-25 ending 31st March, 2025  
 

It is informed that the Board of Directors have at the Meeting No.2/2024-25 held on 9th, August,2024 approved the 

appointment of M/s M. I. Prajapati & Associates Cost Accountants [Firm Registration No. 101450], Cost Accountants, 

Ahmedabad at the remuneration of Rs.80,000/- + GST +Misc. Expenses to conduct cost audit of the company for the 
Financial Year 2024-25. 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148[3] of the Companies Act,2013 read with Rule 14 of the Companies 

[Audit and Auditor Rules], 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor is required to be ratified by the members 

of the company. 
None of the Directors and the Key Managerial Personnel of the company or their relatives are in any way, concerned or 

interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution. 

Your Directors recommend passing of the ordinary resolution by the members for their approval. 

                                                                                           

Date: 09th August, 2024 

Place: Ahmedabad 

By order of the Board of Directors    

 
  

Registered Office 

Survey No. 110/1, P-1,110/2,  

Ganeshpura, Tal: Kalol, Dist. Mehsana,  
Gujarat State -382715 

sd/- 

Alka Kumari 

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 
[ACS No.: 31249] 
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Deem Roll -Tech Limited  

Directors’ Report 

The Members, 

Deem Roll-Tech Limited  

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 21st Annual Report of the business and operations of your company Deem 

Roll-Tech Limited accompanied with audited financial statements for the financial year 2023-24 ended 31st March, 2024. 

 

Financial Highlights 

Your company’s financial performance for the financial year 2023-24 ended 31st March, 2024 is summarized below. 

 

                                                                                                                                               Amount [Rs. in Lakhs]  

Particulars 

 

Financial Year 

2023-24 

Financial Year 

2022-23 

Revenue from Operations  10083.28 10337.13 

Other Income  60.08 114.52 

Total Revenue  10143.36 10451.65 

Less Expenses [excluding Interest, Depreciation and Tax] 8715.43 9123.63 

Profit Before Interest, Depreciation and Tax  1427.93 1328.02 

Less: Interest  262.78 198.29 

Profit before Depreciation and Tax  1165.15 1129.73 

Less: Depreciation 177.22 171.38 

Profit before Tax 987.93 958.35 

Less: Exceptional Items  0.00 0.00 

Less: Provision for MAT Tax  164.90 262.20 

Add: MAT Credit Entitlement 0.00 0.00 

Less: Deferred Tax Liability   -41.77 -11.79 

Profit After Tax  781.25 707.94 

Add: Balance of Profit Brought Forward 280.74 2238.47 

Add: MAT Credit not recognised earlier in books adjusted in 
opening reserves & surplus 0.00 0.00 

Balance available for appropriation  3588.63 2946.41 

Less: Current Tax Expenses relating to prior years 32.76 139.04 

Less: Transfer to General Reserves  0.00 0.00 

Surplus carried to Balance Sheet 3555.87 2807.38 

 

Performance Review  

Your company is having 3 Units -2 in Gujarat at Chhatral and Ganeshpura and 1 in West Bengal at Hooghly- with total 

production capacity of 6,600 MT finished rolls per year. Your company has over the period developed base of loyal 

customers of reputed rolling mills both in India and abroad, as the company is not only supplying best quality rolls but also 

has been offering the holistic package to them so that they get optimum results.  

During the year under review, the production of 6203.70 MT and capacity utilization of 94% has been achieved as 

compared to the production of 6107.71 MT and capacity utilization of 92.54 % achieved in the previous year.  

During the year under review total revenue of Rs. 10,143.36 lakhs have been achieved as compared to total revenue of Rs. 

10,451.65 lakhs achieved in the previous year. During the year under review net profit after tax of Rs. 781.25 lakhs have 

been achieved as compared to net profit after tax of Rs.707.94 lakhs achieved in the previous year.  

Also, during the year under review the company has achieved exports turnover of Rs.1,759.33 lakhs, which is 17.34 % of 

the total revenue. 
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Expansion Project  

The expansion project at Ganeshpura Unit for manufacturing of flat product rolls is under implementation on the land of 

approx. 4,142 sq. meters. The construction of factory shed of 3,500 sq. meters, office building, utilities etc.  are under 

progress and orders for almost all machineries are placed. It is expected that after completion of the project and the trial 

runs the commercial production will commence from 1st April , 2025.  

Dividend  

Owing to the growing business needs and the necessity to plough back the profits in the business, your Directors do not 

recommend dividend for the year under report. 

Transfer of unclaimed dividend to Investor Education Fund  

During the year under review, pursuant to the provisions of Section 124 and Section 125 [2] of the Companies Act,2013, no 

amount is required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund, as of the company has not declared 

dividend any time in the earlier financial years. 

Transfer to Reserves  

Your Directors have decided to retain the entire amount of net profits for the year under review, in the Profit and Loss 

Account. 

Changes in the nature of business  

During the year under review and upto the date of this report, there is no change in the business of the company and it 

continues to carry on the business of manufacturing of steel and alloy rolls.   

Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the company which have 

occurred between the end of the financial year of the company to which the financial statements relate and 

the date of this report    

There have been no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the company which have 

occurred between the end of the financial year to which the financial statements relate and upto the date of this report 

except the  increase in the authorized share capital, issue and allotment of equity shares on preferential basis by private 

placement and initial public offering of equity shares as described hereinbelow.  

Share Capital  

Authorized Share Capital  

During the year under review, approval was accorded the members by special resolution at the extra-ordinary general 

meeting held on 9th May, 2023, for increase in the authorized share capital of the company from Rs.1,50,00,000/- divided 

into 15,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each to Rs.9,00,00,000/-divided into 90,00,000 equity shares of Rs.10/- each by 

amendment in Clause V of the Memorandum of Association of the company.     

Bonus Issue  

During the year under review, as approved by the members by special resolutions at the extra-ordinary general meeting held 

on 30th June, 2023, 44,54,032 equity shares of Rs.10/- each were issued and allotted as bonus shares to those members, 

whose names were appearing in the register of members on the record date i.e. 4th July,2023, in the ration of 322:100 [i.e. 

322 fully paid bonus equity shares for 100 equity shares held] by capitalizing Rs. 4,45,40,320/- from the balance of the share 

premium account.  

Private Placement  

During the year under review, after approval by the members by special resolutions at the extra-ordinary general meeting 

held on 29th January, 2024, 2,32,000 equity shares of Rs.10/- at the premium of Rs.119/- per equity share i.e. at the issue 

price of Rs.129/- per equity share were issued and allotted on 3rd February,2024 on preferential basis by private placement.    
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Initial Public Offering  

The initial public offering [the issue] of the equity shares of the company offering 22,68,000 equity shares of Rs.10/- each 

at the issue price of Rs.129/- per equity share [i.e. at the premium of Rs.119/- per equity share], aggregating to Rs.2925.72 

lakhs was opened for 3 days from 20th February, 2024 to 22nd February, 2024. The objects of the issue were funding capital 

expenditure towards project for expansion of the existing manufacturing facility at the Ganeshpura Unit, funding of the 

additional working capital requirements and general corporate purposes.  The issue had received overwhelming response 

from the investors and was oversubscribed 256.55 times. The 22,68,000 equity shares were issued and allotted to the 

successful applications on 23rd February, 2024. 

Listing on National Stock Exchange of India Limited - EMERGE Platform  

Post the initial public offering of the equity shares as above, total 83,37,273 equity shares of the company were listed on 

the National Stock Exchange of India Limited EMERGE Platform-NSE EMERGE- and trading had commenced w.e.f. 27th 

February, 2024. The Stock Code is: DEEM and the ISIN is INE586O01011.  

Paid up Share Capital 

As on 31st March, 2024 and on the date of this report, the paid-up share capital of the company is Rs. 8,33,72,720/- divided 

into divided into 83,37,272 equity shares of Rs.10/- each.   

Statement of deviations in utilization funds of the initial public offering. 

As per the provisions of the Regulation 32[1][a]and [b] of the SEBI [Listing Obligations and Disclosuress Requirement] 

Regulation 2015, the statement of deviations in the utilization of the proceeds of the initial public offering upto 31 st March, 

2024 was reviewed by the Audit Committee at the Meeting held on 27th May, 2024 and required information  was filed with 

the National Stock Exchange of India Limited. 

It is stated as that the procedure of initial public offering and listing of company was completed on 27th February, 2024, the 

funds of the initial public offering were received in March,2024, therefore the funds could not be utilized as per original 

allocation. It is stated that against the original allocation, upto 31st March, 2024 [i] an amount of Rs.7.06 crores towards 

funding capital expenditure of expansion project and Rs. 0.77 crores towards general corporate purposes could not be 

utilized whereas [ii] full amount of allocation of an amount of Rs.1.50 towards funding of the working capital requirements 

could be utilized.  

Auditors and their Reports  

Statutory Auditors  

During  the year under review, at the twentieth annual general meeting held on 22nd June, 2023, pursuant to the 

recommendations of the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors , the members had by ordinary resolution appointed,  

S N Shah & Associates, Chartered Accountants [Firm Registration No.109782W] as the Statutory Auditors of the company 

for 5 years from the financial year 2023-24 to the financial year 2027-28 and to hold office from the conclusion of the 

twentieth annual general meeting till the conclusion of the twenty-fifth annual general meeting in place of  Jaymal Thakore 

& Co., Chartered Accountants [ Firm Registration No. 104098W] whose first term of appointment for five years had ended 

on the conclusion of the  twentieth annual general meeting.  

The Statutory Auditors’ Report for the year under review i.e. financial year , does not contain any qualifications, reservations 

or adverse remarks. Further, in terms of Section 143 of the Companies Act,2013 read with Companies [Audit & Auditors] 

Rules, 2014, as amended, no fraud has been reported by the Statutory Auditors of the Company, where they have reasons 

to believe that an offence involving fraud is being or has been committed against the company by its officers or employees.     

Cost Audit   

During the year under review, as required under the provisions of Section 148 and other applicable provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 [the Act] read with the Companies [Audit and Auditors] Rules, 2014 [the Rules], the Board had 
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appointed M/s M I Prajapati & Associates, Cost Accountants [FRN101450] as the Cost Auditor for conducting the cost audit 

of the records of the company for the financial year 2023-24 ending 31st March, 2024. The members had at the twentieth 

annual general meeting held on 22nd June, 2023, ratified the remuneration of the Cost Auditor fixed by the Board.  

During the current year, as required under the provisions of Section 148 and other applicable provisions of the Act and the 

Rules, the Board have appointed M/s M I Prajapati & Associates, Cost Accountants [FRN101450] as the Cost Auditor for 

conducting the cost audit of the records of the company for the financial year 2024-25 ending 31st March, 2025.  The 

members are approached at the twenty-first annual general meeting convened on 19th September,2024 for the ratification 

of the remuneration of the Cost Auditor fixed by the Board.  

Internal Audit  

During the year under review, as per the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made 

thereunder, the Board had appointed SNDK & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants having experience and adequate 

manpower, as the Internal Auditors for the financial year 2023-24 ended 31st March, 2024 and the quarterly reports given 

by them were considered and reviewed by the Audit Committee.  

During the current year, the Board has, as per the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules 

made thereunder, appointed SNDK & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants having experience and adequate manpower, as 

the Internal Auditors for the financial year 2024-25 ended 31st March, 2025  and the quarterly reports given by them will be 

considered and reviewed by the Audit Committee.  

Secretarial Auditor   

During the current year, as required under the provisions of Section 204 [1] of the Companies Act, 2013 [the Act] and the 

Rules made thereunder the Board had appointed M/s Utkarsh Shah and Co., Practicing Company Secretary, as the 

Secretarial Auditor for the secretarial audit for the financial year 2023-24 ended 31st March, 2024.  

The Secretarial Audit Report given by M/s M/s Utkarsh Shah and Co., Practicing Company Secretary is attached herewith as 

Annexure-1. It is informed that the report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remarks or disclaimer, 

that may call for any explanation under Section 134 of the Act from the Board.  

Board of Directors, Committees, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel   

Board of Directors  

During the year under review and on the date of this report, the composition of Board of Directors of the company is in 

compliance with the provisions of Section 149 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules 

made thereunder, the Articles of Association of the company as also the applicable provisions, if any, of the SEBI [Listing 

Obligations and Disclosures Requirements] Regulations, 2015, as amended.   

During the year under review, the Board had at their meeting held on 14th July, 2024, appointed Mr. Jaydev Ramesh Betai, 

Non-Executive Director as Chairman of the Board in place of Mrs. Geeta Chowdhury, Independent Director.  

During the year under review, Mr. Dev Jyotiprasad Bhattacharya Son of Mr. Jyoti Prasad Bhattacharya, Managing Director & 

CEO was, subject to approval by special resolutions by the members at the twentieth annual general meeting appointed as 

the Whole-Time Director for 5 years w.e.f. 25th April,2023, by the Board at meeting held on 25th April, 2023. The members 

had at the twentieth annual general meeting held on 22nd June, 2023 accorded approval by special resolutions to the 

appointment of Mr. Dev Jyotiprasad Bhattacharya as the Whole-Time Director for 5 years w.e.f. 25th April, 2023.   

Independent Directors  

It is reported that during the year under review, the members had at the extra-ordinary general meeting held on 24th 

July,2023, resolved by special resolutions to reappoint Mrs. Geeta Chowdhury and Mr. Nihar Kanti Bandyopadhyay, 

Independent Directors for the second and final term of five years from 4th September,2023 to 3rd September, 2028.    
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It is reported that both Mrs. Geeta Chowdhury and Mr. Nihar Kanti Bandyopadhyay, Independent Directors [ the 

Independent Directors]- have given declaration that [a] they meet the criteria of independence as laid down under Section 

149[6] of the Companies Act, 2013 [the Act] and Regulation 25[8] read with Regulation 16[1] [b] of the SEBI [Listing 

Obligations and Disclosures Requirements] Regulations , 2015, as amended and [b] they have complied with the Code for 

Independent Directors prescribed in Schedule IV to the Act. It is also reported that in the opinion of the Board the 

Independent Directors are independent of the management and there has been no change in the circumstances affecting 

their status as Independent Directors of the company.  

Disclosures by Directors  

It is reported that during the year under review, the Directors have submitted notices of interest under Section 184[1] of 

the Companies Act,2013 [the Act] and intimation under Section 164[2] of the Act. It is further reported that, none of the 

Directors of the company is serving as a Whole-Time Director in any other listed company and the number of their 

directorships is within the limits laid down under Section 165 of the Act.  

Director retiring by rotation  

At the ensuing twenty-first annual general meeting, pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 [6] of the Companies Act, 

2013 and the applicable provisions of the Articles of Association of the company, Mr. Jaydev Ramesh Betai, Director [DIN: 

08218474] retires by rotation and being eligible has offered himself for reappointment. The proposal for consideration by 

the members for reappointment of Mr. Jaydev Ramesh Betai as Director retiring by rotation is included as ordinary business 

in the notice dated 9th August, 2024 convening the twenty-first annual general meeting.  

Reappointment of Mr. Jyoti Prasad Bhattacharya [DIN: 00340485] as the Managing Director & CEO   

Your Directors have,  at their meeting held on 9th August, 2024 , under Section 197, Section 198, Section 203 and Schedule 

V and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,2013 [the Act], as amended , Companies [Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel] Rules, 2014, as amended, the applicable provisions, if any,  of the SEBI [ Listing 

Obligations and Disclosures Requirements] Regulations, 2015 [the SEBI LODR],  as amended , the applicable provisions of 

the Articles of Association of the company and  as  recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and 

subject to the approval of the members at the ensuing twenty-first annual general by special resolution, accorded their 

approval for the reappointment of Mr. Jyoti Prasad Bhattacharya as the Managing Director & CEO of the company for a term 

of 5 years w.e.f. 1st October, 2024. The requisite proposal for reappointment of Mr. Jyoti Prasad Bhattacharya as the 

Managing Director & CEO by the members by special resolution is included as special business in the notice dated 9th 

August, 2024 convening the twenty-first annual general meeting. The remuneration and other terms and conditions of 

reappointment of Mr. Jyoti Prasad Bhattacharya and other required information are given in detail in the explanatory 

statement under Section 102 of the Act and Regulation 36 [3] of the SEBI LODR attached to the notice dated 9 th August, 

2024 for convening the twenty-first annual general meeting.  

Revision in the remuneration of Mr. Dev Jyotiprasad Bhattacharya [DIN: 09842191] Whole Time -Director  

Your Directors have at their meeting held on 9th August, 2024 , under Section 197, Section 198, Section 203 and Schedule V 

and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,2013 [the Act] , as amended , Companies [Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel] Rules, 2014, as amended, the applicable provisions, if any, of the SEBI [ Listing 

Obligations and Disclosures Requirements] Regulations, 2015 [the SEBI LODR] , as amended,  the applicable provisions of 

the Articles of Association of the company and  as  recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and 

subject the approval of the members at the ensuing twenty-first annual general by special resolution, keeping view the 

increased work-load and prevailing industry trends accorded their approval for the revision w.e.f. 1st August, 2024 , in the 

remuneration of Mr. Dev Jyotiprasad Bhattacharya Whole-Time to Rs. 2 lakhs per month [inclusive of salary, dearness 

allowance, other allowances, commission]. The requisite proposal for the revision in the remuneration of Mr. Dev 
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Jyotiprasad Bhattacharya, Whole-Time Director, by the members by special resolution is included as special business in the 

notice dated 9th August,2024 convening the twenty-first annual general meeting. The required details and information of the 

proposal are given in detail in the explanatory statement under Section 102 of the Act and Regulation 36 [3] of the SEBI 

LODR attached to the notice dated 9th August, 2024 for convening the twenty-first annual general meeting.  

Appointments and changes in the Key Managerial Personnel  

It is reported that during the year under review: 

[a] Mr. Janak Navinchandra Gajjar was appointed as the Chief Financial Officer w.e.f.  23rd May, 2023.     

[b] Ms. Sweta Talreja appointed as the Company Secretary and Compliance Office w.e.f. 1st July,2023 had resigned from 

the services of the company w.e.f. 30th November, 2023.  

[c] Ms. Alka Kumari was appointed as the Company Secretary w.e.f. 1st December, 2023 and as the Compliance Officer 

w.e.f. 7th December, 2023.  

It is further reported that from the close of the year under review and upto the date of this report there are no changes in 

the Key Managerial Personnel. 

Meetings of the Board of Directors  

During the year under review, 15 meetings of the Board of Directors were held on 25th April,2023, 23rd May,2023,26th 

June,2023, 4th July,2023, 14th July,2023 , 31st July,2023, 28th August,2023, 11th September, 2023 , 7th December, 2023, 23rd 

December,2023, 2nd January, 2024 , 13th January, 2024, 23rd January,2024, 13th February,2024 and 21st March, 2024 and 

the intervening gap between the meetings was within the period prescribed under Section 173 of the Companies Act, 2013.   

The details of attendance of the Directors at the meetings are as under. 

Sr. 

No. 

Names and Designations Meetings held 

during tenure  

Meetings 

Attended 

1 Mr. Jaydev Ramesh Betai, Non-Executive Director -Chairman from 14/07/2023 15 10 

2 Mr. Nihar Kanti Bandyopadhyay, Independent Director 15 8 

3 Mrs. Geeta Chowdhury, Independent Director – Chairman upto 14/07/2023 15 5 

4 Mr. Ranjit Anilukmar Dey , Non-Executive Director 15 13 

5 Mr. Pijush Kanti Dey, Non-Executive Director 15 8 

6 Mr. Jyoti Prasad Bhattacharya , Managing Director & CEO 15 15 

7 Mr. Dev Jyotiprasad Bhattacharya, Whole-Time Director – Appointed on 

25/04/2023 

14 14 

During the year under review, one meeting of the Independent Directors was held on 21st March, 2024. 

 

Committees of the Board  

 

Audit Committee  

The constitution of the Audit Committee is in accordance with the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act,2013 read 

with Rule 6 of the Companies [Meetings of the Board and its Powers] Rules, 2014 and Regulation 18 of the SEBI [Listing 

Obligations and Disclosures Requirements] Regulations, 2015 and other applicable guidelines. The Members of the Audit 

Committee are possessing financial / accounting expertise / exposure. The Company Secretary and Compliance Officer is to 

act as the Secretary of the Audit Committee.  

During the year under review, 7 meetings of the Audit Committee were held on 23rd May,2023, 28th August,2023, 7th 

December,23rd December, 2023, 2nd January,2024, 13th January,2024 and 21st March,2024.  

The composition of the Audit Committee and the details of the meetings held and attended by the Members are as under.  
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Name and Designation 
 

Status in Committee Meetings held  Meetings attended  

Mr. Nihar Kanti Bandyopadhyay , Independent Director Chairman 7 6 

Mrs. Geeta Chowdhury, Independent Director Member 7 2 

Mr. Jaydev Ramesh Betai  , Non-Executive Director Member 7 7 

 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee  

The constitution of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee in accordance with the provisions  of Section 178 of the 

Companies Act, 2013  read with Rule 6 of the Companies [Meetings of the Board and its Powers] Rules, 2014 and 

Regulation 19 of the SEBI [Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements] Regulations, 2015 and other applicable 

guidlines. The Company Secretary and Compliance Officer is to act as the Secretary of the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee. 

During the year under review, 5 meetings of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee were held on 25th April,2023, 23rd 

May,2023, 4th July,2023, 14th July,2023 and 21st March,2024.  

The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration  Committee and the details of the meetings held and attended by the 

Members are as under.  

Name and Designation  Status in Committee Meetings held  Meetings attended  

 

Mrs. Geeta Chowdhury, Independent Director  Chairman 5 4 

Mr. Nihar Kanti Bandyopadhyay, Independent 
Director   

Member 5 3 

Mr. Jaydev Ramesh Betai, Non-Executive Director  Member 5 5 

 

Stakeholders’ Relations Committee  

During the year under review, the Board had constituted the Stakeholders Relationship Committee, as per the provisions of 

the Section 178 [5] of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 the SEBI [Listing Obligations and Disclosures 

Requirements] Regulations,2015 and other applicable guidelines. The Company Secretary and Compliance Officer is to act 

as the Secretary of the Stakeholders’ Relations Committee. During the year under review, 1 meetings of the Stakeholders 

Relations Committee was held on 21st March, 2024.  

The composition of the Stakeholders’ Relations Committee and the details of the meetings held and attended by the 

Members are as under.  

Name Status in Committee Meetings held  Meetings Attended  

Mr. Nihar Kanti Bandyopadhyay, Independent 

Director   

Chairman  1 1 

Mr. Ranjit Anilkumar Dey, Non-Executive Director   Member 1 Nil 

Mr. Dev Bhattacharya, Whole Time Director  Member 1 1 

 

IPO Committee  

During the year under review, the Board had constituted the IPO Committee for taking various decisions in respect of the 

initial public offering. The Company Secretary and Compliance Officer is to act as the Secretary of the IPO Committee.  

During the year under review, 9 meetings of the IPO Committee were held on 19th July,2023, 29th December,2023, 11th 

January,2024, 15th January,2024, 24th January,2024, 3rd February,2023, 6th February,2024 and 23rd February,2024 and 28th 

February,2024.  

 

The composition of the IPO Committee and the details of the meetings held and attended by the Members are as under.  
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Name and Designation  Status in Committee Meetings 
held  

Meetings 
attended  

Mr. Jyoti Prasad Bhattacharya, Managing Director & CEO   Chairman  9 9 

Mr. Jaydev Ramesh Betai, Non-Executive Director    Member 9 9 

Mr. Dev Bhattacharya, Whole-Time Director  Member 9 9 

 

CSR Committee  

During the year under review, the Board had constituted the  CSR Committee as  per the provisions of the Section 135  of 

the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies [Corporate Social Responsibility Policy] Rules,2014. During the year under 

review, 2 meetings of the CSR Committee were held on 10th August, 2023 and 21st March, 2024. 

 

The composition of the CSR Committee and the details of the meetings held and attended by the Members are as under.  

Name and Designation  Status in 
Committee  

Meetings held  Meetings attended 
  

Mr. Nihar Kanti Bandyopadhyay, Independent Director  Chairman  2 2 

Mr. Ranjit Anilkumar Dey, Non-Executive Director   Member  2 1 

Mr. Jyoti Prasad Bhattacharya, Managing Director & CEO   Member  2 2 

 

Management Committee  

During the year under review, the Board had at their meeting held in the last quarter of 2024, for taking decisions on 

various administrative matters, constituted the Management Committee as below.  

Name Designation Status in Committee 

Mr. Jyoti Prasad Bhattacharya  Managing Director and CEO  Chairman 

Mr. Ranjit Anilkumar Dey Non-Executive Director Member 

Mr. Dev Bhattacharya  Whole- Time Director  Member 

During the year under review, no meeting of the Management Committee was held.   
 

General Meetings  

It is reported that during the year under review, twentieth annual general meeting of the members was held on 22nd June, 

2023. It is further reported that during the year under review, five extra-ordinary general meetings of the members were 

held on 17th April, 2023, 9th May, 2023, 30th June,2023, 24th July, 2023 and 25th January, 2024.   

Performance Evaluation  

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134 [3] [p]  and other applicable provisions of the of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

applicable provisions of the SEBI [Listing Obligations and Disclosuress Requirements] 2015, , the Board has carried the 

evaluation of its own performance, Board Committees, performance of the Chairman and the Individual Directors on the 

basis of various criteria provided in the Performance Evaluation Policy as adopted by the Board, which is placed on the 

website of the company at www.deemrolls.com 

Nomination and Remuneration Policy 

As required under the provisions of Section 178 [3][e] of the Companies Act,2013 and the Rules made thereunder , the 

Nomination and Remuneration Policy is adopted by the Board and is  is posted on the website of the company at 

www.deemrolls.com. 

Code of Conduct  

The Board has laid down Code of Conduct for the Directors and the Senior Management Personnel [the SMPs] of the 

company. It is reported that all the Directors and the SMPs have affirmed their compliance with the Code of Conduct. The 

Code of Conduct is posted on the website of the company at www.deemrolls.com.  

Prevention of Insider Trading  

http://www.deemrolls.com/
http://www.deemrolls.com/
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The Board has adopted the Code Conduct for Prohibition of Insider Trading [the Code] with a view to regulate trading in the 

equity shares of the company by the Directors and designated employees of the company. The Code requires pre-clearance 

for dealing in the company's equity shares and prohibits the purchase or sale of the company’s equity shares by the 

Directors and the designated employees while in possession of unpublished price sensitive information in relation to the 

company and during the period when the trading window is closed.  All the Directors and the designated employees have 

confirmed compliance with the Code. The Code has been posted on the website of the company at 

www.deemrolls.com/investors 

Vigil Mechanism and Whistle Blower Policy  

The company has Vigil Mechanism Whistle Blower Policy in line with the provisions of the Section 177 [9] of the Companies 

Act, 2013. This policy establishes a vigil mechanism for the Directors and employees to report their genuine concerns for 

actual or suspected fraud or violation of the company’s code of conduct. The said mechanism also provides for adequate 

safeguards against victimisation of the persons who use such mechanism and makes provision for direct access to the 

Chairman of the Audit Committee. The Vigil Mechanism and Whistle Blower Policy is posted on the website of the company 

at www.deemrolls.com 

Codes and policies in adherence to the SEBI [Listing Obligations and Disclosuress Requirements] 

Regulations, 2015  

The Board has formulated various codes and policies mandated under various provisions of the SEBI [Listing Obligations 

and Disclosures Requirements] Regulations, 2015, as amended, which are placed on the company’s website   mandated 

formulation of certain policies for all the listed companies. All the policies are available on the company's website at 

www.deemrolls.com 

CSR Initiatives 

The CSR Policy approved by the Board is placed at Annexure-2 to this Report. The Annual Report on the CSR Activities as 

prescribed under Section 135 of the Act and the Companies [Corporate Social Responsibility] Rules, 2014 in Form CSR 2 is 

placed at Annexure-3 to this Report.  

The CSR Policy and the details of CSR projects/activities approved by the CSR Committee and undertaken during the year 

under review are disclosed on the website of the company- www.deemrolls.com. 

Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments  

The details of loans, guarantees or investment covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are 

given in the Notes to the audited financial statements for the year under review. 

Related Party Arrangements / Transactions   

During  the year under review, the transactions entered into with the related party, as per the provisions of Section 2 [76] 

and Section 188 of the Companies Act,2013 [the Act] and Rule 15 of the Companies [Meetings of Board and its Powers] 

Rules, 2014 [the Rules] , were in the ordinary course of business, on arm’s length basis and were in the interest of the 

company and the proposal was presented before the Board with all the details and specifying the nature, value and terms 

and conditions of the transactions and recommendations of the Audit Committee and was approved by them. Also, the 

members had at the twentieth annual general meeting held on 22nd June, 2023 approved the arrangements along with the 

terms and conditions, for entering into transactions with the related party. As required under the provisions of Section 134 

[3] [h] of the Act read with Rule 8 [2] of the Companies [Accounts] Rules, 2014, the information regarding the transactions 

with the related party are given in Form No. AOC-2 in Annexure- 4 to this Report.  

Also, the during the year under review, the Board had at their meeting held on 21st  March, 2024, as per the provisions of 

Section 2 [76] and Section 188 of the Act and Rule 15 of the Rules, the applicable provisions, if any  of the SEBI [Listing 

Obligations and Disclosures Requirements Regulations], 2015, as amended, the  Policy on Materiality of Related Party 

Transactions and on Dealing with Related Party Transactions and the  recommendations of the Audit Committee, approved 

http://www.deemrolls.com/investors
http://www.deemrolls.com/
http://www.deemrolls.com/
http://www.deemrolls.com/
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the proposal for entering into transactions with the related party for the current financial year i.e. the financial year 2024-25 

ending 31st March, 2025 on the terms and conditions which make the transactions  in the ordinary course of business, on 

arm’s length basis and will be  in the interest of the company. It is reported that, as resolved by the Board, the members at 

the ensuing twenty-first annual general meeting are approached for approval by ordinary resolution for entering into 

transactions with the related party on the terms and conditions stipulated by the Board and that the requisite proposal is 

included as special business in the notice dated 9th August,2024 convening the twenty-first annual general meeting.    

It is stated that the Policy on Materiality of Related Party Transactions and on Dealing with Related Party Transactions as 

approved by the Board has been uploaded on the company’s website www.deemrolls.com.    

Conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo 

The information pertaining to conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo for 

the year under review, as required under Section 134 [3][m] of the Companies Act,2013 read with Rule 8[3] of Companies 

[Accounts] Rules, 2014 are given in Annexure-5 to this Report. 

Risk Management and Insurance  

Your company has put in place a well-defined risk management mechanism covering the risk mapping and trend analysis, 

risk exposure, potential impact and risk mitigation process. The objective of the mechanism is to minimize the impact of 

risks identified and taking advance actions to mitigate them.  The Risk Management Policy approved by the Board, is placed 

on the website of the company www.deemrolls.com. It is further It is reported that all the immovable and movable assets of 

the company are adequately insured. 

Directors’ Responsibility Statement  

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134 [3] [c] read with Section 134 [5] of the Companies Act, 2013 [the Act] your 

Directors confirm that: 

[a] in preparation of the annual financial statements for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024, the applicable accounting 

standards have been followed along with proper explanations relating to material departures 

[b] the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them constantly and made judgments and estimates 

that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the 

financial year 2023-24 ended 31st March, 2024 and of the profit of the company for that period 

[c] the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 

with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the company as also for preventing and detecting frauds and 

other irregularities   

[d] the Directors have prepared financial statements for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024 on a going concern basis 

[e] the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such internal financial 

controls are adequate and were operating effectively and 

[f] the Directors have devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such 

systems were adequate and operating effectively 

Internal Controls  

Your company has adequate and efficient internal control systems, commensurate with the type and size of its operations 

are further supplemented by internal audits regularly carried out by the internal auditors and review of their reports by the 

audit committee as also review by the management from time to time.  Your company has put in place proper internal 

control systems which provide protection to all its assets against loss from unauthorized use and ensures correct reporting 

of transactions.  

The internal financial controls with reference to financial statements as designed and implemented by the company which 

are adequate and commensurate with size, scale and complexities of its operations. During the year under review, no 

http://www.deemrolls.com/
http://www.deemrolls.com/
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material or serious observation has been received from the internal auditors of the company for inefficiency or inadequacy 

of such controls.  

Corporate Governance Report  

It is reported that pursuant to Regulation 15 [2] of SEBI [Listing Obligation and Disclosures Requirements] Regulation, 

2015, as amended, the provisions of corporate governance report are not applicable to the company as it is listed to on the 

SME Emerge Platform of the National Stock Exchange of India Limited.  Hence, corporate governance report is not required 

to be prepared by the company. 

 

Management and Discussion Analysis Report   

In compliance with the provisions of the Regulation 34 [2] and Schedule V of the SEBI [ Listing Obligations and Disclosures 

Requirements] Regulations, 2015 as amended, the Management Discussion and Analysis Report is annexed herewith as 

Annexure-6.  

Annual Return  

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 92 [3] and Section 134 [3] [a] of the Companies Act 2013, as amended,  read with 

Rule 12 of the Companies [Management and Administration] Rules, 2014, as amended , the draft Annual Return for the 

Financial Year 2023-24 is available on the website of the company at www.deemrolls.com.  

Segment-wise Reporting  

The company is operating into single reportable segment only.  

Disclosures of Accounting Treatment  

The financial results for the year under review i.e. the financial year 2023-24, have been prepared in accordance with the 

Companies [Indian Accounting Standards] Rules, 2015 [Ind AS] prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act,2013 

read with the rules as applicable and other recognized accounting policies and practices to the extent applicable.  

Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associate Companies  

During the year under review the company does not have any subsidiary, joint venture or associate company. Therefore, 

company is not required to prepare the consolidated financial statements as required under the provisions of Section 129 

[3] of the Companies Act,2013 and the Rules made thereunder.  

Fixed Deposits  

It is reported that during earlier years or during the year under review and up to the date of this report , the company has 

neither invited nor accepted deposits from the public or the members within the preview of Section 73 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 [the Act] read with the Companies [Acceptance of Deposits] Rules, 2014, [the Rules]  and therefore, details 

mentioned in Rule 8 [5] [v] and [vi] of the Companies [Accounts] Rules , 2014 are not required to be given.  

It is reported that during the financial year 2015-16 , as stipulated by the consortium of banks for sanction of financial 

assistance , the company had received total unsecured loans of Rs.45 lakhs from the Managing Director & CEO who is also 

Promoter of the company and his Wife. The unsecured loans received are covered under Rule 2[1] [c] [xiii] of the Rules and 

therefore are not deposits within the perview of Section 73 of the Act. The balance of the said unsecured loans at the end of 

the year under review i.e. on 31st March, 2024 and upto the date of this report is Rs.45 lakhs.  

Secretarial Standards  

It is reported that during the year under review, the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company 

Secretaries of India have been complied.  

Website 

http://www.deemrolls.com/
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As per Regulation 46 of SEBI [Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements] Regulations 2015, as amended, the 

company has maintained a functional website -www.deemrolls.com and all the information, details, documents and codes 

and policies as mandated are placed on the website.   

Significant/material orders passed by the Regulators/ Courts/ Tribunals  

It is reported that during the year under review and upto the date of this report, no significant/material orders have been 

passed by the Regulators/ Courts/ Tribunals which impact the going concern status of the company or company’s operations 

in future.    

Disclosures as required under various provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder 

The following Disclosures are made as required under various provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 [the Act]  and the 

Rules made thereunder.  

[1] During the year under review, the company has availed financial assistance from State Bank of India and an NBSC and 

as per the terms of their sanctions charge on the company’s assets has been created.  

[2] During the year under review, there have been no proceedings initiated against the company under Prohibition of 

Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988, as amended [formerly the Benami Transactions [Prohibition] Act, 1988] and the 

rules made thereunder.  

[3] During the year under review, the company does not have any transactions with the companies struck off under Section 

248 of the Act or Section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956.  

[4] The company has filed its annual return and audited financial statements in Form MGT 7 and Form AOC 4 XBRL 

respectively with the Registrar of Companies, Gujarat. 

[5] There have been no instances of any revision in the Board’s Report or the financial statement, hence Disclosures under 

Section 131 [1] of the Act is not required to be made. 

[6] The Company has not issued any shares to any employee, under any specific scheme, and hence, Disclosuress under 

Section 67 [3] Act are not required to be made. 

[7] The Company has not paid any commission to any of its Directors and hence, provision of Disclosures of commission 

paid to any Director as mentioned in Section 197 [14] of the Act is not applicable. 

[8] The Company has not issued [a] any share with differential voting rights [b] sweat equity shares [c] shares under any 

employee stock option scheme and hence no Disclosuress are required to be made as per the Companies [Share Capital and 

Debentures] Rules, 2014. 

[9] No application made and no proceedings are pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, during the year 

under review and upto the date of this report. 

[10] There are no instances of any One Time Settlement with any Bank, and therefore, details of difference between the 

amount of the valuation done at the time of one-time settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from the Banks 

or Financial Institutions, are not required to be given. 

[11] The company has not purchased its own shares nor has given loans to any entity or individuals or employees for 

purchase of company’s shares  

[12] In the paid-up share capital of the company, no shares have been held in trust for the benefits of employees, where the 

voting rights are not exercised directly by the employee and    

[13] The company has not issued any type of preference shares, debentures, bonds or warrants.  

Postal Ballot  

During the year under review, no postal ballot was conducted by the company.  
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Registrar and Transfer Agent  

Bigshare Services Private Limited [SEBI Registration No. INR000001385], having their office S/6-2, 6th Floor Pinnacle 

Business Park, Next to Ahura Centre, Mahakali Caves Road, Andheri [East] Mumbai - 400093, are the Registrar and Share 

Transfer Agents of the company.  

Disclosures under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace [Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal] Act, 

2013  

The company has zero tolerance towards sexual harassment at the work place and has adopted the Policy on Prevention of 

Sexual Harassment at Work Place,  in line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 

[Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal] Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, which is placed on the website of the 

company www.deemrolls.com   

It is reported that at the beginning of the year under review, no complaint of sexual harassment was pending and no such 

complaint was received during the year.   

 

Certificate under Regulation 17[8] of SEBI [Listing Regulations and Disclosuress Requiremtns] Requlations , 

2015  

The Certificate under Regulation 17 [8] of the SEBI  [Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements] Regulations, 2015 is 

placed at Annexure-7 to this report.  

Disclosuress relating to remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and particulars of employees:  

The information required under Section 197 [12] of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5[1] Companies [Appointment 

and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel] Rules, 2014 in respect of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and employees 

are given in Annexure 8 annexed herewith. 

Human Resources and Industrial Relations  

The company has well trained workforce for various areas of its activities. The industrial relations in the company’s plants 

and offices have been cordial throughout the year under report. 
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Place: Ahmedabad  

Date:  9th August, 2024                             For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

                                                                 
 

 sd/-               sd/- 

                                                             Jyoti Prasad Bhattacharya                  Dev Jyotiprasad Bhattacharya   

                                                             Managing Director & CEO                  Whole-Time Director    
                                                             [DIN: 00340485 ]                             [DIN: 09842191] 
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Annexure-1  
Report of the Secretarial Auditor  

 

FORM NO. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31.03.2024 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 
To, 

The Members, 

Deem Roll-Tech Limited 

C-3/301, Anushruti Apartment,  
Opp New York Tower,  

Nr. Jain Mandir,  

S.G. Highway,  

Ahmedabad – 380 054 
 

Dear Sirs, 

 

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices of Deem Roll-Tech Limited CIN L27109GJ2003PLC042325 (hereinafter called the Company). The 

Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/ 

statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. It is further stated that I have also relied up on the scanned 

documents and other papers in digital/ electronic mode, explanation and representations made/ submitted to me by the 
official of the Company for the financial year ended on 31st  March, 2024. 

 

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 

maintained by the Company and also the information provided in digital/ electronic mode by the Company, its officers, 
agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the 

Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st  March, 2024 (“Audit Period”), 

complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and 

compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter. Furthermore, 
the Company has been listed on National Stock Exchange of India Limited – SME Platform on 27th  February, 2024. 

 

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company 

for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2024 according to the provisions of: 
 

1. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made there under; 

 

2. *The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the Rules made there under 

 

3. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and bye-laws framed there under; 

 

4. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made there under to the extent of Foreign 

Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; 

 

5. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 

(‘SEBI Act’) 

 

a) *The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 

2011, as amended from time to time; 
b) *The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, as amended from 

time to time; 2009; 

c) *The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2009; 

d) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021; 
(Not Applicable during the Audit Period); 

e) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations 2021; 

(Not Applicable during the Audit Period); 

f) *The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client 2009; 
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g) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; 

(Not Applicable during the Audit Period); and 

h) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; 

(Not Applicable during the Audit Period); 
 

6.  The other laws, as informed and certified by the Management of the Company, which are specifically applicable to 

the Company based on the industry are as listed in Annexure – I and I report that based on the examination of the 

relevant documents and records, and as certified by the Management, prime facie it appears that the proper 

system exist in the Company to confirm compliance of the applicable laws. 

 

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the followings: 

 

i. *The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchanges. 

ii. *Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

iii. Secretarial Standards (SS-1 & SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

 

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 

Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. 

 

I further report that; 

 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive 

Directors, Woman Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that 

took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

 

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were 

sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 

clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

 

Board decisions are carried out with unanimous consent and therefore, no dissenting views were required to be 

captured and recorded as part of the minutes. 

 

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and 

operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

 

I further report that during the audit period, there were a instances of: 

 

(1) Initial Public Issue / Rights / Preferential issue of Shares / Debentures / Sweat Equity. 

 

I further report that during the audit period, there were no instances of: 

 

(1) Redemption/Buy Back of Securities. 

 

(2) Major decisions taken by the members in pursuance to Section 180 of the Companies Act, 2013 

 

(3) Foreign Technical Collaborations. 

 

(4) Merger / Amalgamation / Reconstruction etc. 
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*This is further to be noted that the Company has been listed on the National Stock Exchange of India Limited- SME 

Platform on 27th February, 2024. Accordingly the respective listing regulations applicable thereafter. 

 

Place: Ahmedabad 

Date: 9th  August, 2024 

 

For, Utkarsh Shah & Co. 

Company Secretaries 

 

 

            Sd/- 

FCS No 12526 CP No 26241  

UDIN: F012526F000941619  

Peer Review No.5123/2024 

 

Note: This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure-II and forms an integral part of 

this report. 
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Annexure- “I” 
 

1. ENVIRONMENT PROTECTION ACT, 1986 & OTHER ENVIRONMENTAL LAWS 

2. THE GOODS AND SERVICES ACT, 2016 

3. INDUSTRIES DEVELOPMENT AND REGULATIONS ACT, 1951 

4. INDIAN BOILER ACT, 1923 

5. PROFESSIONAL TAX, 1976 

6. NEGOTIABLE INSTRUMENT ACT, 1938 

7. THE FACTORIES ACT, 1948 

8. THE APPRENTICE ACT, 1961 

9. THE INDUSTRIAL DISPUTE ACT, 1947 

10. THE PAYMENT OF WAGES ACT, 1965 

11. THE PAYMENT OF BONUS ACT, 1965 

12. THE PAYMENT OF GRATUITY ACT, 1972 

13. THE MINIMUM WAGES ACT, 1946 

14. THE TRADE UNION ACT, 1926 

15. THE EMPLOYMENT EXCHANGE ACT 1952 

16. THE EMPLOYEES PROVIDENT FUND & MISC. PROVISIONS ACT, 1952 

17. INDUSTRIAL EMPLOYMENT (STANDING ORDERS) ACT, 946 & RULES 1957 

18. CHILD LABOUR (P&R) ACT,1986 & RULES 

19. INDIAN BOILER ACT, 1923 & REGULATIONS 

20. INDIAN STAMP ACT, 1899 

21. THE FOREIGN TRADE (DEVELOPMENT AND REGULATION) ACT, 1992 

22. CUSTOMS ACT, 1962 

23. THE TRADEMARKS ACT, 1999 

24. INCOME TAX ACT, 1961 

 

Place: Ahmedabad 

Date: 9th  August, 2024 

 

For, Utkarsh Shah & Co. 

Company Secretaries 

 

 

           Sd/- 

FCS No 12526 CP No 26241  

UDIN: F012526F000941619  

Peer Review No.5123/2024 
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Annexure “II” 
To, 

The Members, 

Deem Roll-Tech Limited 

C-3/301, Anushruti Apartment,  
Opp New York Tower,  

Nr. Jain Mandir,  

S.G. Highway,  

Ahmedabad – 380 054  
 

Based on audit, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the compliance with the applicable laws and maintenance of 

records by the Company. I conducted my audit in accordance with the auditing standards CSAS 1 to CSAS 4 (“CSAS”) 

prescribed by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (“ICSI”). These standards require that the auditor complies with 
statutory and regulatory requirements and plans and performs the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about compliance 

with applicable laws and maintenance of records. 

 

Due to the inherent limitations of an audit including internal, financial and operating controls, there is an unavoidable risk 
that some misstatements or material non-compliances may not be detected, even though the audit is properly planned and 

performed in accordance with the CSAS. 

my Report of even date is to be read along with this letter: 

 

a. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. my 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit. 

b. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was 
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that 

the processes and practices, I followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion. 

c. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of the financial statement of the 

Company. 

d. The compliance of the provisions of the Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulation, 

standards is the responsibility of the management. 

e. Where ever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of 

laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

f. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company 

nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of 

the Company. 

 
 

Place: Ahmedabad 

Date: 9th  August, 2024 

 

For, Utkarsh Shah & Co. 

Company Secretaries 

 

 

         Sd/-  

FCS No 12526 CP No 26241  

UDIN: F012526F000941619  

Peer Review No.5123/2024 
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Annexure-2 
Deem Roll-Tech Limited  

                                                         Corporate Social Responsibility Policy 

Introduction 

Deem Roll-Tech Limited [the company] is a public limited company and is one of the leading manufacturers of steel rolls, 
which constitute the building blocks for the iron and steel rolling mills industry. The company’s Corporate Social 

Responsibility Policy [the CSR Policy] has been developed in accordance with the provisions of Section 135 of the 

Companies Act 2013 and the Companies [Corporate Social Responsibility] Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time 

[collectively referred to as the Act]. 
CSR Vision 

The company is committed to improving the lives of the communities in which it operates in a sustainable way and 

aspires to be a responsible corporate citizen by undertaking CSR activities/programmes/projects, in true letter and spirit. 

The company will always endeavor to build relationships of trust with local communities, society and stakeholders as a 
good corporate citizen and to contribute to developing a sustainable society for future generations. 

Objectives of CSR Policy 

The CSR Policy, formulated in alignment with the abovesaid vision, lays down guidelines and mechanisms to be adopted 

by the company in order to carry out CSR activities/programmes/projects. All the CSR activities/programmes/projects will 
be conceived and implemented through a focused approach towards target beneficiaries for generating maximum impact. 

In implementing its CSR activities/programmes/projects the company may choose to partner or take up the same through 

a registered trust, society or a Section 8 company under the Act and other applicable laws. 

Applicability and Review 
The CSR Policy shall apply to all the CSR activities/programmes/projects to be undertaken by the company. The Board of 

Directors [the Board] shall have powers to review and make revisions in the Policy as and when considered appropriate.  

CSR Budget 

The CSR Budget will be allocated as per the provisions of the Act i.e., at least 2% of the average net profit calculated as 
per Section 198 of the Act accrued during 3 immediately preceding Financial Years. 

CSR Activities 

The company shall undertake CSR activities/programmes/projects that are aligned with those listed in Schedule VII of the 

Act. 
The CSR activities/programmes/projects undertaken by the company will not, however, include the [a] activities which 

benefit only the employees of the company and their family’s [b] contribution to any political parties [c] activities 

undertaken outside the country. 

Governance Structure 
The governance structure for CSR activities/programmes/projects undertaken by the company shall be as below:  

Board of Directors 

The Board shall perform the functions as per the provisions of the Act which shall include: 

[i] setting up the CSR Committee as per the provisions of the Act as also appointing or replacing of Directors on the CSR 

Committee 

[ii] approving the CSR Policy and revisions therein 

[iii] ensuring that in each financial year the company spends at least 2% of the average net profit made during the 3 
immediately preceding financial years 

[iv] ensuring that every financial year funds are committed for CSR activities/programmes/projects are utilized 

effectively and there is regular monitoring of the implementation 

[v] disclosing in its annual report the names of CSR Committee members, and ensure reporting of its CSR 

activities/programmes/projects on the company’s website and 

[vi] ensure annual reporting of CSR activities/programmes/projects etc. in the format and the manner as 

prescribed from time to time under the Act. 
CSR Committee 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, the Board will constitute the CSR Committee which will consist of 3 Directors one of 

whom shall be Independent Director. The Board will have powers to appoint or replace Directors on the CSR Committee as 

and when considered necessary. 
The CSR Committee shall perform the functions as per the provisions of the Act which shall include: 

[i] formulating and recommending to the Board the CSR Policy and revisions therein 

[ii] identifying and recommending to the Board the CSR activities/programmes/projects to be undertaken as per Schedule 

VII of the Act and the expenditure to be incurred on their implementation 
[iii] identifying the engaging with partners such as Trusts and NGOs etc. for implementation of the CSR 

activities/programmes/projects through them 

[iv] formulating a monitoring mechanism for ensuring implementation of the CSR activities/programmes/projects 

undertaken 
[v] reporting to the Board on the progress of the various CSR activities/programmes/projects and amounts spent. 

Planning and Implementation 

The company’s CSR activities/programmes/projects will, to the extent possible, include components such as: 
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[i] clearly defined objectives developed out of existing societal needs or determined through baselines / studies / research, 

[ii] where considered necessary / feasible 

identified sectors, geographies and target group / beneficiaries 

[iii] milestones and timelines 

[iv] specification of annual financial allocation 

[v] monitoring system 

[vi] reporting framework and system 
The mode of implementation of CSR activities/programmes/projects will include a combination of direct implementation 

and/or through implementing agencies. When the particular CSR activities/programmes/projects is to be implemented 

through the agency/ies, the company will select the implementing agency/ies after appropriate consideration. The 

company may use services of expert agencies, consultancy firms etc. wherever required for carrying out surveys, 
guidance on project design and implementation, impact assessment surveys, etc. 

Monitoring and Reporting Mechanism 

A comprehensive monitoring and reporting mechanism shall be devised by the company to ensure that all the 

activities/programmes/projects are duly implemented as per the CSR Policy. The CSR Committee shall monitor the 
approved activities/programmes/projects. The monitoring and reporting mechanism will include programme review, 

evaluation, documentation and reporting. 

   

 
Place: Ahmedabad  

Date:  9th August, 2024                                     For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

                                                                 

 
 sd/-               sd/- 

                                                             Jyoti Prasad Bhattacharya                  Dev Jyotiprasad Bhattacharya   

                                                             Managing Director & CEO                  Whole-Time Director    

                                                             [DIN: 00340485 ]                             [DIN: 09842191] 
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Annexure-3   

Annual Report of CSR Activities  

Financial Year 2023-24 ended 31st March,2024 

[1] Brief outline on CSR Policy of the company:   
The company is committed to improving the lives of the communities in which it operates in a sustainable way and aspires 

to be a responsible corporate citizen by undertaking CSR activities/programmes/projects, in true letter and spirit as per the  

CSR Policy approved by the Board of Directors.  

[2] Composition of CSR Committee:   
During the year under review i.e. financial year 2023-24, the Board of Directors had at their meeting held on 31st July, 2023 

constituted the CSR Committee as under. 

Name Designation Status in Committee 

Mr. Nihar Kanti Bandyopadhyay  Non-Executive Independent Director Chairman 

Mr. Ranjit Anilkumar Dey  Non-Executive Director  Member 

Mr. Jyoti Prasad Bhattacharya  Managing Director & CEO  Member 

During the year under review, 2 meetings of the CSR Committee were held on 10th August,2023 and 21st March, 2024. 

[3] Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the Board of 

Directors are disclosed on the website of the company.:  - www.deemrolls.com.  

[4] Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of Sub-rule [3] of Rule 8 of the 
Companies [Corporate Social responsibility Policy] Rules, 2014, if applicable.    - Not Applicable. 

[5] Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of Sub-rule [3] of Rule 7 of the Companies [Corporate Social 

Responsibility Policy]) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any - Not Applicable  

 Sr. No. Financial Year Amount available for set-off from 
preceding financial years [Rs.] 

Amount required to be set-off for the 
financial year, if any [Rs.] 

1 Nil Nil Nil 

 Total   

[6] Average Net Profit of the company as per Section 135[5]           

        Year   Profit as per Section 198  

2022-23  Rs. 9,58,35,008.00 

2021-22  Rs. 5,94,72,387.00 

2020-21  Rs. 6,56,30,758.00 

        Average Net Profit                  -    Rs. 7,36,46,051.00 

 [7][a] Two percent of average net profit of the company as per Section 135[5]      - Rs. 14,72,921.02/-  

     [b] Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmers or activities of the previous financial years.   -Rs. Nil 
     [c] Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any:                   - Nil 

     [d] Total CSR Obligations for the financial year [7a+7b-7c].                         – Rs. 14,72,921.02/-  

 

 [8] [a] CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:  

Total Amount 
Spent for the 

Financial Year [Rs.]  

Amount Unspent [Rs.] 

Total Amount transferred to Unspent 

CSR Account as per Section 135[6] 

Amount transferred to any fund specified under Schedule VII 

as per Second proviso to Section 135[5] 

 Amount. Date of transfer. Name of the 

Fund 

Amount. Date of transfer. 

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

      

  

[b] Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: 

[1] [2] [3] [4] [5] [6] [7] [8]  [9]  [10]  [11] 

Sr. 

No. 

Name of 

the 
Project. 

Item 

from the 
list of 

activities 

in 

Schedule 
VII to 

the Act. 

Local 

area 
[Yes/No] 

Location of 

the project. 

Project 

duration 

Amount 

allocated 
for the 

project 

[Rs.] 

Amount 

spent in 
the 

current 

financial 

Year 
[Rs.] 

Amount 

transferred 
to Unspent 

CSR 

Account for 

the project 
as per 

Section 

135[6] 

[Rs.] 

Mode of 

Implementation 
- Direct 

[Yes/No] 

Mode of 

Implementation - 
Through 

Implementing Agency 

State District Name CSR 
Registration 

Number. 

    Nil    Nil    
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[c] Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year: 

[1]  [2] [3] [4] [5] [6] [7] [8] 

Sr. No. Name of the 
Project 

Item from 
the list of 

activities in 

schedule VII 

to the Act. 

Local 
Area 

[Yes/ No] 

Location of the 
Project. 

Amount 
spent for 

the project  

[in Rs] 

Mode of 
implementation 

- Direct 

[Yes/No] 

Mode of implementation - Through 
implementing agency. 

   CSR Registration No. and Name  

1 Promoting  

Healthcare 

 Item I in 

Schedule VII 

Yes Gujarat 

Ahmedabad 

District 

3,00,000/- No CSR00036767 

Bengal Cultural Association 

2 Promoting 

Education 

Item II in 

Schedule VII 

Yes Gujarat 

Ahmedabad 
District 

11,80,000/- No CSR 00012645 

Raginiben Bipinchandra Seva Karya 
Trust 

   Total     14,80,000/-   

[d]  Amount spent in Administrative Overheads:                              -Nil  

[e] Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable:                    -Nil  

[f] Total amount spent for the Financial Year [8b+8c+8d+8e] :        - Rs. 14,80,000/- 
[g] Excess amount for set off, if any:   

Sr. No.  Particular Amount [in Rs] 

[i] Two percent of average net profit of the company as per Section 135(5) 14,72,921/- 

[ii] Total amount spent for the Financial Year 14,80,000/- 

[iii] Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 7,079/- 

[iv]  Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the 
previous financial years, if any [As explained above under [8][c] ] 

31,218/- 

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)]          38,297/-           

 9[a] Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: 

 Sr. No. Preceding 

Financial Year. 

Amount 

transferred to 

Unspent CSR 
Account under 

Section 135 [6]  

[in Rs.] 

Amount spent in 

the reporting 

Financial Year [in 
Rs.] 

Amount transferred to any fund 

specified under Schedule VII as 

per Section 135[6], if any. 

Amount 

remaining to 

be spent in 
succeeding 

financial years. 

[in Rs.] 

Name of 

the Fund 

Amount 

[(in Rs] 

Date of 

transfer. 

1.  2020-21  Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

2.  2021-22  Nil           Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

3. 2022-23 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

        [The CSR Provisions have become applicable to the company from FY 2019-20, hence information for FY 2018-19 

         is not given] 
[b] Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year[s] 

 [1] [2] [3] [4] [5] [6] [7] [8] [9]  

Sr. No. Project ID. Name of 

the Project. 

Financial 

Year in which 

the project 
was 

commenced. 

Project 

duration. 

Total 

amount 

allocated 
for the 

project [in 

Rs.] 

Amount 

spent on 

the project 
in the 

reporting 

Financial 

Year [in Rs] 

Cumulative 

amount 

spent at the 
end of 

reporting 

Financial 

Year. [in 
Rs] 

Status of 

the project 

- 
Completed 

/Ongoing. 

  Nil   Nil    

 [10] In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired 

through CSR spent in the financial year 

  [a] Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset[s]:                                   -Nil  
  [b] Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset:                    - Nil  

  [c] Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered, their address 

etc.                                                         -  Nil  

[d] Provide details of the capital asset[s] created or acquired [including complete address and location of the capital asset:                                                                      
- Nil  
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[11] Specify the reason[s], if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per Section 135[5]  

                                                                   -Nil 
 

 

Place: Ahmedabad  

Date:  9th August, 2024                                        For and on behalf of Board of Directors 
                                                                 

 

 sd/-               sd/- 

                                                             Jyoti Prasad Bhattacharya                  Dev Jyotiprasad Bhattacharya   
                                                             Managing Director & CEO                  Whole-Time Director    

                                                             [DIN: 00340485 ]                             [DIN: 09842191] 
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Annexure- 4 
Financial Year 2023-24 ended 31st March, 2024 

Form No. AOC-2 

[Pursuant to Clause [h] of Sub-Section [3] of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8 [2] of the Companies 

[Accounts] Rules, 2014] [Form for Disclosures of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with 
related parties referred to in Sub-Section [1] of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length 

transactions under third proviso thereto] 

Details of contracts / arrangements/ transactions  

Assigning of job work of pass cutting of rolls to and procurement of rolls scrap from the Partnership Firm owned by Son and 
Daughter-in-Law of Managing Director & CEO  

Sr. 

No. 

Particulars Details 

1 Name of Related 
Party 

Diacut Machining [Diacut] - a Partnership Firm owned by Mr. Dev Jyitoprasad Bhattacharya 
and Mrs. Manjushree Dev Bhattacharya, Partners. Mr. Dev Jyotiprasad Bhattacharya was 

appointed as the Whole-Time Director of the company w.e.f. 25th April,2023. 

2 Nature of 

Relationship  

Mr. Dev Jyotiprasad Bhattacharya is Son and Mrs. Manjushree Dev Bhattacharya is 

Daughter-in-Law of Mr. Jyoti Prasad Bhattacharya, Managing Director & CEO    

3 Nature of contract  Assigning of the job works of pass cutting work of the rolls and procurement of rolls scrap 
[i.e. scrap generated from the pass cutting process of rolls supplied]   

4 Duration of contract  No contract with Diacut is executed but the arrangements are approved for the Financial 

Year 2023-24.  

5 Salient terms of 

approval by the 
Board of Directors  

Job works of pass cutting of rolls 

[a] At the time of assigning the job work, it will be ensured that [i] the in-house facility is 
not available and [ii] the job work charges payable to Diacut and other terms and 

conditions for the job works are in tune with the prevailing market rates and conditions 

etc.  [b] It will be ensured that the job works carried out by Diacut are as per the set 

quality standards and other terms and conditions stipulated and stipulated delivery time 
etc.  are completed.  

Procurement of rolls scrap   

 At the time of placing orders for procurement of rolls scrap rolls, it will be ensured that 

the rates offered and all the terms and conditions etc. are comparable with the prevailing 
market trends.  

Total Limit  

The total value of all the transactions with Diacut [ both job works and procurement of 

rolls scrap] for the year 2023-24 i.e., up to 31st March, 2024 will not exceed Rs. 6.50 
crores.  

 

6 Date of approval by 

Board of Directors 

and period of 

approval 

The Board of Directors had at its meeting held on 23rd May, 2023 approved the 

arrangements for entering into transactions as above with Diacut for the Financial Year 

2023-24.  

The members had at the twentieth  annual general meeting held on 22nd June,2023 
accorded approval by ordinary resolution to the arrangements as per [5] above.  

7 Amount of 

transactions during 

the year 

The total transactions , both job works and procurement of rolls scrap ,   of Rs. Rs. 

3,95,69031/- /-have been done with Diacut done during the Financial Year  2023-24 ended 

31st March, 2024.  

8 Amount of Advance 

if any  

Nil  

 

Place: Ahmedabad  
Date:  9th August, 2024                                          For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

                                                                 

 

 sd/-               sd/- 
                                                             Jyoti Prasad Bhattacharya                  Dev Jyotiprasad Bhattacharya   

                                                             Managing Director & CEO                  Whole-Time Director    

                                                             [DIN: 00340485 ]                             [DIN: 09842191] 
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Annexure- 5 
Statement of conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings, as required under Section 134 

[3] [m] read with Rule 8[3] of Companies [Accounts] Rules, 2014 

A. Conservation of Energy 

The details are furnished in Table A below.  
B. Technology Absorption 

    Not Applicable.  

C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo 

The details are given below 

Particulars Year ended 31st March, 

2024 [Rs.]  

Year ended 31st March, 

2023 [Rs.] 

a ) Earnings [FOB Value] 16,70,45,304 17,33,15,918 

b ) Outgo   

     Purchase of Raw Materials 86,51,964 22,94,829 

    Payment of License fees & others 88,99,830 14,22,067 

     Total 1,75,51,794 46,81,065 

 

Table A 

Form of Disclosures of Particulars with Respect to Conservation of Energy 
 

Particular Unit Year ended 31st March, 

2024 

Year ended 31st March, 

2023 

Power & Fuel Consumption 

Electricity 

Purchase Unit   

Total Amount  

Rate / Unit 

Own Generation Unit 

Unit 

Rs. 

Rs./Unit 

N.A 

1,05,29,604 

9,82,00,654 

Rs.9.33 

99,82,967 

8,74,24,332 

Rs.8.76 

Gas Consumption    

Quantity 

Unit 

Rate/Unit 

Rs. 

MMBTU 

Rs./Unit 

1,19,80,687 

6859.14 

Rs.1746.675 

88,37,901 

5161.26 

Rs.1712.36 

Furnace Oil (Industrial Fuel Oil) 

Quantity 

Total Amount 

Average Cost Per Ltr. 

Ltr 

Rs. 

Rs. 

19,510 

13,73,298 

Rs.70.39 

1,18,505 

53,35,434 

Rs.45.02 

 
 

Place: Ahmedabad  

Date:  9th August, 2024                               For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

                                                                 
 

 sd/-               sd/- 

                                                             Jyoti Prasad Bhattacharya                  Dev Jyotiprasad Bhattacharya   

                                                             Managing Director & CEO                  Whole-Time Director    
                                                             [DIN: 00340485 ]                             [DIN: 09842191] 
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Annexure-6  
 

Management Discussions and Analysis Report  

Introduction  

Our company was originally incorporated as ‘Deem Roll-Tech Private Limited’ on 1st May, 2003 at Ahmedabad, Gujarat as a 

private limited company under the provisions of the Companies Act,1956, with the Registrar of Companies, Gujarat, Dadra & 

Nagar Haveli. Subsequently the company was converted into public limited company pursuant to the special resolution 

passed by the members of the company at their meeting held on 12th February,2008 and the name of the company was 

changed to ‘Deem Roll-Tech Limited’ and consequent upon conversion of the company from private limited to public limited 

a fresh certificate of incorporation dated 4th March, 2008 was issued by the Registrar of Companies, Gujarat, Dadra & Nagar 

Haveli.  

Indian Steel Industry  

One of the primary forces behind industrialization has been the use of metals. Steel has traditionally occupied a top spot 

among metals. Steel production and consumption are frequently seen as measures of a country's economic development 

because it is both a raw material and an intermediary product. Therefore, it would not be an exaggeration to argue that the 

steel sector has always been at the forefront of industrial progress and that it is the foundation of any economy. The Indian  

steel industry is classified into three categories - major producers, main producers and secondary producers. 

India is the world’s second-largest producer of crude steel, with an output of 125.32 MT of crude steel and finished steel 

production of 121.29 million tones in FY23. In FY23, the production of crude steel in India stood at 125.32 million tones. 

India’s steel production is estimated to grow at 4%-7% to 123-127 million tones in FY24.The growth in the Indian steel 

sector has been driven by the domestic availability of raw materials such as iron ore and cost-effective labour. 

Consequently, the steel sector has been a major contributor to India's manufacturing output. 

The Indian steel industry is modern, with state-of-the-art steel mills. It has always strived for continuous modernization of 

older plants and up-gradation to higher energy efficiency levels. 

In the past 10–12 years, India's steel sector has expanded significantly. The steel production has increased by 75% since 

2008, while domestic steel demand has increased by almost 80%. The capacity for producing steel has grown concurrently, 

and the rise has been largely organic. 

The demand of steel and steel sector in India has been increasing due to investments and growth of various sectors such as 

automative, infrastructure, airports, railways, oil and gas, power and construction.   

The National Steel Policy, 2017 has envisaged achieving upto 300 million tons production capacity by 2030-31 and growth 

of the per-person steel consumption to 160 kg/per capita.  

The steel industry has emerged as a major focus area given the dependence of a diverse range of sectors on its output as 

India works to become a manufacturing powerhouse through policy initiatives like Make in India. With the industry 

accounting for about 2% of the nation's GDP, India ranks as the world's second-largest producer of steel and is poised to 

overtake China as the world's second-largest consumer of steel. Both the industry and the nation's export manufacturing 

capacity have the potential to help India regain its favorable steel trade balance. 

Huge scope for growth is offered by India's comparatively low per capita steel consumption and the expected rise in 

consumption due to increased infrastructure construction and the thriving automobile and railways sectors.  

[Source: www.ibef.org ]  

Steel Rolls industry  

Rolls are tailor-made as per the mill requirement of the customers. Since a major quantity of the cast rolls and forged rolls 

are produced for use in the rolling mills of the steel industry, the roll industry is closely related to the steel industry. The 

growth in the steel industry offers good potential for rolls manufacturers. With both automobile and infrastructure sectors 

http://www.ibef.org/
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showing healthy growth rate, there will be a demand-push effect for both flat product and long product rolls. Demand for 

high-quality, high-performance cast rolls, which are indispensable to the rolling of high-grade steel sheets or strips, is 

expected to undergo significant growth. Accordingly, the demand for rolls will be directly related to capex plans of the iron 

and steel industry and also the demand for steel.  

Overview of Our Business   

We are one of the leading manufacturers of high-quality steel and alloy rolls in India. We have highly sophisticated 3 

manufacturing units, two in Gujarat located at GIDC Chhatral, Chhatral, Tal. Kalol, Dist: Gandhinagar and at Village 

Ganeshpura, Taluka Kadi, Dist: Mehsana and one in West Bengal at Betamore, Dadpur, Hoogly with an aggregate 

manufacturing capacity of 6,600 mt finished rolls per year. Our Unit at Ganeshpura is ISO 9001:2015 certified by ISOQAR, 

Alcumus.  

We manufacture steel and alloy rolls from steel scrap, roll scrap, pig iron, nickel, ferro molybdenum, other ferro alloys, resin 

coated sand, etc. conforming to international standards and we procure our raw materials based on market availability, 

pricing and quality through domestic suppliers such as steel manufacturers, stockiest and traders.  

Our manufacturing units consist of engineering and design, mold making, melting, casting, machining and dispatch sections 

backed by related quality testing and assurance equipment. Presently, we use static cast and centrifugally cast technology 

for the manufacturing of rolls. We are capable of casting a single roll of up to 15 MT.  

We manufacture customer based and different kinds of rolls which find their application in long product mills, flat product 

mills and seamless tube rolling mills. Our products can be classified based on the raw materials used to manufacture our 

products or based on their applications. Our products based on the raw materials used to manufacture are: 

[i] S.G Iron or Ductile Iron Rolls [ii] Indefinite Chill Alloy Cast Iron Rolls [iii] Alloy Steel Base Rolls [iv] Double Poured Alloy 

Indefinite Chill Rolls [v] HSS Rolls  

The key factor in our business is the user acceptance of our manufacturing process and manufacturing facilities, given the 

critical end use of the product. We have, in the last few years, been successful in obtaining various such acceptance. We 

share a good client relationship with our customers and we receive majority of our business from repeat clients. Further, the 

quality of our products has been accepted to be satisfactory in third party inspections. 

Our company exports its products to more than 10 countries. Some of the key geographies to which our company exports 

its products include USA, Germany, Europe, Middle East, Oman, Saudi Arabia, South Africa, Nepal and Bangladesh 

We sell our rolls directly to rolling mill manufacturers and in the replacement market to the iron and steel rolling mills 

through a network of dealers / distributors and agents. Our rolls are used as consumables by the iron and steel rolling mills. 

Our company has adopted novel concept of having marketing personnel in 8 cities in India such as Pune, Raipur, Mumbai, 

Bhilai, Bangalore, Durgapur, Kolkata and Vishakhapatnam. These marketing personnel works from their home thus reducing 

the fixed cost on office rental and other administrative cost but enables our Company to have presence across geographies.  

Given the nature of our product offering, we are required to regularly engage and interact with our customers before 

concluding a sale of our products. Such interaction may include, exchange of design and product information, feedback on 

various aspects of the product, estimation of effort and cost for development of tooling. Our success lies in the strength of 

our relationship with our customers who have been associated with our company for a long period.  

Our company is well equipped with in-house testing laboratory to test the products as per quality standards and relevant 

chemical composition. The finished products are also subject to various physical and chemical tests to ensure that they 

meet the required specifications. Our in-house testing laboratory is approved by Department of Scientific and Industrial 

Research, Ministry of Science and Technology, Government of India. 

We have a dedicated design and development team of nine engineers along with a well-equipped dimensional inspection 

laboratory and a calibration laboratory. We believe that our engineering expertise and technology driven manufacturing 
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processes have enabled us to deliver our products to our customers in accordance with their designs and specifications at a 

cost competitive manner.  

Our Competitive Strengths  

Our competitive strengths can be stated in brief as below. 

[1] Diversified customer base and long-standing relationship with our customers [2] Diversified and established products [3] 

Well established manufacturing facility designed to serve multiple products range [4] Quality assurance and accreditations 

[5] Healthy financial conditions [6] Experienced Promoter Directors with extensive domine knowledge  

Our Strategies    

Our strategies can be stated in brief as below. 

[1] Increase our market share internationally by leveraging our export channels [2] Focus on advanced technology products 

[3] Continue to focus on improving operational efficiencies [4] Expand manufacturing capacity at our existing facilities  

 Expansion Project  

As part of our growth strategy and to cater to the demands of our customers we have undertaken expansion project for 

manufacturing of flat product rolls at our Ganeshpura Unit.  The expansion project is under implementation on the land of 

approx. 4,142 sq. meters. The construction of factory shed of 3,500 sq. meters, office building, utilities etc.  are under 

progress and orders for almost all machineries are placed. It is expected that after completion of the project and the trial 

runs the commercial production will commence from 1st April ,2025.  

Our Performance  

During the year under review, the production of 6203.70 MT and capacity utilization of 94% has been achieved as 

compared to the production of 6107.71 MT and capacity utilization of 92.54 % achieved in the previous year.  

During the year under review total revenue of Rs. 10,143.36 lakhs have been achieved as compared to total revenue of Rs. 

10,451.65 lakhs achieved in the previous year. During the year under review net profit after tax of Rs. 781.25 lakhs have 

been achieved as compared to net profit after tax of Rs.707.94 lakhs achieved in the previous year.  

Also, during the year under review the company has achieved exports turnover of Rs.1,759.33 lakhs, which is 17. 34% of 

the total revenue.     

Resources Mobilization  

During the year under review, after requisite approvals by the by the members of the company, 2,32,000 equity shares of 

Rs.10/- at the premium of Rs.119/- per equity share i.e. at the issue price of Rs.129/- per equity share aggregating to Rs. 

299.28 lakhs were issued and allotted on 3rd February, 2024 on preferential basis by private placement.    

During the year under review, the company’s initial public offering [the issue] of the equity shares offering 22,68,000 equity 

shares of Rs.10/- each at the issue price of Rs.129/- per equity share [i.e. at the premium of Rs.119/- per equity share], 

aggregating to Rs.2925.72 lakhs was opened for 3 days from 20th February, 2024. The objects of the issue were funding 

capital expenditure towards expansion project at the Ganeshpura Unit, funding of the additional working capital 

requirements and general corporate purposes.  The issue had received overwhelming response from the investors and was 

oversubscribed 256.55 times and the 22,68,000 equity shares were issued and allotted to the successful applications.  

Listing of the equity shares  

Post the initial public offering of the equity shares as above, total 83,37,273 equity shares of the company were listed on 

the National Stock Exchange of India Limited EMERGE Platform-NSE EMERGE- and trading had commenced w.e.f. 27th 

February, 2024. The Stock Code is: DEEM and the ISIN is INE586O01011.  

Segment-wise Performance   

Your company does not operate in multiple segments. Hence, comments on segment-wise performance are not required. 
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Human Resources 

We believe that our employees are our key contributors to our business success. While focusing on attracting and retaining 

the best possible talent, we look for specific skill-sets, interests and background that would be as asset for our business. 

As on 31st March, 2024, we had 259 employees, bifurcated by functions as below.   

[1] Management Staff – 5 [2] Office Executives – 14 [3] Sales Executives- 9 [4] Factory Staff – 61 [5] Quality Control 

Managers- 2 [6] Factory Workmen -168 

Risk Management  

Your company has put in place a well-defined risk management mechanism covering the risk mapping and trend analysis, 

risk exposure, potential impact and risk mitigation process. The objective of the mechanism is to minimize the impact of 

risks identified and taking advance actions to mitigate them. The Risk Management Policy approved by the Board, is placed 

on the website of the company www.deemrolls.com 

Internal Control Systems 

Your company has adequate and efficient internal control systems, commensurate with the type and size of its operations 

are further supplemented by internal audits regularly carried out by the internal auditors and review of their reports by the  

audit committee as also review by the management from time to time.  Your company has put in place proper internal 

control systems which provide protection to all its assets against loss from unauthorized use and ensures correct reporting 

of transactions.  

Details of the Key Financial Ratios  

The details of key financial ratios with details of significant changes [change of 25% or more] are as under 

Sr. 

No.  

Description  31st 

March,2024  

31st 

March,2023 

Variance  Reasons  

1 Trade Receivables 
Turnover Ratio  

4.71 5.90 -20.17% Not Applicable  

2 Inventory Turnover Ratio 1.71 3.92 -56.33% This shows that company has held higher 

stock as compared to previous year 

3 Debt Service   Coverage 

Ratio 

4.91 4.68 -4.73% Not Applicable  

4 Current Ratio  2.24 1.46 53.38 % The company has received funds from 

IPO proceeds which are not used as on 

31st March,2024 and are reflected in 

current 
assets. 

 

5 Debt Equity Ratio 0.36 0.07 73.05% Company's debt has not increased 

proportionately with increase in profits 
and issued paid up capital which has 

led to improvement in debt equity ratio 

6 Operating Profit Margin 

[%]  

12.40%  10.08% -18.71% Not Applicable  

7 Net Profit Margin Ratio 
[%]  

7.75%  6.85 % 13.13% Not Applicable  

 

Place: Ahmedabad  

Date:  9th August, 2024                             For and on behalf of Board of Directors 
                                                                 

 

 sd/-               sd/- 

                                                             Jyoti Prasad Bhattacharya                  Dev Jyotiprasad Bhattacharya   
                                                             Managing Director & CEO                  Whole-Time Director    

                                                             [DIN: 00340485 ]                             [DIN: 09842191] 

 

 

 

http://www.deemrolls.com/
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Note: 

The wordings  ‘your company’ ,  ‘ the company’ ‘ ‘we’ used in the  Management Discussion and Analysis Report refer to ‘ 

Deem Roll-Tech Limited’  

Disclaimer  

The statements made in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report [the Report]  describing the Company's outlook 

may differ from the actual situation. Important factors that would make a difference to the company's operations include 

market factors, government regulations, and developments within the country and abroad and for the same the company or 

its management will not be liable. We are under no obligation to publicly amend, modify or revise any forward looking 

statement on the basis of any subsequent developments, information or events and assume no liability for any action taken 

by anyone on the basis of any information contained herein. 
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Annexure-7  
Certificate under Regulation 17 [8] of the SEBI  [Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements] 

Regulations, 2015 

 

To, 

The Board of Directors, 

Deem Roll-Tech Limited   

Survey No. 110/1, P-1, 110/2,  

Ganeshpura, Taluka: Kadi,  

District: Mahesana, Gujarat-  382729. 

We, Mr. Jyoti Prasad Bhattacharya, Managing Director & CEO ,  Mr. Dev Jyotiprasad Bhattacharya, Whole-Time Director  

and Mr. Janak Navinchandra Gajjar, Chief Financial Officer of the  Company hereby certify that – 

[a] We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the period from 1st April,2023 to 31st 

March,2024 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief: 

[i] These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that 

might be misleading. 

[ii] These statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs and are incompliance with existing 

accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

[b] There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company during the year which 

are fraudulent, illegal or violate of the company’s code of conduct. 

[c] We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have 

evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the company pertaining to financial reporting and we have 

disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of 

which we are aware and the step we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies. 

[d] We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee that: 

[i] There are no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year; 

[ii] There are no significant changes in accounting policies during the year and 

[iii] There are no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware. 

 

 

   sd/-     sd/-     sd/- 

Janak Navinchandra Gajjar                      Jyoti Prasad Bhattacharya                          Dev Jyotiprasad Bhattacharya              

Chief Financial Officer                           Managing Director & CEO                            Whole-Time  Director     

[PAN: AJQPG6593H ]                             [DIN:  00340485 ]                                       [DIN: 09842191 ]  

 

Place: Ahmedabad  

Date: 9th August,2024   
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Annexure- 8 

Information pursuant to Rule 5 of the Companies [Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel] 

Rules ,2014  

[1] The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the company for the 

Financial Year 2023-24 and the percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, and Company 

Secretary  in the Financial Year 2023-24 is: 

Name of Person  Designation  Remuneration 

of each 

Director for FY 

2023-24 

Ratio of remuneration of 

each Director to median 

remuneration of employees   

Percentage 

increase in the 

remuneration  

Mr. Jyoti Prasad 

Bhattacharya  

Managing Director & CEO  2,40,00,000 73.87:1 22.45 

Mr. Dev Bhattacharya  Whole-Time Director  

[From 25/04/2023 to 

31/03/2024]  

11,20,000 3.45:1 N.A 

Mr. Jaydev Ramesh 

Betai* 

Chairman and Non-

Executive Director  

_ _ _ 

Mr. Nihar Kanti 

Bandyopadhyay* 

Independent Director  _ _ _ 

Mrs. Geeta 

Chowdhury * 

Indenendet Director  _ _ _ 

Mr. Ranjit Anilkumar 

Dey  

Non-Executive Director 

[Head Production] # 

22,12,245 6.81:1 0.32 

Mr. Pijush Kanti Dey  Non-Executive Director 

[Head- Marketing ] # 

9,01,600 2.77:1 32.28 

Mr. Janak Gajjar  Chief Financial Officer  

[From 23/05/2023 to 

31/03/2024]              

6,71,081 2.07:1 8.61 

Ms. Sweta Talreja Company Secretary and 

Compliance Officer  

[From 01/07/2023 to 

30/11/2023]            

1,51,000 0.46:1 N.A 

Ms. Alka Kumari   Company Secretary and 

Compliance Officer  

[From 01/12/2023 to 

31/03/2024]  

2,11,512 0.65:1 N.A 

* The Directors as disclosed above have not received any remuneration other than sitting fees during financial year 2023-

24. 

#Mr. Ranjit Anilkumar Dey and Mr. Pijush Kanti Dey are in the whole-time employment of the company. They are not 

receiving any remuneration or sitting fees as Non-Executive Director. The remuneration mentioned above, they had received 

during the financial year being in the whole-time employment of the company.      

[2] The median remuneration of employees of the Company during the financial year was approx. ₹ 3.25 Lakhs per annum 

in the financial year 2023-24. 



 

53 
 

               

[3] There were 259 permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on March 31, 2024. 

[4] Average percentage increase made in the salaries of the employees other than the managerial person in the financial 

year 2023-24 was 10.31% whereas the increase in the managerial remuneration for the financial year under review was 

15.91%. 

[5] In the financial year, there was an increase of 10.31 % in the median remuneration of employees .  

[6] It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid during the year ended 31st March, 2024 as per the Remuneration Policy 

of the Company. 

 

Place: Ahmedabad  

Date:  9th August, 2024                             For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

                                                                 
 

 sd/-               sd/- 

                                                             Jyoti Prasad Bhattacharya                  Dev Jyotiprasad Bhattacharya   

                                                             Managing Director & CEO                  Whole-Time Director    
                                                             [DIN: 00340485 ]                             [DIN: 09842191] 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 



 

54 
 

               

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
 

To, 

The Members, 

DEEM ROLL TECH LIMITED 

AHMEDABAD. 

  

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 

 

OPINION: 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of DEEM ROLL TECH LIMITED, which comprise the Balance Sheet 

as at March 31, 2024 and the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the period then ended and notes to 

the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial 

statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and 

fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as  

at March 31, 2024, its profit and cash flows for the period ended on that date. 

 

BASIS FOR OPINION: 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on auditing specified under section 143 (10) of the Companies 

Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of 

the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the code of ethics 

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our 

audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other 

ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the code of ethics. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

 

KEY AUDIT MATTERS: 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 

financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial 

statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the Company as it is an unlisted 

company. 

 

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT THEREON:  

The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information 

comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility 

Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance 

conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, 

consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge 

obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we 

are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.  

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation 
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of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of 

the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards 

specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also 

includes the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provision of the Act for safeguarding of 

the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting the frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of 

appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 

implementation and maintenance of internal financial control, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 

completeness of the accounting records,   relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that 

7give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going 

concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 

management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The board of directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

 

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 

assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always 

detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 

individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 

the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 

throughout the audit. We also: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design 

and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 

provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 

one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 

override of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 

in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our 

opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating 

effectiveness of such controls 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 

disclosures made by management. 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 

evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt 

on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 

required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such 

disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the 

date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a 

going concern. 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and 

whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 

presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 

audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 

regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought 

to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. From the matters communicated with those charged 

with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the 
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current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or 

regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter 

should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

 

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS: 

1. As required by The Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 issued by The Central Government Of India in term of 
section 143 (11) of The Companies Act, 2013, we enclose in the Annexure-A hereto a statement on the matters 

specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the said order, to the extent applicable to the company. 

 
2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 

were necessary for the purposes of our audit; 
 

b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears from 

our examination of those books;  

 
c) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss & Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in 

agreement with the books of account; 

 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the accounting standards specified under section 
133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014; 

 

e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024, and taken on record by 

the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024, from being appointed as a 

director in terms of sub-section (2) of section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013; 

 
f) With respect to the adequacy of internal financial control over financial reporting of the Company and the 

operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure-B; and 

 

g) With respect to the other matters included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 

explanations given to us: 

 

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position; 
 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were 

any material foreseeable losses; and 

 
iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection 

Fund by the Company. 

 

3. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under Section 197(16) of the Act: 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the 

Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The 

remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of 

Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be 

commented upon by us. 

PLACE: AHMEDABAD 
DATED: 27th May, 2024 

UDIN : 24144892BKAVOK9587 

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF 
S. N. SHAH & ASSOCIATES, 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS, 

FIRM REG. NO. 109782W 

 
Sd/- 

PRIYAM S SHAH 

PARTNER 

M. No. 144892 
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ANNEXURE-A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 

The Annexure referred to Our Report of even date to the members of DEEM ROLL TECH LIMITED on the accounts of the 

company for the period ended 31st March, 2024: 

 

On the basis of such checks of the books and records of the company as we considered appropriate and according to the 

information and explanation given to us during the course of audit read with Notes on Accounts to the Financial 

Statements, we further report that: 

i. In respect of Property, Plant and Equipment: 

a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has maintained proper records 

showing full particulars including quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.  

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company did not have any intangible assets. 

c)      As explained to us, the management in accordance with a phased program of verification adopted by the 

company has physically verified the fixed asset. To the best of our knowledge, no material discrepancies 

have been noticed on such verification or have been reported to us. 

d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the examination of the 

records of the company, the title deeds of immovable properties disclosed in the financial statements as 

part of property, plant & equipment are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date.  

e) The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets during the 

period. 

 

f)       According to the information and explanations given to us no proceedings have been initiated during the year 

or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2024 for holding any Benami property under the Benami 

Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder. 

 

ii. In respect of its Inventories: 

a) As explained to us, the inventories have been physically verified by the management of the company during 

the year at reasonable interval. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the 

Management of the company is appropriate having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its 

operations. According to the information and explanations given to us, no discrepancies of 10% or more in 

the aggregate for each class of inventories were noticed on such physical verification of inventories when 

compared with books of account. 

b) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Five crores rupees in aggregate from 

banks during the year on the basis of security of current assets of the Company. The quarterly 

returns/statements filed by the Company with such banks and financial institutions are in agreement with 

the books of accounts of the Company. 

iii. Investments/Guarantee/Security/Loans/Advances Granted: 

a) According to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the company has not granted 

any secured/unsecured loans to any Company, Firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or Other Parties covered 

in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 and hence other matters related 

thereto referred to in clause III of The Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable.: 

b) The Company has during the year, not made investments in, or granted any loans or advances in the nature 

of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. 

Accordingly, the provisions of clauses 3(iii)(b) to 3 (iii)(f) of the Order are not applicable. 
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iv. According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has complied with provisions of section 

185 and 186 in respect of transaction of the nature referred to in Sections 185 and 186 of The Companies Act, 

2013 in respect of any loans, investments, guarantees and security. 

v. According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has complied with the directives issued 

by the Reserve Bank of India, if applicable and the provisions Section 73 to 76 of The Companies Act, 2013, 

and The Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 in respect of deposits, if any, accepted by the 

company. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company Law Board or National 

Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any court or any other tribunal has not issued any order in 

respect of the deposits accepted by the company. 

 

vi. We have broadly reviewed the books of account and records maintained by the Company pursuant to the 

Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 as specified by the Central Government for maintenance of 

cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act, in respect of the products manufactured by the Company and are 

of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained.  

   

vii. In respect of Statutory Dues: 

a) As per the information & explanations furnished to us, in our opinion the  

company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues of T.D.S., 

GST, Employee Provident Fund, ESIC and other material statutory dues applicable to it.   There were no 

outstanding as at 31st March, 2024 of undisputed liabilities outstanding for more than six months. 

 

b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance 

except disputed ESIC demand of Rs. 3.81 lacs Goods and Service Tax, Customs Duty, Cess and other 

material statutory dues in arrears applicable under Income tax Act, 1961 as at March 31, 2024 for a period 

of more than six months from the date they became payable. 

viii. According to the information and explanations given to us and so far as appears from our examination of books 

of account and other records as applicable, there were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income 

that were surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 

1961) during the year. 

 

ix. In respect of Loans & Other Borrowings: 

a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has repaid the principal amount 

and made payment of interest on loans or borrowings taken by it from banks.  

b) According to the information and explanations given to us so far as appears from our examination of 

relevant records, we are of the opinion that the company has not been declared willful defaulter by any 

bank or financial institution or any other lender. 

c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has applied 

the term loans obtained during the year for the purpose for which they were obtained. 

d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the audit procedures performed by us, and 

on an overall examination of the financial statements of the company for the year, we are of the opinion 

that funds raised on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term 

purposes by the company. 

e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the financial 

statements of the company, we report that the company has not taken any funds during the year from 

any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint 

ventures, if any and hence reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable. 

f) According to the information and explanations given to us and audit procedures performed by us, we 

report that the company has not raised any loan during the year on the pledge of securities held in its 
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subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies, if any and hence reporting under clause 3(ix)(f) of the 

Order is not applicable. 

x. In respect of moneys raised by issue of securities: 

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of 

the Company, the Company has raised moneys by way of initial public offer amounting to Rs.2925.72 lacs 

out of Rs. 648.00 lacs have been utilized for the purpose for which it was raised and remaining funds is 

pending to be utilized as the procedure of Initial Public Offering and Listing of Company was completed on 

27th February, 2024. And the fund was received by the company in the Month of March.   

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the 

records of the Company, the Company has raised Rs. 299.28 lacs by way of private placement during 

the year in the form of Pre-IPO placement. The fund is pending to be utilized as the procedure of 

Initial Public Offering and Listing of Company was completed on 27th February, 2024. 

xi. In respect of Frauds and Whistle Blower Complaints: 

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and to the best of our knowledge, no material 

fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported to us by the management during 

the year. 

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of Section 

143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT- 4 as prescribed under rule 13 

of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government. 

c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not received any whistle-

blower complaints from any party during the year. 

xii. As the company is not the Nidhi Company, clause (xii) of paragraph 3 of The Companies (Auditor's Report) 

Order, 2020 is not applicable to it. 

 

xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us, the company is in compliance with the provisions of 

sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, for related party transactions and the 

details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements in accordance 

with the applicable Accounting Standards.  

xiv. In respect of Internal Audit: 

In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and the nature 

of its business, the company also under goes internal audit on quarterly basis, we have also considered internal 

audit report of the company issued till the date of audit report, for the period under audit. 

xv. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash 

transaction with directors or persons connected with them and hence clause (xv) of paragraph 3 of The 

Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable to it during the year. 

 

xvi. In respect of Registration Under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934/CIC 

a) As the company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 

1934 (2 of 1934), clause (xvi)(a) of paragraph 3 of The Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 is not 

applicable to it.   

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not conducted any Non-

Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities during the year and clause (xvi)(b) of paragraph 3 of The 

Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable to it. 

c) As the company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the 

Reserve Bank of India, clause (xvi)(c) of paragraph 3 of The Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 is 

not applicable to it. 
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d) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has no Core Investment 

Company (CIC) as part of its group, clause (xvi)(c) of paragraph 3 of The Companies (Auditor's Report) 

Order, 2020 is not applicable to it.   

 

xvii. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the examination of the records of 

the company, the company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding 

financial year. 

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year and hence reporting 

under clause (xviii) of paragraph 3 of The Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable. 

xix. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and 

expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information 

accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and 

based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, 

which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the 

Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due 

within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to 

the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of 

the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a 

period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

xx. As the company does not fall in any of the criteria specified under section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 in 

the financial year covered by audit, reporting as per clauses (xx)(a) & (b) of paragraph 3 of The Companies 

(Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable to it.   

 

PLACE: AHMEDABAD 

DATED: 27th May, 2024 

UDIN : 24144892BKAVOK9587 

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF 

S. N. SHAH & ASSOCIATES, 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS, 
FIRM REG. NO. 109782W 

 

 

Sd/- 
PRIYAM S SHAH 

PARTNER 

M. No. 144892 
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

[REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 2(f) UNDER “REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS 

SECTION OF OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE]  

FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 

 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of DEEM ROLL-TECH LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 

March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the company for the period ended on that date.  

 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Board of Directors of the company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on 

the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the company considering the essential components of 

internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.  

 

These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 

operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s 

policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of 

the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 

2013. 

 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our 

audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 

Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 

2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that  

we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 

adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated 

effectively in all material respects.  

 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 

system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial 

reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a 

material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 

assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of  the risks of material 

misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on  

the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting 

includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately 

and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 

transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 

accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with 

authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or 

timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on 

the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of col lusion 

or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. 

Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject  to 

the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, 

or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

 

Opinion 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 

company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such 

internal financial controls over financial reporting were commensurate with the nature of the business of the company and 

operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 

company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 

Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

 

   

PLACE: AHMEDABAD 
DATED: 27th May, 2024 

UDIN : 24144892BKAVOK9587 

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF 
S. N. SHAH & ASSOCIATES, 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS, 

FIRM REG. NO. 109782W 

 
 

Sd/- 

PRIYAM S SHAH 

PARTNER 
M. No. 144892 

 

 



(Rs. In Lacs)
SR. AS AT
NO. 31-Mar-23

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

1    SHAREHOLDER'S FUND
(a) Share Capital 2 833.73 138.32
(b) Reserves and Surplus 3 7592.28 4783.79
Total Shareholders' Fund 8426.01 4922.11

2 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
(a) Long-Term Borrowings 4 229.97 198.63
(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 5 300.60 258.83
(c) Long Term Provision 6 85.85 53.01
Total Non-Current Liabilities 616.42 510.47

3 CURRENT LIABILITIES
(a) Short-Term Borrowings 7 2017.26 1882.24
(b) Trade Payables 8
-  Total Outstanding Dues of Micro Enterprises and Small 
Enterprises 64.67 478.58

-  Total Outstanding Dues of Creditors Other Than Above 1505.46 799.95
(c) Other Current Liabilities 9 544.46 440.64
(d) Short Term Provisions 10 234.34 325.35
Total Current Liabilities 4366.19 3926.76

TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES ….. ….. ….. 13408.62 9359.34
II. ASSETS

1 NON CURRENT ASSETS
(a) Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Asset 
     (i) Tangible assets 11 3401.87 3307.97
     (ii) Capital work in process 58.08 67.72
(c) Long-term loans and advances 12 138.45 272.14
(d) Other Non-Current Assets 13 33.06 3.77
Total Non-Current Assets 3631.47 3651.60

2 CURRENT ASSETS
(a) Inventories 14 3844.61 2638.84
(b) Trade Receivables 15 2355.35 1926.50
(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents 16 2408.23 362.69
(d) Short-Term Loans and Advances 17 1168.95 779.70
Total Current Assets 9777.15 5707.74

TOTAL ASSETS ….. ….. ….. 13408.62 9359.34
FOR S. N. SHAH & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FIRM REG. NO.: 109782W

sd/- sd/-
Jyoti Prasad Bhattacharya        Dev Bhattacharya               

sd/- Managing Director                    Whole Time Director                   
PRIYAM SHAH [DIN: 00340485]                            [DIN: 09842191]
PARTNER
M. NO. 144892
UDIN: 24144892BKAVOK9587

sd/- sd/-
Company Secretary            Chief Financial Officer

PLACE: AHMEDABAD Alka Kumari                       Janak Navinchandra Gajjar
DATE: 27/05/2024 [ACS NO. 31249] [PAN: AJQPG6593H]

 For DEEM ROLL- TECH LIMITED 

DEEM ROLL-TECH LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST, MARCH 2024

P A R T I C U L A R S Note No AS AT
31-Mar-24
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(Rs. In Lacs)

Note No AMOUNT AMOUNT Previous Year

NO. RS. RS.

I. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 18 10083.28 10337.13
II. OTHER INCOME 19 60.08 114.52
III. TOTAL INCOME (I +II) 10143.36 10451.65

IV. EXPENSES
1 Cost of Materials Consumed 20 6920.56 6440.65

2
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress 
and Stock-in-Trade 21 (1371.55) (390.59)

3 Manufacturing Expenses 22 1376.37 1526.72
4 Employee Benefit Expense 23 1225.33 1040.28
5 Financial Costs 24 262.78 198.29
6 Depreciation and Amortization Expense 25 177.22 171.38
7 Administrative, Selling & Other Expenses 26 564.73 506.57

TOTAL EXPENSES 9155.43 9493.30

V.
Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax 
(III-IV) 987.93 958.35

VI. Profit before extraordinary items and tax (V - VI) 987.93 958.35

VII. Extraordinary Item -

VIII. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (III - IV) 987.93 958.35

IX. Tax expense:
 (1) Current tax (164.90) (262.20)
 (2) MAT Credit during the year - -
 (3) Deferred Tax (41.77) 11.79

(206.68) (250.41)

X.
Profit(Loss) for the period from continuing 
operations (V-VI) 781.25 707.94

XI. Earning per equity share:
       (1) Basic 27 12.92                    51.18                    
       (2) Diluted 12.92                    51.18                    

FOR S. N. SHAH & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FIRM REG. NO.: 109782W

sd/- sd/-
Jyoti Prasad Bhattacharya        Dev Bhattacharya               

sd/- Managing Director                    Whole Time Director                                        
PRIYAM SHAH [DIN: 00340485]                            [DIN: 09842191]
PARTNER
M. NO. 144892
UDIN: 24144892BKAVOK9587

sd/- sd/-
Company Secretary           Chief Financial Officer

PLACE: AHMEDABAD Alka Kumari                       Janak Navinchandra Gajjar
DATE: 27/05/2024 [ACS NO. 31249] [PAN: AJQPG6593H]

DEEM ROLL-TECH LIMITED

P A R T I C U L A R S

 STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024

For DEEM ROLL- TECH LIMITED
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Indirect Method
SR. Year Ended Year Ended
NO. 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

A  CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
I  Net Profit Before Taxation 987.93 958.35

         Adjustments for :
         Add :  Depreciation 177.22 171.38
                  Interest and Finance Expenses 262.78 191.77
                  Loss On Sale Of Fixed Asset - 2.75

         Less : Interest Income (10.17) (11.99)
                  Prior Period Expenses/Income (1.30) (29.04)
                  Profit on sale of Asset (0.05)

II  Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 1416.46 1283.17
         Adjustments for :
         Less:
                   Change in Inventories (1205.77) (622.90)
                   Change in Loans & Advances 133.69 41.47
                   Change in Short Term Loans & Advances (399.25) (174.85)
                   Change in Other Current Liabilities 103.82 (118.54)
                   Change in Trade Receivables (428.85) (351.28)
                   Change in Other Current Assets (29.29) (38.10)
                   Change in Trade Payable 291.60 (160.60)
                   Change in Short Provision (132.59) 13.87
                   Change in Long Term Provision 32.84 7.52

III   Cash Generated from Operations (217.33) (120.24)
       Less : Income Taxes Paid (144.78) (110.00)

IV        Cash Flow Before Extraordinary Items (362.12) (230.24)

V   Net Cash from Operating Activities (A) (362.12) (230.24)

B   CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
        Purchase/Sale of Fixed Assets (Including CWIP) (261.49) (160.63)
        Change in Current Investment 100.00
        Interest Income 10.17 11.99

 Net Cash from/(Used In) Investing Activities (B) (251.32) (48.64)

C  CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
         Change in Long Term Borrowings 31.34 (129.53)
         Change in Share Capital 250.00 -
         Change in Short Term Borrowing 135.01 580.29
         Interest and Finance Expenses (262.78) (191.77)
         Securities Premium Received 2505.41 -
       Net Cash from/(Used In) Financing Activities (C) 2658.97 258.99
       Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 2045.54 (19.88)
       Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Period 362.69 382.57
       Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Period 2408.23 362.69

Notes
1
2 Reconciliation of Cash & Cash Equivalants as per the statement of cash flow

SR. Year Ended Year Ended
NO. 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

1 Balances with Banks
- in Current Accounts 220.16 213.00
- in Fixed Deposits (Original Maturity of 3 months or less) 2167.81 131.70

2 Cash on hand 20.25 18.00
3 Cheques, drafts on hand -                        -                             
4 Other - Unpaid divident Accounts -                        -                             

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Period (Refer Note24) 2408.23 362.69

FOR S. N. SHAH & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FIRM REG. NO.: 109782W

sd/- sd/-
Jyoti Prasad Bhattacharya    Dev Bhattacharya               

sd/- Managing Director                Whole Time Director                                 
PRIYAM SHAH [DIN: 00340485]                     [DIN: 09842191]
PARTNER
M. NO. 144892
UDIN: 24144892BKAVOK9587

sd/- sd/-

PLACE: AHMEDABAD Alka Kumari          Janak Navinchandra Gajjar                     
DATE: 27/05/2024 [ACS NO. 31249]    [PAN: AJQPG6593H]

Particulars

DEEM ROLL-TECH LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

(Rs. In Lacs)

Particulars

Statement of cash flow has been prepared under the indirect methord as set out in AS-3 on statement of cashflows specified 

   Company Secretary    Chief Financial Officer              

For DEEM ROLL- TECH LIMITED
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 DEEM ROLL- TECH LIMITED  
DEEM ROLL-TECH LIMITED was incorporated as a private limited under the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 1956, pursuant to a certificate of incorporation dated 01/05/2003 issued by the 
Registrar of Companies, Gujarat, Dadra and Nagar Haveli. Thereafter, the Company was converted 
from private limited to public limited vide fresh certificate of incorporation dated 04/03/2008 issued 
by the Registrar of Companies, Ahmedabad, Gujarat 
The company is in business of roll manufacturers. The company comprises three fully integrated 
factories with machine shops, foundries and heat treatment plants. 

NOTE 1 : SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  
1) Accounting Conventions : 

The Financial Statements of the Company are prepared under the historical cost convention on accrual 
basis of accounting   and in accordance with the mandatory accounting standards issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and referred to in section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and generally accepted accounting 
principles in India. The accounting policies not referred to otherwise have been consistently applied 
by the Company during the year. 

2) Use of Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with the GAAP requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that may affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities, classification 
of assets and liabilities into non-current and current and disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as 
at the date of financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expenses during the 
reporting period. Although the financial statements have been prepared based on the management’s 
best knowledge of current events and procedures/actions, the actual results may differ on the final 
outcome of the matter/transaction to which the estimates relates. 

3) Property Plant and Equipment : 
Tangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition/construction (less Accumulated Depreciation, if any). 
The cost of Property, Plant, and Equipment comprises of their purchase price, including freight, 
duties, taxes or levies and directly attributable cost of bringing the assets to their working conditions 
for their intended use. Subsequent expenditures on Fixed Assets have been capitalized only if such 
expenditures increase the future benefits from the existing assets beyond their previously assessed 
standard of performance. 
There is No Intangible asset as defined under As 26 “Intangible Assets”. 

4) Depreciation 
Depreciation of Plant, Plant and Equipment’s is provided on original cost of the asset on written down 
value method and in the manner prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.Accordingly 
the unamortized carrying value is being depreciated over remaining useful life by Written down value 
method. 

5) Inventories 
Raw materials, Stores & Spares, Loose Tools are valued at Cost or Net Realizable Value, whichever 
is lower. 
Finished goods are valued at Cost or Net Realizable Value, whichever is lower. 
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Work-in-progress is valued at lower of estimated cost and Net Realizable Value. 
Cost is determined as per FIFO method of accounting. 

6) Receivables 
Receivables including receivables of more than 6 months are shown at book value. Though some of 
the amounts are pending for recoveries since long, management considers it as good. Company has 
gone into arbitration against Gujarat Energy Transmission Co. and the management is confident that 
the funds will be received and hence, no provision for bad debts is recognized. 
Receivables considered doubtful are taken on the basis of management information. The management 
is confident of realizing it and hence provision for bad debts is not recognized. 

 
7) 

Revenue Recognition 
All income and expenses are accounted on accrual basis. The Company recognised Sale of Goods  
when it had transferred the property in Goods to the buyer for a price or all significant risks and 
rewards of ownership had been transferred to the buyer and no significant uncertainty existed as to the 
amount of consideration that would be derived from such sale. The recognition event is usually the 
dispatch of goods to the buyer such that the Company retains no effective control over the goods 
dispatched. Income from investments, where appropriate, is taken into revenue in full on declaration 
or accrual and tax deducted at source thereon is treated as advance tax.  

 
8) 

Foreign Currency Transactions 
The transactions in foreign currency have been recorded using the rate of exchange prevailing on the 
date of transactions. The difference arising on the settlement/restatement of the foreign currency 
denominated Current Assets/Current Liabilities into Indian rupees has been recognized as 
expenses/income (net) of the year and carried to the statement of profit and loss. 

 
9) 

Borrowing Costs 
Borrowing cost attributable to acquisition of qualifying assets for the period such asset is put to its 
commercial use, is capitalized as part of the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that takes 
substantial period of time to get ready for intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to 
profit and loss account. 

10) Employee Benefits 
a) Short Term Employee Benefits 
Short-term employee benefits are recognized as expense in the Statement of Profit & Loss of the year 
in which the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount as and when it accrues. 
 
b) Defined Contribution Plan 
The company is covered under employee’s provident fund and miscellaneous provision Act, 1952 
which are defined contribution schemes, liability in respect thereof is determined on the basis of the 
basis of contribution required to be made under the statues/Rules. Company’s contribution to 
provident fund is charged to Profit & loss Account. 
c) Defined Benefit Plan 
DEEM ROLL-TECH LIMITED Provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan (the “Gratuity 
Plan”) covering eligible employees. In accordance with the payment of gratuity Act, 1972 the gratuity 
plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or 
termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s Salary and the tenure of 
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employment. Liabilities with regard to the gratuity plan are determined by Management Certification 
as of the balance sheet date, Based upon which, the company contributes all the ascertained liabilities 
to fund. Trustees administer contributions made to the trust and contributions are invested in specific 
investment as permitted by Law. 

11) Taxes On Income: 
Taxes on income comprises of current tax and deferred tax. Taxes on income have been determined 
based on the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance 
sheet date. Deferred income taxes are determined for future consequences attributable to timing 
differences between financial determination of income and income chargeable to tax as per the 
provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961. Deferred tax liability has been worked out using the tax rate and 
tax laws that were in force as on the date of balance sheet and has not been discounted to its present 
value after giving effects of carried forward balances of unabsorbed depreciation, unabsorbed 
business losses as per the Income Tax Act, 1961 and other timing differences as at the Balance Sheet 
date. 
 

12) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 
The Company recognises a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event that 
probably requires an outflow of the Company's resources embodying economic benefits and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.  A disclosure of contingent liabilities is made 
when there is a possible obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. 
As a measure of prudence, the contingent assets are not recognised.  
 

13) Impairment of Assets 
As at each balance sheet date, the carrying values of assets are reviewed for impairment if any 
indication of impairment exists 

14) Cash and Cash Equivalents-For the Purpose of Cash Flow Statements 
For the purpose of Cash Flow Statements, cash and cash equivalents include Cash on Hand and 
Balances with Banks in the Current Account as well as Fixed Deposits account 

15) Operating Cycle 
Based on the activities of the company and normal time between incurring of liabilities and their 
settlement in cash or cash equivalents and acquisition/right to assets and their realization in cash or 
cash equivalents, the company has considered its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of 
classification of its liabilities and assets as current and non-current 

16) Earnings Per Share 
The earnings per share as per AS-20 “Earning Per Share” has been computed on the basis of net profit 
after tax divided by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year 
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(Rs. In Lacs)
NOTE 2 :SHARE CAPITAL

SR.
NO.

EQUITY SHARES
I AUTHORISED

90,00,000 Shares of ` 10/= each at par 900.00 -
15,00,000 Shares of ` 10/= each at par in FY 2022-23 - 150.00

II Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up Capital
 83,37,272 Shares of Rs. 10/= each fully paid up 833.73
 13,83,240 Shares of Rs. 10/= each fully paid up as at 2022-23 138.32

TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES ….. ….. ….. 833.73 138.32

III

Outstanding as at the beginning of the year 13.83 13.83
Add: Shares issued as Bonus Shares by utilizing Securities 
Premium Account 44.54 -
Add: Shares isseud by Initial Public offer of Face Value 10 each 25.00 -
Outstanding as at the End of the year 83.37 13.83

Details of Shareholder Holding 5% or More Shares in the Company
Name of the Shareholder

No. of Shares % of Total Holding No. of Shares % of Total Holding
-27.31% Jyoti Prasad Bhattacharya 53,16,102          63.76% 12,59,740            91.07%

Details of Shares held by Promoters
Name of the Shareholder

No. of Shares % of Total Holding No. of Shares % of Total Holding
-27.31% Jyoti Prasad Bhattacharya 53,16,102          63.76% 12,59,740            91.07%
-0.36% Madhuchhanda Bhattacharya 69,630               0.84% 16,500                 1.19%
-0.36% Dev Bhattacharya 69,630               0.84% 16,500                 1.19%

NOTE 3 : RESERVE & SURPLUS
SR.
NO.

I Revalution Reserve 1049.57 1049.57

II Securities premium
Opening Balance 926.84 926.84
Less: Bonus Shares issued during the year (445.40) -
Add: Securities premium on shares issued by Initial Public Offer 2975.00 -
Less: Expense in relation to Initial Public offer (469.59) -
Closing Balance 2986.84 926.84

III Profit & Loss Statement Surplus
Balance as at the beginning of the year 2807.38 2238.47
Less: Earlier Year Income Tax adjustment (32.76) (139.04)
Add: Profit/(loss) during the year 781.25 707.94
Balance Carried to Balance Sheet 3555.87 2807.38

TOTAL  ….. ….. ….. 7592.28 4783.79

NOTE 4 : LONG TERM BORROWINGS
SR.
NO.

I. SECURED
1 TERM LOANS-FROM BANKS*

State Bank Of India -539 70.17 109.80
State Bank Of India -054 - 12.75
State Bank Of India -616 105.52 -
CBI Term Loan-746 - 8.68

175.69 131.23
II VEHICLE LOAN**

HDFC Bank Ltd -389 3.84 10.34
HDFC Car Loan -840 3.60 6.34
Mahindra And Mahindra Financial Services Ltd - 2.68
SBI Vehicle Loan 307 1.84 3.04

9.28 22.40
III UNSECURED
1 From Directors, Shareholders & Their Relatives 45.00 45.00

TOTAL  ….. ….. ….. 229.97 198.63
 

Variance

Variance

No. of Shares

31-03-2024

DEEM ROLL-TECH LIMITED

As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2022

P A R T I C U L A R S

31-03-2023

 AS AT  AS AT 
31-03-202331-03-2024

 AS AT  AS AT 
31-03-202331-03-2024

 AS AT  AS AT P A R T I C U L A R S

Reconciliation of Number Shares Outstanding at the 
beginning and at the end of the period

P A R T I C U L A R S

No. of Shares
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* Securities

Collateral Security Common for all facilities

Shri Jyoti Prasad Bhattacharya 
Smt Madhuchanda Bhattacharya
Shri Dev Bhattacharya

State Bank Of India -539
Particulars Amount

Monthly Installment with interest rate of RBI repo rate + 3.65% 
for 180 Months (amount inclusive of interest) 3,33,333            

**

NOTE 5:Deferred Tax Liabilities
SR.
NO.

Opening Balance 258.83 270.62
Add: Deferred Tax Liabilities/(Assets) 41.77 (11.79)

Balance Carried to Balance Sheet 300.60 258.83

NOTE 6: LONG TERM PROVISION
SR.
NO.

1 Gratuity -Long term 85.85 53.01

TOTAL  ….. ….. ….. 85.85 53.01

NOTE 7: SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
SR.
NO.

I. WORKING CAPITAL LOANS
SECURED

A. From Banks#
State Bank of India - CC 1852.98 984.70
Central Bank of India - CC - 757.87

II CURRENT MATURITY OF LONG TERM LIABILITIES
A. SECURED

TERM LOANS*/***
State Bank Of India -539 40.00 10.00
State Bank Of India -054 13.26 81.36
State Bank Of India -616 96.00 -
CBI Term Loan-746 - 33.66

149.26 125.02
VEHICLE LOAN**
HDFC Bank Ltd -389 7.88 7.88
HDFC Car Loan -840 3.37 3.37
Mahindra And Mahindra Financial Services Ltd 1.34 0.85
SBI Car Loan -314 - 0.12
SBI Vehicle Loan 307 2.43 2.43 14.65

15.02

TOTAL  ….. ….. ….. 2017.26 1882.24

NOTE 8 : TRADE PAYABLES
SR.
NO.

1 Sundry Creditors for Goods 1015.53 786.38

2 Sundry Creditors for Expenses 554.60 492.16

TOTAL  ….. ….. ….. 1570.13 1278.53

 AS AT  AS AT 
31-03-2024 31-03-2023

P A R T I C U L A R S  AS AT  AS AT 
31-03-2024 31-03-2023

P A R T I C U L A R S 31-03-2024 31-03-2023

P A R T I C U L A R S

1. (Factory Land & Buildings bearing Survey Number : 5566, 5567, 5568, situated at Mauza Talchinan Sanihati, J L No. 66, RS 108, Goswami Malipara Gram
Panchayet, PS Dadpur, District Hooghly, West Bengal, PS Dadpur, 712305, (Rural), Admeas'uring Total Area : 0.91 Acres ,
2. Factory Land & Buildings bearing Survey Number: 6002, situated at Mauza Talchi- nan Sanihati, J L No. 66, RS 108, Goswami Malipara Gram Panchayet,
PS Dadpur, Dis- trict Hooghly, West Bengal, PS Dadpur, 712305, (Rural), Ad measuring Total Area : 0.15 Acres ,

3.Factory Land & Buildings bearing Survey Number: 5565, situated at Mauza Talchi- nan Sanihati, J L No. 66, RS 108, Goswami Malipara Gram Panchayet,
PS Dadpur, Dis- trict Hooghly, West Bengal, PS Dadpur, 712305, (Rural), Admeasuring Total Area: 0.26 Acres ,

Equitable Mortgage over the factory land and building situated at – 

Equitable Mortgage over leasehold Factory Land and Building at Plot No. 1006 & 1007, Chhatral GIDC Estate, Phase-II, Opp. Varun Radiators, Nr. Khodiyar 
Hotel, Kaloi- Mehsana Highway, Chhatral, Gandhinagar in the name of company

Lien over Fixed Deposit of Rs. 20.00 lacs in the name of Jyoti Prasad Bhattacharya.

Hypothecation on entire fixed assets of the company financed by the Bank
Equitable Mortgage over the factory land and building situated at Survey No. 110/1 & 110/2, Village - Ganeshpura, Taluka - Kadi, District- Mehsana.

Equitable Mortgage over the factory land and building situated at District Hooghly, P.S. Dadpur, Mouje: Talchinan Sanihati, West Bengal (admeasuring 156
Decimal).

4.Factory Land & Buildings bearing Survey Number: 5606, situated at Mauza Talchi- nan Sanihati, J L No. 66, RS 108, Goswami Malipara Gram Panchayet,
PS Dadpur, Dis- trict Hooghly, West Bengal, PS Dadpur, 712305, (Rural), Admeasuring Total Area : 0.53 Acres

Equitable Mortgage over residential flat at Flat No. P-4, 9th Floor, Block-Shyam, Parth- sarthi Avenue, Near Chief Justice Bungalow, Ahmedabad in the name 
of Jyoti Prasad Bhattacharya.

Equitable Mortgage over Factory Land and Building situated at Plot No. 201, Old Survey No. 110/1 of 2-Area-4647 Sq. mt Plot No. 204 old Survey No. 109-
Area-4682 Sq Mtr Near Navjivan Hotel, Nr. Rameshwar Mill, Palanpur Road Mehsana owned by Deem Roll Tech Ltd

 AS AT  AS AT 

Equitable Mortgage on entire fixed assets of the company not financed by Banks with the company

Terms of repayment of term loans

Entire Term Loans from SBI secured by personal guarantees of the following persons.

P A R T I C U L A R S

Hypothecation over the vehicle for which it was sanctioned.

 AS AT 
31-03-2024

 AS AT 
31-03-2023
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NOTE: DUES TO MICRO AND SMALL ENTERPRISES

SR.
NO.

I
The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end
of the PERIOD. -                     64.67 - 478.58

II
Interest due as claimed remaining unpaid to any supplier at the
end of the year. -                     - - -

III The amount of interest paid by the company in terms of section
16 of the MSMED Act, 2006, along with the amount of the
payment made to the suppliers beyond the appointed day during
the year. -                     - - -

IV The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed
day during the year) but without adding the interest specified
under the MSMED Act, 2006. -                     - - -

V The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end
of accounting year. -                     - - -
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in
the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues
above are actually paid to the small enterprises, for the purpose
of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of
the MSMED Act, 2006. -                     - - -

TOTAL …. …. …. -                     64.67 - 478.58

I
II

III Kindly Refer Sub Note-43 For detailed Ageing of Creditors.
NOTE 8.1: TRADE PAYABLES AGEING SCHEDULE

SR.
NO.

1 MSME 64.04 0.63 - -
2 Others 1439.54 4.31 0.24 4.00
3 Disputed Dues MSME
4 Disputed Dues Others 0.44 1.01 0.58 55.35

SR.
NO.

1 MSME 478.37 0.21 - -
2 Others 712.24 4.72 1.49 21.05
3 Disputed Dues MSME - - - -
4 Disputed Dues Others - 0.73 0.42 59.30

NOTE 9 : OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
SR.
NO.
I Statutory Liability 92.86 72.56

II Other Current Liability
Advance From Customers/Sundry Credit Balances 345.66 279.24
Salary payable 90.33 77.18
Payables on purchase of fixed assets 15.61 11.66

TOTAL  ….. ….. ….. 544.46 440.64

NOTE 10 : SHORT TERM PROVISIONS
SR.
NO.

Provision For Employee benefits-Gratuity 11.18 24.77
Rent Payable To Staff 0.26 0.26
Provision For Electricity 51.25 31.37
Provision For Audit fees 6.75 6.75
Provision For Income tax 164.90 262.20

TOTAL  ….. ….. ….. 234.34 325.35

NOTE 12: LONG TERM LOANS & ADVANCES
SR.
NO.

MAT credit entitlement 138.45 272.14
-

TOTAL  ….. ….. ….. 138.45 272.14

NOTE 13: OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
SR.
NO.

A. DEPOSITS
Security Deposits 33.06 3.77

TOTAL  ….. ….. ….. 33.06 3.77

 Less-than 1Year  1 to 2 Years  2 to 3 Years More-than 3 Years

P A R T I C U L A R S  AS AT 
31-03-2023

 AS AT 

P A R T I C U L A R S  AS AT  AS AT 

31-03-2024

 

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled within the normal credit period.
Disclosure of payable to vendors as defined under the “Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006” is based on the information available 

P A R T I C U L A R S

 AS AT 31ST MARCH 2023 
 O/S for following periods from due date of payments 

AS ATAS AT
31-03-2024P A R T I C U L A R S

31-03-2024 31-03-2023

31-03-2023

P A R T I C U L A R S  AS AT  AS AT 
31-03-2024 31-03-2023

More-than 3 Years

P A R T I C U L A R S AS AT AS AT
31-03-2024 31-03-2023

The Company has dues outstanding as at the reporting date to certain suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006 (‘MSMED Act’). The disclosures pursuant to the said MSMED Act, 2006 are as follows:

P A R T I C U L A R S

 AS AT 31ST MARCH 2024 
 O/S for following periods from due date of payments 

 Less-than 1Year  1 to 2 Years  2 to 3 Years 
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NOTE 14: INVENTORIES
SR.
NO.
I

1 Raw Materials 681.36 847.15  
2 Finish Goods 139.26 228.08  
3 Work-in-Process 2892.84 1486.37
4 Consumable 131.15 77.24  

3844.61 2638.84

TOTAL  ….. ….. ….. 3844.61 2638.84

NOTE 15: TRADE RECEIVABLES
SR.
NO.

1 Unsecured But Considered Good
-Outstanding for a period Exceeding Six Months 42.24 479.52
(From the date from which they became due for payment)
-Others 2228.27 1446.98

2 Doubtful Debtors (o/s for a period exceeding 6 months) 84.84 -

TOTAL  ….. ….. ….. 2355.35 1926.50

I Kindly Refer Sub Note-44 For detailed Ageing of Debtors.

NOTE 16: CASH & BANK BALANCES
SR.
NO.
I. Cash & Cash Equivalents

1 Balance with Banks
- In Current Account 220.16 213.00

2 Cash on Hand 20.25 18.00

3 Fixed Deposits 2167.81 131.70
TOTAL  ….. ….. ….. 2408.23 362.69

NOTE 17: SHORT TERM LOANS & ADVANCES
SR.
NO.
I. Unsecured and Considered Good-From Government

1 Bal. with Government Authorities 295.70 150.40
295.70 150.40

II. Unsecured But Considered Good-From Others
1 Advances to Suppliers & Other Debit Balances 101.67 83.76
2 Others Advances 771.59 545.54

873.25 629.30
TOTAL  ….. ….. ….. 1168.95 779.70

NOTE 18: REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
SR.
NO.
I. SALE OF PRODUCTS 

1 Manufacturing Sales 10083.28 10337.13
10083.28 10337.13

TOTAL  ….. ….. ….. 10083.28 10337.13
Sale of Products Comprises
(Information to be given in respect of items constituting 
more than 10% of the value)

1 Adamite Rolls 1535.95 1774.07
2 Spheroidal Graphite Iron Rolls 7867.82 7902.58

NOTE 19: OTHER INCOME
SR.
NO.
I. Other Non-Operating Income 

1 Exchange rate difference 11.29 45.38
2 Export incetive Received 26.31 54.14
3 Interest From bank-Deposit 10.17 11.32
4 Interest on income tax refund - 0.30
5 Other Interest - 0.38
6 Other Income 12.30 3.01

TOTAL  ….. ….. ….. 60.08 114.52

AS AT
31-03-2024

AS AT
31-03-2023

P A R T I C U L A R S  AS AT  AS AT 
31-03-2024 31-03-2023

-Inventories taken as Physically verified, valued and certified by the management of the company

Amount RS.
 Previous Year 

Amount RS.

31-03-2024
 AS AT 

31-03-2023

 AS AT 
31-03-2024

 AS AT 
31-03-2023

Amount RS.

 Current Year P A R T I C U L A R S

 AS AT 

 Current Year 
Amount RS.

 Previous Year 

P A R T I C U L A R S

P A R T I C U L A R S

P A R T I C U L A R S

P A R T I C U L A R S
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NOTE 20: COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED 
SR.
NO.
I. RAW MATERIALS CONSUMED:

Opening Stock 847.15 614.83  
Add : Purchases (Net of VAT Set off ) 6754.77 6672.96  

7601.92 7287.79  
Less : Closing Stocks (681.36) (847.15)

6920.56 6440.65
TOTAL  ….. ….. ….. 6920.56 6440.65

II. Total Material Consumed 
Details of Material Consumed
(Information to be given in respect of items constituting more 
than 10% of the value)
M S Scrap 1635.77 1654.07
Nikel Magnesium 791.31 989.66
SGI Scrap 1471.09 1337.58
Ferro Moly 636.12 -

NOTE 21: VARIATION IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS AND WORK IN PROCESS
SR.
NO.
I. Closing Stock 

Finish Goods 139.26 228.08
WIP 2892.84 1486.37
Consumable 131.15 77.24

II. Opening Stock
Finish Goods 228.08 176.66
WIP 1486.37 1224.45
Consumable 77.24 -

Variation of Stock (1371.55) (390.59)

NOTE 22: MANUFACTURING EXPENSES
SR.
NO.

1 Power, Fuel & Utilities :
Factory Power & Light Exp. 982.01 884.11  
Gas Consumption Expense 119.81 135.98

1101.81 1020.08

2 Repairs & Maintenance 24.97 27.97
3 Other Expenses- MFG. 249.58 478.66

TOTAL  ….. ….. ….. 1376.37 1526.72

NOTE 23: EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
SR.
NO.

1 Salaries, Wages & Labour Charges
-To Directors 281.33 225.83
-To Others 822.02 735.29

2 Contribution towards employee funds & Allowances 100.65 38.75
3 Other Staff Expenses 21.33 40.42

TOTAL  ….. ….. ….. 1225.33 1040.28

NOTE 24: FINANCE COST
SR.
NO.

1 Bank & Other Financial Charges 51.93 49.76
2 Loan Processing Charges
3 Interest

-On Working Capital Facilities 154.97 96.97  
-On Term Loan 21.73 30.44  

176.70 127.41
4 Other Interest 34.15 21.11

TOTAL  ….. ….. ….. 262.78 198.29

NOTE 25: DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSES
SR.
NO.

1 Depreciation on Fixed Assets 177.22 171.38
TOTAL  ….. ….. ….. 177.22 171.38

 Current Year 
Amount RS.

 Previous Year 

Amount RS.

Amount RS.

Amount RS. Amount RS.

 Current Year 

P A R T I C U L A R S

 Current Year 

P A R T I C U L A R S  Current Year  Previous Year 
Amount RS.

 Previous Year 

 Current Year 
Amount RS.

 Previous Year 
Amount RS.

P A R T I C U L A R S

P A R T I C U L A R S

P A R T I C U L A R S

P A R T I C U L A R S

Amount RS.
 Previous Year 

Amount RS.

 Current Year 
Amount RS.

 Previous Year 
Amount RS.
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NOTE 26: ADMINISTRATIVE, SELLING AND OTHER EXPENSES
SR.
NO.
I. Adminitrative Expenses

1 Postage, Telephone & Computer Expenses 10.18 7.02
2 Stationery & Printing 2.96 2.69
3 Travelling,Conveyance & Vehical Expenses 119.13 95.77
4 Legal & Professional Charges 74.59 81.62
5 Auditor's Remuneration

         Statutory Audit Fees 6.00 6.00
         Tax Audit Fees - -

6 Insurance 8.88 6.69
7 Rate, Rent & Taxes 36.92 11.47

II. Selling Expenses
1 Advertisement Expense 1.37 0.05
2 Fees & Subscription charges 12.11 15.58
3 Sales Promotion Expenses 13.92 7.76  
4 Sales Commission 66.35 71.44  

93.75 94.83

III. Other Expenses 212.32 200.47
564.73 506.57

TOTAL  ….. ….. ….. 1941.09 2033.29

NOTE 26.1: AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION
SR.
NO.

Auditor's Remuneration comprises of
- Audit Fees 6.00 6.00
- Other Services 5.17 -
- Reimbursement of out of pocket expenses - -

TOTAL  ….. ….. ….. 11.17 6.00

NOTE 27: EARNINGS PER SHARE
SR.
NO.

Profit after Tax 781.25 707.94
Weighted Average number of equity shares 60.46 13.83
Nominal Value of equity share 833.73 138.32

Basic Earning per share of Rs 12.92                       51.18                         
Diluted Earnings per share of Rs 12.92                       51.18                         

Amount RS.
 Current Year 

P A R T I C U L A R S  Current Year  Previous Year 
Amount RS. Amount RS.

P A R T I C U L A R S  Current Year  Previous Year 
Amount RS. Amount RS.

P A R T I C U L A R S Amount RS.
 Previous Year 
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NOTE 28 :Contingent liabilities & committements: (Rs. In Lacs)
 Year ended 

March,31 2024 
 Year ended 

March 31,2023 

373.16 320.84

276.70 262.22

3.81 3.81

131.62 132.38

785.29 719.25

NOTE 29: Value of imports calculated on C.I.F. basis

 Foreign Currency 
 Equivalent Indian 
Currency  Foreign Currency 

 Equivalent Indian 
Currency 

 Raw Materials $1,02,820 86.52 $28,596 22.95
$1,06,576 $ 14,788

Euro 100.01 Euro 2,370
TOTAL Rs. >>> 175.52 46.81

NOTE 30: Earnings in Foreign Currency :

 Export of goods calculated on F.O.B. Basis 1670.45  1733.16

TOTAL Rs. >>> -                                             1670.45 -                                  1733.16

NOTE 31 :Related Party Disclosures::

NOTE 31(A). List of Related parties
 Key Management Personnel  Relatives of Key Management 

Personnel 
 Jyoti Prasad Bhattacharya (Managing Director& CEO)  Madhuchhanda Bhattacharya 

 Ranajit Dey (Director)   Shila Dey 
 Pijush Kanti Dey (Director   Soma Dey 
 Janak Navinchandra Gajjar(CFO) 

 Dev Jyotiprasad Bhattacharya(Whole Time Director) 

Particulars

 Particulars 

 Associate Concerns/ Entities in which managerial personnel/relative 
of key managerial personnel have significant influence: 

 As per AS-18 “Related Party Disclosures” issued by the ICAI, the disclosure of transactions with relate parties as defined in the accounting standard has been given 
as under: 

Year ended �March 31,2023

Year ended �March 31,2023

Year ended �March,31 2024

Year ended �March,31 2024

OTHER NOTES

TOTAL Rs. >>>

 Letter of Credit Facilities provided by the Bank
State Bank of India. 

 ESIC Demand for which suit is being filed 

 Civil Cases litigation demand for raw material and others  

Particulars

a) Contingent Liabilities
Guarantees issued by the company’s bankers on behalf of the company:
 State Bank of India     :  Rs.1,48,09,755                                                                         
Centeral Bank Of India: Rs.2,25,06,439.00  
 Note there is one expired old bank guarantees in list against which marginal Fixed 
Deposit taken by bank 

89.00
 Payment of License fees & others 

23.86

Diacut Roll Private limited

 Diacut Machining
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NOTE 31(B). Transaction with Related Parties (Rs. In Lacs)
 Nature of Transaction 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

240.00 196.00
21.91 21.84

8.80 6.60
7.80 5.40

11.20 -
6.47 -

- 4.55
5.41 -

 Purchase and Job work 358.75 285.57
 Loan Repayment 83.00 -
 Repayment of Staff Loan 0.27 -
 Rent Expense 4.80 3.00

- 38.00
45.00 7.00

 Repayment of Staff Loan 3.09 -
 Rent O/S 0.36 0.36
 Purchase & job Work O/S 92.81 154.06

11.90 12.87
1.47 1.41
0.92 0.53

- 0.43
0.78 -

NOTE 32 : Utilisation Of Borrowed Funds And Share Premium:

 NOTE 33 : Taxes on Income: 

 NOTE 35 :Prior Period Items: 

 NOTE 36 

 NOTE 37 

 Outstanding Balances as at the year end- Credit Balance  

NOTE 34 :Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

 Unsecured Loan  Jyoti Prasad Bhattacharya 
 Madhuchhanda Bhattacharya 

 Jyoti Prasad Bhattacharya 
 Interest of Unsecured Loan 

 Madhuchanda Bhattacharya 

 Soma Dey 

 Soma Dey 

 Janak Navinchandra Gajjar 
 Jyoti Prasad Bhattacharya 

Jyoti Prasad Bhattacharya
Ranajit Dey
Pijush Kanti Dey
Shila Dey
Dev Bhattacharya
Janak Navinchandra Gajjar

Name of the Party  

Remuneration

The Company recognises a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event that probably requires an outflow of the Company's resources
embodying economic benefits and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure of contingent liabilities is made when there is a
possible obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. As a measure of prudence, the contingent assets are not recognised. 

 Prior period expenses have been adjusted to the carrying amount of surplus of Statement of Profit & Loss. 

In the opinion of the Board of Directors, Current Assets & Loans and Advances have a value on realisation in the ordinary course of business equal to the amount at
which they are stated in the balance sheet. In the opinion of the Board of Directors, claims receivable against property/goods are realizable as per the terms of the
agreement and/or other applicable relevant factors and have been stated in the financial statements at the value which is most probably expected to be realized.

 Dev Bhattacharya (Diacut Machining) 

  Diacut Machining 

(a) During the year, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
company to or in any persons or entities, including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, any security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Benificiaries.

(b) During the year, no funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, any security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Benificiaries.

Taxes on income comprises of current tax and deferred tax. Taxes on income have been determined based on the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred income taxes are determined for future consequences attributable to timing differences between financial
determination of income and income chargeable to tax as per the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961. Deferred tax liability has been worked out using the tax rate
and tax laws that were in force as on the date of balance sheet and has not been discounted to its present value.
Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) is recognized as an asset only when, and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the company will pay normal income tax
during the specific period. If the MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset in accordance the recommendations contained in the Guidance note issued
by ICAI, the said is created by the way of credit to the statement of Profit & Loss & shown as MAT credit entitlement.

 Jyoti Prasad Bhattacharya 
 Ranajit Dey 
 Pijush Kanti Dey 
 Shila Dey 
 Dev Bhattacharya 

 Remuneration 
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The company has obtained balance confirmation from some of the parties for Unsecured Loans, Sundry Creditors, Sundry Debtors and parties to whom loans/advance
have been granted. All other balances of debtors and creditors, loans and advances and unsecured loans are subject to confirmation and subsequent reconciliation, if
any.
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 NOTE 38 :MSME  

 NOTE 39 

 NOTE 40 

 NOTE 41 

 Salary expense   
Raw Material for Research & Development

 Consumable Material for Research & Development 
Printing & Stationery Exp
Job work Charges
Staff Welfare Expenses
Inspection & Testing Exp
Conveyance Exp
Freight Inward  Exp. - R & D 

 Repairs  & Maintenance Exp. 

 Computers 0.56 0.77
Crane 32.66 34.62

 Electric Installation 0.45 0.45
Factory Equipment 0.31 0.74
Machinery 305.66 326.29
Office Equipment 0.04 0.04

-                                             339.68 362.92

The company has communicated suppliers to provide confirmations as to their status as Micro, Small or Medium Enterprise registered under the applicable category
as per the provisions of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (Development) Act, 2006 (MSMED Act, 2006). The company has classified suppliers into Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises as per the confirmations received by the company upto the date of the financial statements and accordingly other suppliers are
classified as Non-MSME Suppliers irrespective of their status as per the provisions of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (Development) Act, 2006 (MSMED
Act, 2006).

Expenditure on research activities undertaken with the prospect of gaining new scientific or technical knowledge and understanding are recognised as an expense
when incurred. Development activities involve a plan or design for the production of new or substantially improved products and processes. An internally-generated
intangible asset arising from development is recognised if and only if all of the following have been demonstrated:

�development costs can be measured reliably
�the product or process is technically and commercially feasible
�future economic benefits are probable  and
�the Company intends to and has sufficient resources/ability to complete  development and to use or sell the asset.
The expenditure to be capitalized include the cost of materials and other costs directly attributable to preparing the asset for its intended use. Other development

expenditure is recognized in profit or loss as incurred.
Separate accounts have been maintained in respect of expenditure on R&D including Capital expenditure, Salaries & Wages of R&D staff, Materials &

Consumables used in R&D and other R&D related recurring expenditure

NOTE 41(A) Research and Development Expenditure included in the statement of profit and loss

73.61

0.19
4.90
0.21
0.11
0.31

-

 Paise are rounded up to the nearest of rupee. The negative figures have been shown in brackets.

NOTE 41(B)�Research and Development Expenditure incurred for acquisition of capital assets included in the Fixed Assets in Balance Sheet

Particulars Year ended �March,31 2024 Year ended �March 31,2023
81.15

0.79
0.14
0.49
0.17

613.97684.08

Particulars
 Additions during the 

Financial Year 2023-24 
 Closing Balance as at 

March 31, 2024 
 Closing Balance as at 

March 31, 2023 

The previous year’s figures have been reworked, regrouped and reclassified wherever necessary so as to make them comparable with those of the current period. 

3.61
0.11

538.14

58.82

0.25 0.20

51.99

482.87
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Note 42-
(b) Defined benefit plans:

(a) Gratuity

AS ON AS ON
31 March 2024 31-Mar-23

Discount rate (per annum) 7.21% 7.50%
Expected rate of salary increase 4.00% 4.00%

Attrition rate 5% p.a for all service groups
5% p.a for all service 

groups
Mortality rate during employment (% of IALM 2012-
14) Urban 100% 100%

2. Movements in present value of obligation and plan assets
AS ON AS ON

31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Opening defined benefit obligation 57.86 52.03
Current service cost 7.94 7.01
Interest cost 4.34 3.76
Benefit Paid Directly by the Employer (5.93) (4.79)
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in financial 
assumptions 2.21 (1.31)
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from experience 
adjustments 30.61 1.16
Closing defined benefit obligation 97.03 57.86

3. Classification of Defined benefit Obligation
AS ON AS ON

31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Non-Current Liability 85.85 53.01
Current Liability 11.18 4.85
Total Liability carried to Balancesheet 97.03 57.86

4. Amount of Expense recognised in the Profit & Loss
AS ON AS ON

31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Current Service Cost 7.94 7.01
Interest on Obligation 4.34 3.76
Net actuarial losses (gains) recognized in the year 32.83 (0.14)
Expense recognised in Profit & Loss 45.10 10.63

5. Sensitivity analysis of significant assumptions are as follows:
AS ON AS ON

31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Defined benefit obligation (Base) 97.03 57.86

Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Discounting (7.25) (4.40)
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Discounting 8.43 5.13

Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase 8.62 5.26

Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase (7.52) (4.58)

Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Employee 
Turnover 2.31 1.56
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Employee 
Turnover (2.63) (1.78)

P A R T I C U L A R S

P A R T I C U L A R S

P A R T I C U L A R S

The Company has following post employment benefits which are in the nature of defined benefit plans:

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. The plan provides for 

1. The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

P A R T I C U L A R S

P A R T I C U L A R S
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6. Weighted average duration of defined plan obligation (based on discounted cash flows)
AS ON AS ON

31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Weighted average duration 11 11

NOTE 43: TRADE PAYABLES AGEING SCHEDULE

MSME 64.04 0.63 - -
Others 1439.54 4.31 0.24 4.00
Disputed Dues MSME
Disputed Dues Others 0.44 1.01 0.58 55.35

MSME 478.37 0.21 - -
Others 712.24 4.72 1.49 21.05
Disputed Dues MSME - - - -
Disputed Dues Others - 0.73 0.42 59.30

 NOTE 44:TRADE RECEIVABLES AGEING SCHEDULE
AS AT 31ST MARCH 2024

Less-than 6 months 2007.99 43.15 - -
Less-than 6 months - 1 Year 220.27 - - -
1 to 2 Years 42.24 - -
2 to 3 Years - 7.30 -
More-Than �3 Years - - 34.39

AS AT 31ST MARCH 2023

Less-than 6 months 1446.98 - - -
Less-than 6 months - 1 Year 66.36 - - -
1 to 2 Years 155.14 - 9.00 -
2 to 3 Years 50.49 - 2.97 -
More-Than �3 Years 160.37 - 35.19 -
FOR S. N. SHAH & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

sd/- sd/-
sd/- Jyoti Prasad Bhattacharya        Dev Bhattacharya               
PRIYAM SHAH Managing Director                    Whole Time Director              
PARTNER [DIN: 00340485]                            [DIN: 09842191]
M. NO. 144892
UDIN: 24144892BKAVOK9587

sd/- sd/-

PLACE: AHMEDABAD Alka Kumari                     Janak Navinchandra Gajjar             
DATE: 27/05/2024 [ACS NO. 31249]                     [PAN: AJQPG6593H]

For DEEM ROLL- TECH LIMITED
AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE

P A R T I C U L A R S

 Particulars 

O/S For Following Periods From Due Date 
of Payments

 Undisputed Trade 
Recievables - Considered 

Good 

 Undisputed Trade 
Recievables - 
Considered 

Doubtful 

 Disputed Trade 
Receivables- 

Considered Good 

 Disputed Trade 
Recievables - 
Considered 
Doubtfull 

P A R T I C U L A R S

 AS AT 31ST MARCH 2023 
 O/S for following periods from due date of payments 

 Less-than 1 Year  1 to 2 Years  2 to 3 Years More-than 3 
Years

 Particulars 

O/S For Following Periods From Due Date 
of Payments

 Undisputed Trade 
Recievables - Considered 

Good 

 Undisputed Trade 
Recievables - 
Considered 

Doubtful 

 Disputed Trade 
Receivables- 

Considered Good 

 Disputed Trade 
Recievables - 
Considered 
Doubtfull 

Company Secretary              Chief Financial Officer              

P A R T I C U L A R S

 AS AT 31ST MARCH 2024 
 O/S for following periods from due date of payments 

 Less-than 1 Year  1 to 2 Years  2 to 3 Years More-than 3 
Years
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(Rs. In Lacs)

A SUNDRY CREDITORS FOR GOODS 31-03-2024 31-03-2023
1            Agarwal Metal Company - 33.32
2            Akshit Enterprises Pvt Ltd 24.96 24.96
3            Apex Steel 46.11 -
4            Bhoomi Steel - 8.56
5            Bhagyalaxmi Steel 11.78
6            Bhilai Steel Plant -
7            Ferrolink 4.05 1.57
8            Hariyana Industries 38.42 4.49
9            Harsh Foundry Fluxes & Alloys 1.41 0.93

10           B S rap� 13.56
11          Keval Exports 22.53
12          Kalika Steel Alloys Pvt Ltd - 14.77
13          Kastwel Foundries 145.54 196.19
14          Khushboo Ispat Pvt Ltd 63.39 -
15          Kothari Metals Ltd 71.13 85.24
16          Lakhmichand Ispat 63.09 25.88
17          Lalwani Ferro Alloys Limited - Gj - 48.31
18          Lalwani Ferro Alloys Ltd 81.40 30.99
19          Lalwani Industries Limited - 0.16
20          M.J. Products 6.46 6.46
21          M.M. Ceramics & Ferro Alloys 58.76 49.51
22          Mac Mould Corporation 24.01 0.05
23          Milan Ferro Alloys Pvt Ltd 1.35 1.35
24          Minmat Ferro Alloys Pvt Ltd 58.25 34.49
25          Moldex Industries 40.88 -
26          Moly Metal Llp - 0.06
27          Nagpur Pyrolusite Private Limited 41.64 43.08
28          Ozona Ferro Inc 33.25 30.93
29          Pfi Heavy Press Forgings 69.62
30          P N Alloys 2.79
31          Punjab Forging Industries - 15.19
32          Rebanta Steels Pvt Ltd 10.69
33          R D Metal 1.88 -
34          Radhe Traders - 27.11
35          Reitu Metals And Alloys 44.02 18.31
36          S K Corporation 10.51
37          S.M.Trades & Industries-Kol - 17.41
38          Sagar Ferro Alloys� - 20.39
39          Shah Indrakumar Kantilal & Co 16.93 0.07
40          Sps Steel Rolling Mills Limited - 0.06
41          Subham Steel - 15.69
42          Uma Traders - 15.84
43          Yug Alloys 7.12 15.03

Total 1015.53 786.38
Creditors For Expenses 0.45 0.45

1            A.P. Electrical Works 0.20 0.26
2            A.S. Refractories - 0.50
3            Aarya Communication 0.13 -
4            Abhijit Dutta 1.55 1.24
5            Abhijit Ghosh-Kol 0.01 -
6            Abhishek Ghosh 0.40 0.44
7            Acme Foundry Flux Co 1.20 -
8            Adarsh Refractories 0.58 -
9            Advatech Industries Pvt Ltd 2.05 2.25

10          Aim Gas Agency-Kol 0.03 0.03
11          Airmax Pneumatic Automation - 0.04
12          Albatross Fine Chem Pvt Ltd 0.24 1.29
13          Alka Agrawal 0.44 -

DEEM ROLL-TECH LIMITED

GROUPINGS OF BALANCE SHEET 
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14          Alpha Trans & Shipping 1.56 -
15          Aman Corporations 17.46 4.14
16          Anand Safety House� - -
17          Anant Enterprises 0.04 0.13
18          Anil Kumar Yadav - 0.34
19          Anjali Engineering Works 0.19 0.19
20          Anjani Gases 0.76 1.13
21          Ankit Telecom & Electricals 5.02 4.51
22          Aone Traders 0.45 0.23
23          Aparna Chatterjee 0.04 -
24          Aquatech Industries - 0.08
25          Arihant Enterprises 0.01 -
26          Ark  Infosolution - 1.47
27          Arya Refrigeration And Electric 0.12 -
28          Associated Pneumatic Toools - -
29          Associated Road Carrier Ltd 0.59 -
30          Ata Oil Processing Pvt Ltd. - 6.71
31          Aum Enterprise 0.92 0.32
32          Ava Engineering Works - Kol - 0.10
33          Avantika Trading Corporation 8.56 9.16
34          Avenue Express 0.20 0.03
35          Avika Foundry Flux 0.73 0.23
36          Aviteksol 0.22 0.25
37          Axis Bank Credit Card-5919 - 0.20
38          Axis Bank Credit Card-5919/2884 - -
39          B P Lubricants Pvt Ltd 8.72 5.74
40          B.M. Industries 0.02 -
41          Balaji Impex 0.59 0.59
42          Balaji Silicates - -
43          Balram Sales Corporation - 0.02
44          Basudev Basu 0.09 0.09
45          Baviskar Sales & Service 0.00 -
46          Bcm Internet Company 0.21 -
47          Benchmarx Logistics Solutions - 2.12
48          Bengal Bearing Corporation 1.06 0.98
49          Bhagwati Aviations Services Pvt Ltd - 0.03
50          Bhagwati Holidays - 0.41
51          Bharat Cargo Movers 1.85 4.37
52          Bharat Oxytech Pvt Ltd 0.38 1.36
53          Bharat Steel Corporation - -
54          Bharti Airtel Limited 0.15 -
55          Bhaskar Batabyal-Kol 0.31 1.38
56          Bhupendrabhai R Patel - 0.30
57          Bigshare Services Pvt Ltd - -
58          Bose Enterprises - 0.32
59          Bright Enterprise 0.83 0.49
60          Calcutta Transport Company-Kol 8.70 7.23
61          Central Road Transport Corporation - 0.52
62          Champa Industries 3.19 5.06
63          Chemsy India Technologies 0.19 -
64          Cvc & Associates 0.45 0.45
65          D K Taxi Services 0.20 -
66          Deb Kumar Sen 0.52 0.34
67          Deep Instrument 0.01 0.75
68          Deep Security Force 5.82 6.25
69          Deepak Steels 2.75 2.75
70          Deepak Trading Co.Kol 0.69 -
71          Dhanlaxmi Trading Corporation. 1.67 1.58
72          Dharini Medical Stores 0.17 -
73          Dhriti Sunder De 0.37 0.52
74          Dhyanam Vyas And Associates 0.75 -
75          Diacut Machining 92.81 154.06
76          Digital Place 0.04 -
77          Director Remuneration Payable - B.K.Singh - 0.70
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78          Drasti Power Tools & Electricals - 0.67
79          Dsb Logistics Trading -
80          Durbanath Samanta - 0.22
81          Echo Air Gases Pvt Ltd-Kol 0.51 0.39
82          Ekta Roadways 0.17 0.13
83          Electrotherm India Ltd 0.24 0.26
84          Emu Lines Pvt Ltd 0.28 -
85          Engineering Hindustan - 0.01
86          Ercon -Kol - -
87          Excel Product System - 0.03
88          Exomet Foundry Products 1.38 2.05
89          F.S.Roadways-Kol 0.27 0.27
90          Falgun Bharat Gas 0.21 0.21
91          Fedex Securities Private Ltd 19.71 -
92          Fincast Foundry Flux Co 1.41 -
93          Flesha Paints & Chemical 0.64 0.81
94          Flying International 0.22 -
95          Foryou Tech Co.,Ltd. - -
96          Futuretec Infrasolution 0.49 -
97          G.P Financial Services 0.02 -
98          Ganesh Traders 2.18 1.47
99          Ganguly Enterprise 0.73 -

100        Gautam Fumigation Services 0.07 -
101        Gayatri Trading Company 2.50 2.76
102        Gayatri Water 0.22 0.15
103        Genius Advertising 8.35 -
104        German Techno Cast 9.34 -
105        Gew Electropower Project Pvt Ltd 0.33 0.40
106        Ghanshyam Tools Co 9.69 7.43
107        Ghosh Travels - -
108        Gujarat Foundry Flux Co. 0.78 0.78
109        Guru Nanak Trading Corporation 0.02 0.02
110        Gurukrupa Engineers� 0.58 1.12
111        H K Steels 0.06 0.03
112        Harinarayan B. Choudhary 0.47 0.44
113        Hdfc Credit Card 9078 - 0.02
114        Hitech Marketing 0.09 -
115        Hotel Navjeevan 0.64 0.22
116        Hotel Shailly Inn 0.07 -
117        Icici Credit Card - 0.59
118        Icici Credit Card-0005 - -
119        Imperial Refractories - 0.27
120        Indiana Bearings Pvt Ltd - 0.26
121        Indtech Marketing - 0.03
122        Industrial Steel Corporation 0.09 0.02
123        Inland World Logistics Pvt. Ltd. 0.63 -
124        Isha Enterprises - 0.93
125        Ishan Steel - -
126        Ishwarkrupa Engineering - 0.04
127        Ivp Limited 9.19 5.85
128        J K Rahit & Co. 0.02 -
129        Jalaram Wood Industries. 0.45 0.41
130        James Hydraulic 0.03 -
131        Janki Turning - -
132        Jay Ambe Tools 0.04 0.04
133        Jay Trading Company - 3.93
134        Jayamal Thakor & Co - 0.03
135        Jayantibhai Govabhai Senma - -
136        Jetspeed Logistics Pvt Ltd. 27.45 5.43
137        Jhapsi Engineers 0.24 -
138        Jignesh A.Shah - 0.47
139        Jinesh Trading Co - 3.16
140        Jj Enterprise 1.75 1.16
141        Jyoti Industries 1.29 5.52
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142        Kaba Express Private Limited 10.25 2.84
143        Kamani Chemicals Pvt Ltd 1.38 1.16
144        Kanaiyalal P. Oza 0.23 0.45
145        Kankeshwari Corporation 0.20 -
146        Kapil Bansal 0.16 0.16
147        Kay Carriers 0.56 -
148        Khodiyar Engineering - 1.54
149        Kiran Chemicals - 0.18
150        Korban Sekh - 0.28
151        Kothari Engineering Corporation - -
152        Koushiki Enterprise 0.37 0.13
153        Kripson Enterprise-Kol 0.03 2.19
154        Krishna & Company 0.17 0.01
155        Krishna Fabrication & Erection - 0.18
156        Krishna Sharma 0.50 0.10
157        Krishnendu Roy 0.15 -
158        Kuldeep Transport Corporation 10.20 10.19
159        Kutch Ratnam Roadways 0.90 0.23
160        Laxmi Electrical 0.09 -
161        Laxminarayan Cable T.V - -
162        Lcl Logistix (India) Pvt Ltd 3.33 3.33
163        M.A.Trading Co.Kol 6.18 -
164        M.B.Saiyad 2.38 -
165        M.I.Prajapati & Associates 0.46 -
166        M.M.Engineering Works 0.05 -
167        Maa Nistarini Flame. 2.03 0.22
168        Madhav Gears 0.59 1.09
169        Mahalaxmi Senitary Suppliers 0.38 -
170        Mahesh Jayrambhai Rabari 0.79 0.31
171        Mahesh Tools - 0.02
172        Maheshwari Tools Centre 5.57 4.70
173        Manam Tradelinks 0.37 -
174        Manav Machine Tools 0.23 -
175        Maruti Electrical Co 0.15 0.20
176        Maruti Enterprise 0.34 0.08
177        Maruti Road Carrier 0.51 -
178        Matanheliya Technologies - 0.35
179        Matcut Enterprise 1.60 -
180        Maven Automation - -
181        Md Petrol Pump 0.23 0.24
182        Meghmani Metal Industries 0.01 -
183        Mill Stores Trading Company 8.31 8.31
184        Minerex (India) 2.51 7.51
185        Mithilesh Kumar Singh 0.06 0.12
186        Mithun Hiralal Parmar 1.86 1.52
187        Mittal Carriers 0.67 -
188        Monad Electronics 0.38 0.38
189        Monisha Logistic 0.04 0.80
190        Moongipa Transport P Ltd - 0.28
191        Mortex India 1.04 0.89
192        Motto Tech Industries Pvt Ltd - -
193        Mp Tools - 0.65
194        M.K.Soil Testing Laboratory Pvt.Ltd. 0.53
195        Mukherjee Precition Works 0.11 0.14
196        Naaz Motor Guarage 0.06 -
197        Nanda Automobiles Pvt.Ltd. 0.11 -
198        Nanjibhai P Parmar 0.79 0.38
199        Nathulal Parmar 0.78 0.61
200        National Calibration Services 0.20 0.16
201        National Securities Depository Ltd (Nsdl 2.40 -
202        Natuji Vaktaji Thakor 0.33 0.12
203        Navya Power 0.07 0.07
204        New Cossipore Oil Company 2.53 0.81
205        New Sonal Engineers 2.62 9.95
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206        Nidhi Xerox 0.23 0.15
207        Nitco Logistics Pvt Ltd - -
208        Om Shri Logistics 6.58 8.32
209        P.D. Electrical Works 0.39 0.02
210        Pandua Indane Service 0.23 0.23
211        Paras F Jain & Co 1.32 1.32
212        Parihar Metals 0.05 0.21
213        Parshwa Chemicals 1.17 1.75
214        Patel Enterprise - 0.24
215        Patel Enterprise ( Vasant Vihar) 1.10 -
216        Paul Engineering & Repairing Works. 0.02 -
217        Perfect Corporation - -
218        Perfect Electrical & Mechanical Works 0.08 0.47
219        Perfect Enterprise - 0.59
220        Pijushkanti Dey - 2.27
221        Pradip Kumar Ghosh - 0.30
222        Pramathes Das - 0.29
223        Pratibha Engineering 0.00 5.73
224        Pravin Pottery Works 0.11 -
225        Precision Industries - 0.29
226        Precision Tools & Engineers 0.29 0.29
227        Prime Instruments - -
228        Prime Product 0.30 2.11
229        Promeet Roadlines 0.34 0.42
230        Punjab Forging Industies -
231        Ratna Ghosh 0.06
232        R R Patel Industrial Gases Pvt Ltd 3.55 1.67
233        R.J. Electrodes 0.13 0.13
234        Rabari Amaratbhai Ramabhai 1.36 0.85
235        Radheshyam Roadways 0.81 2.35
236        Radheyshyam Mineral Industries 0.25 0.84
237        Raghuvir Industries 0.01 -
238        Raj Rmc - 0.46
239        Rajesh Yadav - 0.14
240        Rakesh Construction-Kol 0.11 -
241        Rangoon Mill Store - 0.07
242        Ranjit Dey 0.34 0.58
243        Ravi Enterprise - 0.38
244        Razi Ahmed 0.10 0.55
245        Rbl Credit Card-2439 - 0.22
246        Reliance Jio A/C No.900020271697 0.01 -
247        Rohan Behara 0.11 -
248        Roy Shipping Agency 0.09 0.09
249        Rsj Industries 56.82 28.08
250        Rushabh Ferro Alloys - 0.13
251        S B Enterprise - 0.22
252        S Kumar Enterprise - 1.22
253        S N D K & Associates Llp 0.68 1.23
254        S.K.Patel 0.33 -
255        S.M Enterprise 0.15 0.15
256        S.Ottamchand & Co. - 0.13
257        Sabarmati Gas Limited 5.68 4.63
258        Safety Guard (India) 0.25 0.17
259        Sai Traders 0.03 -
260        Sajal Engineering Works 0.05 -
261        Saket Transport 0.29 0.44
262        Sami Ahmed 0.15 0.04
263        Sandip Jayprakashbhai Patel - 0.04
264        Sanjoy Engineering - 0.21
265        Satkul Enterprises Ltd. - 0.95
266        Shiv Krupa Metal And Alloys - 0.16
267        Shiva Transmission Agencies 0.36 0.16
268        Shree Arihant Enterprise 0.18 0.14
269        Shree Azad Transport Company Pvt Ltd - 4.21

86



270        Shree Balaji Steel Traders 0.04 0.81
271        Shree Durga Engineering & Repairing Works-Kol 0.02 -
272        Shree Laxmi Vija.Saw Mill (Firewood) 8.62 7.38
273        Shree Mahalaxmi Oil Centre 0.26 0.30
274        Shree Momai Cargo Movers 4.10 0.83
275        Shree Ram Engineering Works 0.14 0.14
276        Shree Shyam Ceramics 0.06 -
277        Shreeji Printers 0.00 -
278        Shreenath Tools Centre 1.15 0.52
279        Sky Technology 0.02 0.28
280        Smart Technologys 0.10 -
281        Soma Dey 0.36 0.36
282        Sonecha & Amlani - 0.32
283        Speciality Gases Private Limited 6.34 3.65
284        Sphere Chem Resources 4.42 1.42
285        Srp Crane Controls(India) Pvt.Ltd. - 0.00
286        Subhadip Print 0.03 -
287        Subrata Adak 0.04 -
288        Sunshay 0.39 -
289        Surana Enterprise - 0.20
290        Surat Goods Transport P Ltd. 4.00 6.54
291        Swarnali Ghosh 0.30 -
292        Swastik Trading Company - 0.75
293        Swift Cargo Private Limited 27.70 -
294        Swiss Poly Mould 0.09 -
295        Tarama Saw Mill 1.02 0.77
296        Tathagata Mukhopadhyay 0.00 -
297        Tci Freight - 0.09
298        Tech Tools 4.38 2.60
299        Techno Cnc Tooling 0.11 0.17
300        Testing And Measuring Equipments - -
301        The Wesman Engineering Co Pvt Ltd 4.13 4.13
302        Tikoo Traders - 0.03
303        Treatotel 0.37 -
304        Tulasi Raval - 0.04
305        Uday Cnc Center 0.03 0.03
306        Uma Industries (Job Worker) - 1.47
307        Umiya Auto Gerej - 0.07
308        Umiya Auto Parts 0.73 0.28
309        Umiya Beeze Bhandar & Agro Traders 1.14 0.93
310        Unique Speditorer Pvt Ltd 0.16 0.06
311        Unitech Enterprise 0.17 0.60
312        Universal Cotton Waste Suppliers 0.15 0.28
313        Universal Metal & Engineering Concern-Kol - 1.84
314        Utkal Engineers 0.30 0.30
315        Uttar Gujarat Vij Co.Ltd.-Shela Office 0.07 -
316        Valor Innovations Private Limited 0.01 -
317        Varahi Gas Agency 1.84 1.37
318        Vedant Enterprise 4.29 3.92
319        Vedant Trade Link Pvt.Ltd 10.58 0.12
320        Vedant Tradelinks Pvt Ltd - 6.44
321        Veekay Multipack Llp� 0.33 -
322        Versatile Solutions 0.18 0.35
323        Vidhigya Associates 0.45 -
324        Vipul Pithva 0.10 0.08
325        Viral Industries Pvt Ltd 0.14 0.11
326        Viral Trading Company 15.70 11.41
327        Vishnu Trading Co. 0.12 0.13
328        Vishwamitri Engineering Corporation 3.60 6.28
329        Vision Enterprise Odhav 0.07 0.07
330        Vision Wirecut� - 0.09
331        Vivek Enterprise 1.62 1.43
332        Vivek Ranjan Podder 0.59 0.90
333        Western Hardware Co 0.02 -
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334        Xps Highway'S 1.34 -
335        Yadbinder Singh Bajwa - 0.12
336        Yesha Lab Equipments 0.00 -
337        Young Engineers-Kol - 0.08
338        Yug Ispat - 0.73
339        Zentech Systems & Solutions - 0.00
340        Zieta Technologies Pvt Ltd 3.63 1.08

Total 554.60 492.16

B Statutory Liability 0.45 0.45
1            Gst Payable 73.94 59.02
2            Pf Payable 2.18 4.65
3            Esic Payable 0.34 0.34
4            T.D.S Payable 16.40 8.55

Total 92.86 72.56

C SUNDRY DEBTORS 0.45 0.45
Unsecured-Considered Good- 

1            Agni Steel Pvt Ltd 0.13 15.61
2            Ambe Steels Pvt Ltd Nepal 19.66
3            Arabian Gulf Steel Industries Llc - 8.04
4            Balmukund Sponge & Iron Ltd - 2.98
5            Balmukund Sponge And Iron Ltd-Kol -
6            Bhuleshwer Steel & Alloys Pvt Ltd - 8.52
7            Bhushan Power & Steel Ltd - 83.07
8            Bhushan Power And Steel Ltd 72.20
9            Bmd Company 153.68 64.20

10          Bmm Ispat Limited 54.97 -
11          Chandan Steel Limitd - 61.47
12          Chandan Steel Limitd 94.67
13          Devashree Ispat Pvt Ltd 0.03
14          Durgapur Steel Plant - 91.74
15          Etorki 34.84
16          Gallant Ispat Ltd - 36.19
17          Geetai Steels Pvt Ltd - 0.04
18          Hindupur Steel & Alloys Pvt Ltd - 0.03
19          Jay Ambe Steels Pvt Ltd - 20.94
20          Jindal Steel & Power Ltd - Angul - 30.74
21          Jindal Steel & Power Ltd " Patratu " -
22          Jindal Steel & Power Ltd (Angul) 1.03 -
23          Jindal Steel & Power Ltd (Raigarh) 0.07
24          Jsw Steel Limited- Vijayanagar ) 4.19
25          Jsw Steel Ltd 78.59 0.04
26          Jubail Energy Services Co - 50.75
27          Jubail Energy Services Company (Jesco) 36.69 -
28          Juhi Alloys Ltd 1.50 1.75
29          Kalyani Steels Ltd - -
30          Maharashtra Seamless Ltd 2.05 13.09
31          Mahrishi Alloys Pvt Ltd 9.10
32          Ms Agarwal Foundries Pvt Ltd 0.32
33          Msp Steel & Power Ltd - Chhattisghar - 4.36
34          Mukand Ltd 8.45 0.03
35          Nav Bharat Engineering Works - 0.11
36          Om  Sairam Steels And Alooys Pvt Ltd - 0.02
37          Rahim Super Extreme Ltd 47.13
38          Ran India Steels Pvt Ltd 7.75 -
39          Rashtriya Ispat Nigam Ltd 411.46 -
40          Rathi Super Steel Limited 12.78 -
41          Rimjhim Stainless Ltd 51.87 21.24
42          Rourkela Steel Plant 36.83 -
43          Rudra Global Infra Products Ltd - 7.54
44          Saarloha Advance Materials Pvt Ltd - 45.31
45          Sail-Iisco - 112.36
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46          Salam Steel Concast Re-Rolling Mills - 64.30
47          Salam Steel Concast Re-Rolling Mills Madanpur Unit- 51.26
48          Salam Steel Re-Rolling Mills Pvt Ltd - 12.33
49          Salam Steel Re-Rolling Mills Pvt Ltd. 0.39
50          Shree Krishna Rolling Mills (Jaipur ) Ltd - 17.07
51          Shree Krishna Rolling Mills (Jaipur) Ltd 30.46 -
52          Shree Parmeshwer Steels Pvt Ltd - 1.46
53          Shri Amman Steel & Allied Inds Pvt Ltd - 5.92
54          Shyam Sel & Power Ltd - 44.69
55          Siddhi Laxmi Steels Pvt Ltd - 11.64
56          Srj Peety Steels Pvt Ltd 44.10
57          Srj Petty Steels Pvt Ltd - 25.62
58          Steel Authority Of India - Bhilai Plant - 499.75
59          Steel Authority Of India Ltd "Bsp" 225.87 -
60          Steel Authority Of India Ltd "Dsp" 589.87 -
61          Steel Authority Of India Ltd "Iisco" 104.76 -
62          Steel Exchange India Ltd. 0.37 -
63          Steelmax Rolling Mills Ltd - 6.29
64          Sunvik Steels Pvt Ltd 18.96 3.09
65          Super Smelters Ltd - 0.03
66          Swastik Rolling Mills Pvt Ltd - 35.10
67          Tata Steel Ltd, Jamshedpur 17.40 -
68          Tata Steel Ltd, Palghar 0.92
69          The Rani Concast Steel Mills Ltd - 20.52
70          Ugi Engineering Works Pvt Ltd - 19.01
71          Viraj Profiles Ltd 3.93

Total 2228.27 1446.98

1            Bhuwalka Alloys Pvt Ltd - 1.91
2            Bhuwalka Steel Inds Ltd - Wada - 24.76
3            Balmukund Sponge And Iron Ltd-Kol 3.01 -
4            Chandan Steel Limitd - 4.00
5            Jindal Steel & Power Ltd - Patateru - 2.30
6            Kalyani Steels Limited - 0.72
7            Maharashtra Seamless Ltd - 0.75
8            Mukand Sumi Special Steel Ltd - 5.00
9            Nava Karnataka Steel Pvt Ltd - 7.72

10          Balmukund Sponge & Iron Ltd - 0.05
11          Durgapur Steel Plant - 358.94
12          Jsw Steel Ltd - 0.12
13          Kalyani Steels Limited - 2.82
14          Rashtriya Ispat Nigam Ltd - 63.21
15          Rimjhim Stainless Ltd - 0.98
16          Rourkela Steel Plant - 1.56
17          Shri Khatu Shyam Alloys Pvt Ltd - 0.03
18          Steel Authority Of India - Bhilai Plant - 4.63
19          Steel Authority Of India Ltd "Dsp" 37.20 -
20          Rudra Global Infra Products Ltd 2.00 -
21          Mukand Ltd 0.03 -

42.24 479.52
Doubtful Debtors

1            Bhuwalka Steel Industries Ltd Banglore 1.91
2            Bhuwalka Steel Inds Ltd - Wada 24.76
3            Jindal Steel & Power Ltd - Patateru 2.30
4            Kalyani Steels Limited 43.15
5            Mukand Sumi Special Steel Ltd 5.00
6            Nava Karnataka Steel Pvt Ltd 7.72

Total 84.84 -

Grand Total 2270.51 1926.50

Unsecured but Considered Good-Outstanding for Period Exceeding  
Six Months
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D Duties & Taxes 0.45 0.45
1            Gst Receviable 182.52 30.41
2            Tds/Tcs receviable 23.18 19.99
3            Advance Income tax paid 90.00 100.00

Total 295.70 150.40

Deposit
1            CDSL Deposit 0.10 0.10
2            Rent Deposit 2.41 2.38
3            Deposit with WBSEDCL 0.99 0.99
4            Security deposite bharat oxytech pvt.ltd 0.30 0.30
5            NSDL Deposit 29.26 -

Total 33.06 3.77
Total - -

E Advances to Suppliers & Other Debit Balances 0.45 0.45
1            A.Mohammed & Co 0.02 0.01
2            Agarwal Ispat 0.67 0.13
3            Agencias Universales S A Manipulacion De La Carga 5.58 -
4            Ajay Tube Company - 0.26
5            Akash Sikder 0.06 -
6            Amba Shakti Industries Ltd. 0.14 -
7            Ark Infosolution� 0.01 -
8            Auto Carriage Pvt.Ltd. - 0.11
9            Bharat Engineering Works 1.61 0.72

10          Bijoy Mondal 0.02 0.04
11          Bhilai Steel Plant 8.12
12          Central Depository Services Ltd. 0.01 -
13          Climax Engineering Works 0.10 0.58
14          Compania Siderurgica Huachipto S.A 11.52 11.52
15          Crystal Controls 0.01 -
16          Dalian Haidi Machinery Co., Ltd - 13.18
17          Devraj Engg.Company - 0.46
18          Diamond Engineering - 0.45
19          Dsb Logistic Trading 0.04 -
20          Durbadal Das 0.03 0.03
21          Easypac Systems 0.02 -
22          Fedex Securities Private Ltd - 5.00
23          Future Solutions 9.15 -
24          Ghosh Enterprises-Kol 0.11 -
25          Gora Paint Mart 0.01 -
26          Gujarat Pollution Control Board 0.88 -
27          Hindusthan Industries - 2.55
28          Hmb Ispat Private Limited - 0.09
29          India Carbon Ltd - 2.90
30          Innovator Infotech 0.01 -
31          J P Packaging� - 0.20
32          Jay Guru Engineering Works 0.28 0.02
33          Jay Jalaram Fabrication - 0.06
34          Kali Mata Electric-Kol 0.14 -
35          Kavita Electricals Works - 0.00
36          Kelsons Engineers & Fabricators - 0.15
37          Khodal Engineering 0.21 0.21
38          Khodiyar Engineering 0.02 -
39          Khushboo Ispat Pvt Ltd - 5.78
40          Laxmi Gears 0.02 -
41          M Junction Services Ltd 0.71 5.94
42          M.B.Saiyad - 2.00
43          Maa Jaleshwari Enterprise-Kol 0.15 0.04
44          Mahendra Steels 0.27 -
45          Matcut Enterprise - 0.01
46          Megatherm Induction Accessories 0.01 -
47          Meter Centre - 0.03
48          Minal Tools Traders 0.00 -
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49          Mira Motors 0.50 -
50          Mukand Ltd - Cr 3.23 -
51          Narmada Metals 2.82 2.82
52          National Stock Exchane Of India 0.32 -
53          New Lexicon Enterprise 0.50 -
54          Nikita Tools Corporation 0.33 -
55          Naranbhai P Sapra 6.25
56          Olympic Company - 0.16
57          Patel Enterprise ( Vasant Vihar) - 0.38
58          Pijushkanti Dey 5.54 -
59          Pragati Fabrication - 2.50
60          Precision Gauges 0.14 -
61          Proyectos Y Montajes Industriales Phr 15.85 -
62          Punjab Forging Industries 0.05 -
63          R.D.Electricals 0.01 -
64          Rajendra Engineering Ahmedabad P.Ltd. 0.02 0.02
65          Rajesh Brahmbatt 1.20 1.20
66          Raju Enterprise 0.23 -
67          Rajvi Enterprise - 0.04
68          Rangoon Mill Store 0.00 -
69          Rdc Concrete(India) Pvt.Ltd. 0.09 -
70          S B Enterprise - Gj 0.55 -
71          S S Engineering 0.36 -
72          S.Kader & Co 0.06 -
73          S.M.Engineers & Associates 0.20 0.20
74          Sagar Traders 0.04 0.04
75          Sbicap Trustee Company Ltd. - 1.18
76          Shakti Motors - 0.08
77          Sharda Traders 0.04 -
78          Shobha Enterprise 0.04 0.04
79          Shree Kali Steel Traders 0.11 -
80          Shri Hari Hardware 0.07 0.07
81          Shri Hari Overseas 0.02 -
82          Shrinath Electrical Services 0.11 0.11
83          Shyam Ferro Alloys Ltd� 1.33 1.33
84          Sinya Metallurgical Technologies Co.Ltd 11.60 8.60
85          Skg Iron & Steel Co. 0.07 0.07
86          Smartfish Design Pvt Ltd 0.08 1.85
87          Subir Paul-Kol 0.01 -
88          Subrata Electrical 0.21 -
89          Suman Enterprise 0.07 0.07
90          Sunshay - 1.80
91          Supermelt Engineers-Kol 0.85 -
92          Supriyo Das 0.30 2.88
93          Suyash Solutions Pvt Ltd 0.15 0.02
94          Swastik Electropower Pvt Ltd 0.42 -
95          Tci Freight 0.01 -
96          Uday Nandy - 2.01
97          Uneecops Workplace Solutions Pvt.Ltd 0.01 -
98          United Packaging 0.09 0.05
99          Uttar Gujarat Vij Coltd - Dhanali 0.03 -

100        Vaibhavee Enterprises - 0.02
101        Veer Engineering Works - 0.00
102        Vikas Castings 4.17 -
103        Vision Internet Solution 0.02 0.02
104        Wellbore Engineering Co 3.61 3.67
105        Western Hardware Co - 0.01
106        Zenith Industries 0.05 -

Total 101.67 83.76
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F Advances from Customers & Other Credit Balances 0.45 0.45
1            Aditya Ultra Steel Ltd - 2.00
2            Amar Pratap Steels Pvt Ltd - 12.89
3            Amba Shakti Industries Ltd. - 0.07
4            Amman Try Steels (P) Ltd 3.73 2.13
5            Ankur Udyog Ltd 13.15
6            Balajee Mini Steels & Re-Rolling P Ltd 0.09 -
7            Balajee Mini Steels& Re-Rolling Pvt Ltd - 0.07
8            Bansal Ore And Metals Pvt Ltd. 8.34 4.47
9            Bhagwati Power & Steel Ltd Unit Ii - 3.31

10          Bhuleshwar Steel & Alloys Pvt Ltd 0.06
11          Cauvery Iron And Steel India Ltd - 3.30
12          Devashree Ispat Pvt Ltd - 1.42
13          Electrotherm India Ltd - Dr - 1.62
14          Geetai Steels Pvt Ltd 7.00 -
15          Gm Iron & Steel Company Ltd - 0.17
16          Gopi Steel Rolling Mill - 2.07
17          Gph Ispat Ltd 24.43 29.63
18          Guardian Casting Pvt. Ltd. 4.83
19          Innov  Engineering Pvt Ltd 25.30
20          Jaideep Ispat & Alloys Pvt Ltd (Un Ii) - 5.97
21          Jaideep Ispat & Alloys Pvt Ltd (Unit Ii ) 0.35
22          Jalna Siddhivinayak Alloys Pvt Ltd 13.84 -
23          Jay Bharat Steel Corporation - 2.43
24          Jeppiaar Furnace And Steel Pvt Ltd - -
25          Juhi Industries Pvt Ltd 2.16 -
26          K.D.Iron & Steel Co. - 11.61
27          Kgr Resources Llp 0.11 0.09
28          Lingraj Steel And Power Pvt Ltd 2.50 -
29          Maruti Ferrous Pvt Ltd 3.53
30          Maruti Ispat & Energy Pvt Ltd - 2.45
31          Matsyodari  Steel & Alloys Pvt Ltd - 36.45
32          Metarolls Ispat Pvt Ltd 31.06 -
33          Mittal Corp Ltd (Unit Ii) - 0.02
34          Mohit Ventures Private Limited. 2.09 -
35          Moon Iron & Steel Co. S.A.O.C - 5.06
36          Ms Agarwal Foundries Pvt Ltd - 19.43
37          Msp Steel And Power Ltd (Chhattisgarh) 2.17
38          Mudra Steel Industries Pvt.Ltd 4.02
39          Nav Bharat Engineering Works 3.04
40          Newman Impex P Ltd 38.02
41          R.R. Ispat ( A Unit Of Gpil ) 10.13
42          Rajuri Steels & Tmt Bars Pvt Ltd 29.28 23.70
43          Rathi Steel & Metal Pvt Ltd. 8.93 15.39
44          Rathi Steel And Power Ltd 3.80 -
45          S.D.Bansal Iron & Steel Pvt Ltd - 3.81
46          Sbf Ispat Pvt Ltd 8.71 3.87
47          Scan Energy & Power Ltd - 2.65
48          Shivangi Rolling Mill Pvt Ltd - 3.06
49          Shree Ramdoot Rollers Pvt Ltd - 2.26
50          Shree Steel Pvt Ltd - 1.46
51          Shri Khatu Shyam Alloys Pvt Ltd 9.00 -
52          Slr Metaliks Ltd - 8.09
53          Smw Ispat Pvt Ltd 18.65 8.55
54          Srj Strips & Pipes Pvt Ltd 3.23 39.94
55          Steel Exchange India Ltd. - 4.88
56          Sugna Metals Ltd 10.00 10.00
57          Sumangala Steel Pvt Ltd 6.41
58          Sunflag Iron & Steel Co Ltd 2.17
59          Super Smelters Ltd 20.77 -
60          Utkarsh Bars Pvt Ltd 2.78 -
61          Viraj Profiles Ltd - 4.91

92



62          Viraj Steel & Energy Pvt Ltd - 0.02
63          Vms Tmt Pvt Ltd 22.01

Total 345.66 279.24
G Other Advances 0.45 0.45

1            Advance Income Tax Paid - -
1            Loan To Staff 20.56 18.63
2            Prepaid Exepnse 39.04 37.84
3            Travelling Advance (0.01) -
4            Bhilai Steel Plant Retention Money 664.01 466.93
5            Iisco Sail Retention Money 36.76 18.80
6            Shyam Metalics & Energy -
7            Rourkela Steel Plant Retention Money 3.12 -
8            Interest Accured But Not Due (Recd) 7.96 3.34
9            Margin With Bank  ( Bill Disc ) 0.16 -

Total 771.59 545.54
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(Rs. In Lacs)
Sr. As at As at
No. 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
A REVENUE FROM OPERATION

1           GST SALES (Domestic)
-GUJARAT 6961.50 7084.76
-KOLKATA 1365.17 1184.68

2           Deemed Export Sale(SEZ) -
3           Export(Direct & Merchant) 1756.61 2067.69
4           Rate/ Weight difference

10083.28 10337.13
Less : Discount/ Return -
Less : Export realted expense -

TOTAL 10083.28 10337.13

B Other Non-Operating Income 
1           Bad Trade, Other Receivable, Loan & Adv W/Off 12.30 2.96
2           Profit On Sale Of Vehicle - 0.05

TOTAL 12.30 3.01

C RAW MATERIAL PURCHASE
1           Import Purchase 94.75 24.84
2           G.S.T. Purchase 6545.86 6537.94
3           Packing Material Purchase

Total Purchase 6640.61 6562.78
4           Freight Inward 113.60 109.82
5           Import Freight Charges 0.56 0.36

Less: Purchase Return/Rate Difference
TOTAL 6754.77 6672.96

D EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
1           Director Remuneration 281.33 225.83
2           Factory Staff Salary & Wages 406.56 381.37
3           Convyance  Allowance 22.78 16.04
4           Food Allowance 12.74 1.71
5           House Rent Allownce 43.66 47.10
6           Special Allownce 335.56 267.47
7           Other Allowance 0.22 0.64
8           Medical Allowance 0.38 0.85
9           Leave Encashment 0.13 0.09

10         Staff Welfare Exp. 21.33 37.37
11         Employees Insurance Policy - 3.05
12         Provident Fund 31.20 25.32
13         Gratuity Paid 45.10 10.63
14         Gratuity Admin Charges 0.00 -
15         Esic Expense 3.45 2.80
16         Bonus 20.90 20.01

TOTAL 1225.33 814.45

E OTHER MANUFACTURING/DIRECT EXPENSES
1           Loading & Unloading charges 28.77 25.71
2           subcontracting & Job charges 106.12 305.27
3           Weighing Charges 0.97 0.80
4           Export Exepnse 102.45 131.94
5           Factory General Expenses 11.28 12.19
6           Loss on sale of fixed asset - 2.75

TOTAL 249.58 478.66

DEEM ROLL-TECH LIMITED

Particulars

                                 GROUPINGS OF PROFIT & LOSS
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F Rate, Rent & Taxes
1           Electricity Expense office 3.18 2.68
2           Rates & taxe Exepnse 12.96 3.45
3           Rent Exepnse 20.78 5.34

TOTAL 36.92 11.47

G Other Interest Expense
Interest Expense (LC Sales) 4.76 5.14
Interest on Unsecured loans 5.41 4.55
Interest on bill discounting 7.33 4.83
Interest on GST 1.74 0.04
Interest on TDS 0.11
Interest on income tax 9.89 6.37
Interest on other 5.01 0.08
TOTAL 34.15 21.11

H OTHER EXPENSES
1           Office Exp. 3.69 4.07
2           Freight outward Exp 146.43 124.02
3           Office maintance 0.14 0.40
4           Water Charges 0.74 0.77
5           Security expense 29.17 26.28
6           Kasar & Vatav 0.03 -
7           Inspection & testing charges 2.37 0.76
8           Donation Expense 5.75 2.14
9           Late Delivery Charges 3.54 30.04

10         CSR Expnditure 11.80 10.34
11         Penalty Exp. 0.00 0.18
12         Misc exp 0.32 0.25
13         Price variance 2.38
14         Service and Maintance Charges 5.31
15         Others expense 0.66 1.23

TOTAL 212.32 200.47

I Travelling,Conveyance & Vehical Expenses
1           Vehicle Expenses/fuel Exp & hiring charges 30.71 33.17
2           Conveyance expense 4.22 5.65
3           Travelling  Exp 70.36 46.18
4           Driver Salary 3.96 -
5           Foregin travelling 9.83 10.77
6           other travelling exepnse 0.05 -

TOTAL 119.13 95.77
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